
NOTICE OF OPEN MEETING & VOTE TO 

CLOSE PART OF THE MEETING 

A G E N D A  

COUNCIL MEETING 

City of Moberly 

City Council Room – Moberly City Hall 

101 West Reed Street 

December 19, 2022 

6:00 PM 
Posted:   

 
Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Approval of Minutes 
1. Approval Of The City Council Meeting Minutes For December 5, 2022. 

Recognition of Visitors 

Communications, Requests, Informational Items   
2. Moberly Stormwater Annual Report 2022. 

Public Hearing and Receipt of Bids 

3. Receipt Of Bids For Shelter 5 Roof. 

Ordinances & Resolutions 
4. An Ordinance Authorizing Execution Of An Airport State Block Grant Agreement For Operational And 

Maintenance Expenses Or Debt Service. 

5. An Ordinance Amending Chapter 46 Of The City Code To Include A Landscape Plan For Certain Districts 

By Adding New Sections 46-207, 46-208, 46-209 And 46-210, And Amending Existing Sections 46-202, 46-

203, 46-203 And 46-205 And Repealing Sections 46-302, 46-303 And 46-304. 

6. An Ordinance Approving A Cooperative Agreement With Moberly Community Foundation. 

7. A Resolution Approving Extending The Lease Agreement With Marine Toys For Tots Foundation For 

Property Located At 218 W Reed Street And Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Lease. 

8. A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of And Authorizing Contracting With Professional Metal Fabricators, LLC 

For Roof Repairs To Rothwell Park Shelter #5. 

9. A Resolution Approving A Written Consent To Assignment. 

10. A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of Moberly, Missouri. 

Official Reports 
11. Department Head Monthly Reports. 

Anything Else to Come Before the Council 
12. Consideration Of A Motion To Move The January 2, 2023 Meeting to January 3, 2023. 

13. Consideration Of A Motion To Move The January 16, 2023 Council Meeting To January 17, 2023. 

14. Consideration Of A Motion To Move The February 20, 2023 Council Meeting To February 21, 2023. 

Adjournment 
15. Consideration Of A Motion To Adjourn To A Work Session Followed By A Closed Session To Discuss The 

Status of A Negotiated Contract. (Closed Statute 610.021) (12) 
 

 

 

We invite you to attend virtually by viewing it live on the City of Moberly Facebook page.  A link to the City’s 

Channel can be found on our website’s main page at www.cityofmoberly.com. The public is invited to attend the 

Council meeting.  Representatives of the news media may obtain copies of this notice by contacting the City Clerk.  If 

a special accommodation is needed as addressed by the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact the City Clerk 

twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the meeting. 

1

http://www.cityofmoberly.com/


 

December 5, 2022, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 1 of 3 

December 5, 2022 

City of Moberly, Missouri Council Minutes 

 

Council met in regular session at 6:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers 

with Mayor Jeffrey presiding. 

 

All stood and recited the pledge of allegiance led by Mayor Jeffrey. 

 

Council Members answering the roll call were: Jerry Jeffrey, Tim Brubaker, John 

Kimmons (via Zoom), Austin Kyser, and Brandon Lucas. 

 

A motion was made by Brubaker and seconded by Lucas to approve the agenda.  

Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 

 

A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Brubaker to approve the minutes of 

the November 21, 2022, Council meeting as presented.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, 

Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 

 

Jeff Arp with MIRMA presented the City with a Risk Grant Award for the Moberly 

Police Department for dash mounted cameras. 

 

Kyser introduced a bill for an ordinance entitled: “AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

TWO COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS FOR INFILL DEVELOPMENT WITH RADMER CONSTRUCTION, 

LLC” and moved that the bill be read two times by title for passage.  Brubaker 

seconded the motion, and upon said motion the vote was as follows:  Ayes: 

Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none.  The bill having 

previously been made available for public inspection was read by title two 

times.  Brubaker moved that the bill be enacted into an ordinance.  Kyser 

seconded the motion.  The presiding officer having called for a vote on the 

motion, the vote was as follows:  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and 

Lucas.  Nays: none. 

 

Brubaker introduced a bill for an ordinance entitled: “AN ORDINANCE APPROVING 

A MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE 

AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT ON BEHALF 

OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY” and moved that the bill be read two times by title for 

passage.  Lucas seconded the motion, and upon said motion the vote was as 

follows:  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none.  The 

bill having previously been made available for public inspection was read by 

title two times.  Kimmons moved that the bill be enacted into an ordinance.  

Brubaker seconded the motion.  The presiding officer having called for a vote 

on the motion, the vote was as follows:  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser 

and Lucas.  Nays: none. 

 

Lucas introduced a bill for an ordinance entitled: “AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A 

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION TRAFFIC ENGINEERING ASSISTANCE 

PROGRAM AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT ON 

BEHALF OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY” and moved that the bill be read two times by 

title for passage.  Brubaker seconded the motion, and upon said motion the vote 

was as follows:  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none.  

The bill having previously been made available for public inspection was read 

2

#1.



 

December 5, 2022, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 2 of 3 

by title two times.  Brubaker moved that the bill be enacted into an ordinance.  

Lucas seconded the motion.  The presiding officer having called for a vote on 

the motion, the vote was as follows:  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser 

and Lucas.  Nays: none. 

 

Kyser introduced “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND ACCEPTING A FOURTH CHANGE ORDER 

TO THE TANNEHILL PARK SPLASHPAD CONTRACT WITH IRVINBILT CONSTRUCTORS, INC” and 

made a motion for it to be read.  Brubaker seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having 

previously been made available for public inspection was read by title one time.  

A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Brubaker to adopt the Resolution.  

Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 

 

Brubaker introduced “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND ACCEPTING A CHANGE ORDER TO 

THE BALL FIELD IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT AT HOWARD HILS ATHLETIC COMPLEX WITH BLEIGH 

CONSTRUCTION COMPANY” and made a motion for it to be read.  Lucas seconded the 

motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none.  The 

Resolution bill having previously been made available for public inspection was 

read by title one time.  A motion was made by Brubaker and seconded by Kyser to 

adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: 

none. 

 

Lucas introduced “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT FOR A MOBERLY INDUSTRIAL 

PARK ROADWAY AND INTERSECTION EXTENSION STUDY WITH BARTLETT & WEST, INC” and 

made a motion for it to be read.  Brubaker seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having 

previously been made available for public inspection was read by title one time.  

A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Lucas to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: 

Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 

 

Kyser introduced “A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MONEY OUT OF THE TREASURY OF THE 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI IN THE AMOUNT OF $319,605.57” and made a motion for 

it to be read.  Brubaker seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, 

Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having previously been made 

available for public inspection was read by title one time.  A motion was made 

by Brubaker and seconded by Kyser to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, 

Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 

 

Mayor Jeffrey nominated Mary Brink to be re-appointed to the Housing Authority 

Board.  A motion was made by Kimmons and seconded by Brubaker to re-appoint 

Mary Brink to the Housing Authority Board.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, 

Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 

 

Members from the News Media were: Colin Schowe, Kwix Kres Radio Station and 

Wynona Whitaker, Moberly Monitor Index. 

 

A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Brubaker to adjourn to a work session 

Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 

 

 

 

3

#1.



 

December 5, 2022, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 3 of 3 

Work Session 

 

The following was discussed at the work session: 

 

Review Of First Amendment To Cooperative Agreement For Joint Central Dispatch. 

 

Notification Of Participation In Law Enforcement Support Office (LESO) Program 

Participating Law Enforcement Agency (LEA).  

 

A Request For Lighting Along W Urbandale From S Williams To The Tracks.  

 

A Request From Moberly Chamber Of Commerce To Use The Kelly Hotel In September 

2023 For An Event.  

 

Receipt Of Bids For Shelter 5 Roof. 

  

4

#1.



 

City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities  

Date: December 19, 2022 
 

  

Agenda Item:     Moberly Stormwater Annual Report 2022 

  

Summary: Attached is the 2022 Moberly Stormwater Annual Report for review only 

  

Recommended Action: Review only. 

  

Fund Name:   

  

Account Number:    

  

Available Budget $: $  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

5

#2.



 

 

 

Moberly Stormwater Annual Report 2022 

Moberly’s stormwater staff stayed busy throughout the year, addressing customer needs, engaging 

volunteers, and educating residents about stormwater.  Just a few of the year’s highlights: 

 Held 2 community trash cleanups in partnership with Moberly Community Benefit: one after 

Railroad Days and one after Junk Junction. 

 Helped organize a trash cleanup by the Moberly High School Football Team. 

 Started a tree planting pilot program in partnership with Stream Teams United, Magic City 

Master Gardeners, and the Moberly High School Adventure Club. 112 native trees and shrubs 

were planted in April in a subdivision suffering from streambank erosion, of which 70 were 

thriving as of October, 2022. Trees were donated by Stream Teams United, and planted by 

volunteers; making the cost to the city negligible. 

 Wrote and published articles on stormwater subjects in Moberly Living Magazine, Moberly 

Monitor Index, and the City Facebook Page. 

 Managed the Household Hazardous Waste Recycling Facility, and successfully recycled over 

1,400 lbs of household chemicals and paint. 

 Organized educational presentations about native plants. 

 Hosted an educational booth at Junk Junction about yard waste recycling. 

 Responded to complaints, questions, and concerns about stormwater issues from Moberly 

residents. 

 Checked all high-priority areas for stormwater & stream pollution. 

 Performed monthly inspections of Land Disturbance sites & implemented self-inspection 

program. 

 Attended Plan Review meetings, and communicated concerns and items of interest with plan 

review personnel, contractors, and developers. 

 Updated and improved the permitting process for permanent stormwater facilities to comply 

with the new Stormwater Management Plan. 

 Checked all known permanent stormwater facilities for continued functioning and potential 

future problems. 

 Ensured all city departments have stormwater pollution prevention SOPs. 

 Updated stormwater training and inspection forms to align with the department SOPs. 

 Provided stormwater training  and a SOP compliance review to each city department. 

The City of Moberly Stormwater Program is compliant with the Stormwater Management Plan. In 2023, 

we plan to begin projects to evaluate the stormwater outfalls in town and to create educational 

materials and opportunities for contractors and developers interested in building within Moberly.  We 

also hope to expand the tree planting program, planting even more native trees to improve local stream 

health and resident’s quality of life. We welcome suggestions about how we can better serve the people 

of Moberly and maintain compliance with state and federal regulations on our storm sewer system. 

6

#2.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Parks  

Date: December 19, 2022 
 

  

Agenda Item: Receipt Of Bids For Shelter 5 Roof. 

  

Summary: Shelter 5 roof is decades old and has holes scattered throughout. It needs 

replaced and was budgeted for in the current budget year. The trusses are also 

estimated at 50-60 years old – nearly as old as the old ag. barns – and have 

signs of deterioration and carpenter bee damage. Truss replacement, metal 

gables (as opposed to the current deteriorated wood), and a new metal roof is 

the scope of what we bid out.  

 

In-house, we will replace the final 4 posts prior to work starting on the roof. 

We will remove the existing electrical. And we will then work with the Lion’s 

Club for updated electrical that is up to code and LED lighting.  

  

Recommended 

Action: Accept these bids 

  

Fund Name: Parks – Capital Improvement 

  

Account Number: 115.041.5502  

  

Available Budget $: $26,750.83 
 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
    _    Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    

    Staff Report   __  Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
    _  Correspondence   X_  Proposed Resolution   
   X   Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
   _   Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report    _   Other: _____________      Passed Failed 

7

#3.



8

#3.



9

#3.



10

#3.



11

#3.



12

#3.



13

#3.



14

#3.



15

#3.



16

#3.



17

#3.



18

#3.



19

#3.



20

#3.



21

#3.



22

#3.



23

#3.



24

#3.



25

#3.



26

#3.



27

#3.



28

#3.



29

#3.



30

#3.



31

#3.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: 

Community 

Development 

Date: December 19, 2022 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Authorizing Execution Of An Airport State Block Grant 

Agreement For Operational And Maintenance Expenses Or Debt Service. 

  

Summary: This document accepts $32,000 of ARPA funding from State Block Grant to 

reimburse the airport for fuel purchases.  We are using the funding to 

reimburse what was budget for fuel, and using the budgeted fuel funds to 

cover building renovation costs at the airport. 

 

Staff recommends executing acceptance of funds. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this ordinance. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report   x    Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other       Passed Failed 

 

32

#4.



 

 

BILL NO.        ORDINANCE NO.     

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN AIRPORT STATE BLOCK 

GRANT AGREEMENT FOR OPERATIONAL AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES OR 

DEBT SERVICE. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI, TO-WIT: 

 

 SECTION ONE:    the America Rescue Plan Act has made grant funds available for 

airport operational and maintenance expenses or debt service payments. 

 SECTION TWO:  Grant are funds are available in the amount not to exceed $32,000.00 

for qualifying expenses subject to review and approval by the Missouri Highways and 

Transportation Commission. 

SECTION THREE:    Attached hereto and incorporated herein is a Missouri Highways 

and Transportation Commission Airport Rescue State Block Grant Agreement which is hereby 

authorized by the City Council and the City Manager, or his designee is hereby authorized to 

execute the Agreement on behalf of the City. 

 SECTION FOUR:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and adoption by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, and its signature by the 

officer presiding at the meeting at which it was passed and adopted. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 19th day 

of December, 2022. 

  

       ____________________________________ 

ATTEST:       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

 

______________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 
 
 

33

#4.



CCO FORM: MO#      Sponsor: City of Moberly 
Approved: 11/22 (MWH)     Project No. 21-034A-2 
Revised:         Airport Name:  Omar N. Bradley 
Modified:  
 
 
CFDA Number:         CFDA #20.106 
CFDA Title:         Airport Improvement Program 
Federal Agency:         Federal Aviation Administration, Department of Transportation  
 

 AIRPORT RESCUE STATE BLOCK GRANT AGREEMENT 
 
 SECTION I - TITLE, AUTHORIZATION, PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
--State Block Grant Agreement 
--Federal Authorization - Airport and Airway Improvement 
  Act of 1982 (as amended) and ARP Act 
--Project Description – operational and maintenance costs 
 
 SECTION II - STANDARD AGREEMENT ITEMS 
 
  1. PURPOSE 
  2. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 
  3. AMOUNT OF GRANT  
  4. ALLOWABLE COSTS 
  5. INDIRECT COSTS-SPONSOR 
  6. FEDERAL SHARE OF COSTS 
  7. COMPLETING THE GRANT WITHOUT DELAY AND IN CONFORMANCE WITH 

REQUIREMENTS 
  8. WITHDRAWAL OF GRANT OFFER 
  9. EXPIRATION OF GRANT OFFER 
10. RECOVERY OF FEDERAL FUNDS 
11. PAYMENT 
12. ADMINISTRATIVE/AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 
13. NONDISCRIMINATION ASSURANCE 
14. CANCELLATION 
15. VENUE 
16. LAW OF MISSOURI TO GOVERN 
17. CONFIDENTIALITY 
18. NONSOLICITATION 
19. DISPUTES 
20. INDEMNIFICATION 
21. NOTIFICATION OF CHANGE 
22. AMENDMENTS 
23. ASSIGNMENT 
24. BANKRUPTCY 
25. COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE 
26. UNITED STATES NOT LIABLE FOR DAMAGE OR INJURY  
27. FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT OF 2006 
28. BAN ON TEXTING WHILE DRIVING 
29. SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT REGISTRATION AND UNIQUE 

ENTITY IDENTIFIER 

34

#4.



30. SUSPENSION OR DEBARMENT 
31. TRAFFICKING IN PERSONS 
32. REQUIRED FEDERAL PROVISIONS 
33. EMPLOYEE PROTECTION FROM REPRISAL 
34. BUY AMERICAN 
35. LIMITATIONS 
36. AIR AND WATER QUALITY 
37. FACE COVERINGS POLICY 
38. FINANCIAL REPORTING AND PAYMENT REQUIREMENTS 
39. ARP ACT GRANT ASSURANCES 
40. EQUIPMENT OR VEHICLE REPLACEMENT 
41. EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION 
42. LOW EMISSION SYSTEMS 
43. UTILITIES PRORATION 
44. UTILITY RELOCATION IN GRANT 
 
 SECTION III – GRANT ACCEPTANCE 
 
--Signature by sponsor constitutes acceptance of grant terms and conditions.  Failure to 
comply with grant requirements will jeopardize funding eligibility. 
--Certificate of sponsor's attorney 
 
 EXHIBIT A – AIRPORT RESCUE GRANT ASSURANCES 

35

#4.



Sponsor: City of Moberly 
Project No.:21-034A-2 
Airport Name: Omar N. Bradley 
 
CFDA Number:         CFDA #20.106 
CFDA Title:         Airport Improvement Program 
Federal Agency:         Federal Aviation Administration, Department of Transportation  
 

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
AIRPORT RESCUE STATE BLOCK GRANT AGREEMENT 

 
 
 THIS GRANT AGREEMENT is entered into by the Missouri Highways and 
Transportation Commission (hereinafter, "Commission") and the City of Moberly 
(hereinafter, "Sponsor"). Reference will also be made to the Federal Aviation 
Administration (hereinafter, "FAA"). 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 116 of the federal Airport and Airway Safety and Capacity 
Expansion Act of 1987 amended the previous Act of 1982 by adding new section 534 
entitled "State Block Grant Pilot Program", (Title 49 United States Code Section 47128); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Federal Aviation Reauthorization Act of 1996 declared the State 
Block Grant Program to be permanent; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission has been selected by the FAA to administer state 
block grant federal funds under said program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Sponsor has applied to the Commission for a sub grant under said 
program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Title IV of Division M of Public Law 117-2, the American Rescue Plan 
Act (hereinafter, "ARP Act”, or “the Act”) and the Missouri General Assembly 2002 
appropriations bill, HB 3004, provided General Funds to airports to be utilized for costs 
related to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization, janitorial services, combating the 
spread of pathogens at the airport, and debt service payments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Airport Rescue State Block Grant is provided in accordance with 
the ARP Act; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Sponsor has applied to the Commission for an ARP Act sub grant 
under said program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commission has agreed to award funds to the Sponsor with the 
understanding that such funds will be used for airport operational and maintenance 
expenses or debt service payments in accordance with the limitations prescribed in the 
ARP Act and HB 3004; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this grant is provided in accordance with the ARP Act and HB 3004, 
as described below, to prevent, prepare for, and respond to the coronavirus. ARP Act 
airport grant amounts to specific airports are derived by legislative formula; and 

36

#4.



 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these mutual covenants, promises and 
representations, the parties agree as follows: 
 
 (1) PURPOSE: The purpose of this Airport Rescue State Block Grant is to 
prevent, prepare for, and respond to the coronavirus pandemic. Funds provided under 
this Airport Rescue State Block Grant Agreement must be used only for purposes directly 
related to the covered airports and shall be provided to such covered airports using 
subgrants, which include the terms, conditions, and assurances attached hereto. Such 
purposes can include the reimbursement of an airport’s operational expenses or debt 
service payments in accordance with the limitations prescribed in the Act. Airport Rescue 
State Block Grant funds may be used to reimburse airport operational expenses directly 
related to covered airports in Missouri incurred no earlier than January 20, 2020. 
 
Airport Rescue State Block Grant funds also may be used to reimburse a Sponsor’s 
payment of debt service where such payments occur on or after March 11, 2021. Funds 
provided under this Airport Rescue State Block Grant Agreement will be governed by the 
same principles that govern “airport revenue.” New airport development projects not 
directly related to combating the spread of pathogens may not be funded with this Grant. 
Funding under this Grant for airport development projects to combat the spread of 
pathogens will be reallocated using an addendum to this Agreement for identified and 
approved projects. 
 
 (2) PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE: The period of performance shall commence 
on the date this Agreement is executed by the parties. The end date of the period of 
performance is August 13, 2025, which is four (4) years (1,460 calendar days) from the 
date of agreement execution between the Commission and the FAA to receive this 
funding. The Sponsor may only charge allowable costs for obligations incurred prior to 
the end date of the period of performance. Unless the Commission receives a written 
extension from the FAA, the Sponsor must submit all Grant closeout documentation and 
liquidate (pay off) all obligations incurred under this award no later than one hundred 
twenty (120) calendar days after the end date of the period of performance (2 Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR) § 200.344). The period of performance end date shall not 
affect, relieve or reduce Sponsor obligations and assurances that extend beyond the 
closeout of this Grant Agreement.   
 
 (3) AMOUNT OF GRANT: The amount of this grant is not to exceed Thirty-Two 
Thousand Dollars ($32,000). The designation of this grant does not create a lump sum 
quantity contract, but rather only represents the amount of funding available for qualifying 
expenses. In no event will the Commission provide the Sponsor funding for improvements 
or work that are not actually performed. The release of all funding under this Agreement 
is subject to review and approval of all expenses to ensure that they are qualifying 
expenses under this program. 
 
 (4) ALLOWABLE COSTS: These funds shall not be used for any costs that the 
Commission and/or the FAA has determined to be ineligible or unallowable under the 
ARP Act.   
  
 (5) INDIRECT COSTS—SPONSOR: The Sponsor may charge indirect costs 
under this award by applying the indirect cost rate identified in the Grant Application as 

37

#4.



accepted by the Commission, to allowable costs for Sponsor direct salaries and wages 
only.  
 
 (6) FEDERAL SHARE OF COSTS: The United States’ share of allowable Grant 
costs is One Hundred Percent (100%).  
 
 (7) COMPLETING THE GRANT WITHOUT DELAY AND IN CONFORMANCE 
WITH REQUIREMENTS: The Sponsor must carry out and complete the Grant without 
undue delays and in accordance with this Agreement, the ARP Act, and the regulations, 
policies, standards and procedures of the United States Secretary of Transportation 
("Secretary"). Pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.308, the Sponsor agrees to report to the 
Commission any disengagement from funding eligible expenses under the Grant that 
exceeds three (3) months or a twenty-five percent (25%) reduction in time devoted to the 
Agreement, and request prior approval from the Commission. The report must include a 
reason for the stoppage. The Sponsor agrees to comply with the attached assurances, 
which are labeled as Exhibit A and attached to the Agreement and incorporated herein 
by reference, and any addendum that may be attached hereto at a later date by mutual 
consent.  
 
 (8) WITHDRAWAL OF GRANT OFFER: The Commission reserves the right to 
amend or withdraw this grant offer at any time prior to acceptance by the Sponsor. 
 
 (9) EXPIRATION OF GRANT OFFER: This grant offer shall expire and the 
Commission shall not be obligated to pay any part of the costs of the project unless this 
grant Agreement has been executed by the Sponsor on or before February 16, 2023, or 
such subsequent date as may be prescribed in writing by the Commission.  
 
 (10) RECOVERY OF FEDERAL FUNDS: The Sponsor shall take all steps, 
including litigation, if necessary, to recover federal funds spent fraudulently, wastefully, in 
violation of federal antitrust statutes, or misused in any other manner, including uses that 
violate this Agreement, the ARP Act, or other provisions of applicable law. For the 
purposes of this Agreement, the term "Federal funds" means funds, however used or 
dispersed by the Sponsor, that were originally paid pursuant to this or any other Federal 
grant agreement(s). The Sponsor shall return the recovered federal share, including funds 
recovered by settlement, order, or judgment, to the Commission. The Sponsor shall 
furnish to the Commission, upon request, all documents and records pertaining to the 
determination of the amount of the Federal share or to any settlement, litigation, 
negotiation, or other efforts taken to recover such funds. All settlements or other final 
positions of the Sponsor, in court or otherwise, involving the recovery of such federal 
share shall be approved in advance by the Commission.   
 
 (11) PAYMENT: Payments to the Sponsor are made on an advance basis. The 
Sponsor may request incremental payments during the course of the project or a lump 
sum payment upon completion of the work. The Sponsor may request payment at any 
time subsequent to the execution of this Agreement by both parties. Requests for 
reimbursement shall be supported with invoices. After the Sponsor pays incurred costs, 

38

#4.



copies of checks used to pay providers must be submitted to the Commission. The 
Sponsor shall comply with all Federal financial reporting requirements and payment 
requirements, including submittal of timely and accurate reports.  
 
 (12) ADMINISTRATIVE/AUDIT REQUIREMENTS: The Sponsor must provide 
for a Single Audit or program-specific audit in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. The 
Sponsor must submit the audit reporting package to the Commission and shall provide 
one (1) copy of the completed audit to the Commission. Upon request of the FAA, the 
Commission and Sponsor shall provide one copy of the completed audit to the FAA.  
 
 (13) NONDISCRIMINATION ASSURANCE: With regard to work under this 
Agreement, the Sponsor agrees as follows: 
 
  (A) Civil Rights Statutes: The Sponsor shall comply with all state and 
federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination, including but not limited to Title VI and Title 
VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d and 2000e, et seq.), as 
well as any applicable titles of the Americans with Disabilities Act. In addition, if the 
Sponsor is providing services or operating programs on behalf of the Department or the 
Commission, it shall comply with all applicable provisions of Title II of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. 
 
  (B) Administrative Rules: The Sponsor shall comply with the 
administrative rules of the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) relative 
to nondiscrimination in federally-assisted programs of the USDOT (49 CFR Subtitle A, 
Part 21) which are herein incorporated by reference and made part of this Agreement. 
 
  (C) Nondiscrimination: The Sponsor shall not discriminate on grounds of 
the race, color, religion, creed, sex, disability, national origin, age or ancestry of any 
individual in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of 
materials and leases of equipment. The Sponsor shall not participate either directly or 
indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by 49 CFR Subtitle A, Part 21, Section 21.5, 
including employment practices. 
 
  (D) Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Material 
and Equipment: These assurances concerning nondiscrimination also apply to 
subcontractors and suppliers of the Sponsor. These apply to all solicitations either by 
competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Sponsor for work to be performed under 
a subcontract, including procurement of materials or equipment. Each potential 
subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the Sponsor of the requirements of this 
Agreement relative to nondiscrimination on grounds of the race, color, religion, creed, 
sex, disability or national origin, age or ancestry of any individual. 
 
  (E) Information and Reports: The Sponsor shall provide all information 
and reports required by this Agreement, or orders and instructions issued pursuant 
thereto, and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of 
information and its facilities as may be determined by the Commission or the USDOT to 

39

#4.



be necessary to ascertain compliance with other contracts, orders and instructions. 
Where any information required of the Sponsor is in the exclusive possession of another 
who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Sponsor shall so certify to the 
Commission or the USDOT as appropriate and shall set forth what efforts it has made to 
obtain the information. 
 
  (F) Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event the Sponsor fails to 
comply with the nondiscrimination provisions of this Agreement, the Commission shall 
impose such contract sanctions as it or the USDOT may determine to be appropriate, 
including but not limited to: 
 
   1. Withholding of payments under this Agreement until the 
Sponsor complies; and/or 
 
   2. Cancellation, termination or suspension of this Agreement, in 
whole or in part, or both. 
 
  (G) Incorporation of Provisions: The Sponsor shall include the provisions 
of Paragraph (13) of this Agreement in every subcontract, including procurements of 
materials and leases of equipment, unless exempted by the statutes, executive order, 
administrative rules or instructions issued by the Commission or the USDOT. The 
Sponsor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the 
Commission or the USDOT may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including 
sanctions for noncompliance; provided that in the event the Sponsor becomes involved 
or is threatened with litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, 
the Sponsor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the 
interests of the United States. 
 
 (14) CANCELLATION: The Commission may cancel this Agreement at any time 
the Sponsor breaches the contractual obligations by providing the Sponsor with written 
notice of cancellation. Should the Commission exercise its right to cancel the Agreement 
for such reasons, cancellation will become effective upon the date specified in the notice 
of cancellation sent to the Sponsor. 
 
  (A) Upon written notice to the Sponsor, the Commission reserves the 
right to suspend or terminate all or part of the grant when the Sponsor is, or has been, in 
violation of the terms of this Agreement. Any lack of progress that significantly endangers 
substantial performance of the project within the specified time shall be deemed a 
violation of the terms of this Agreement. The determination of lack of progress shall be 
solely within the discretion of the Commission. Once such determination is made, the 
Commission shall so notify the Sponsor in writing. Termination of any part of the grant will 
not invalidate obligations properly incurred by the Sponsor prior to the date of termination.  
 
  (B) The Commission shall have the right to suspend funding of the 
project at any time and for so long as the Sponsor fails to substantially comply with all the 
material terms and conditions of this Agreement. If the Commission determines that 

40

#4.



substantial noncompliance cannot be cured within thirty (30) days, then the Commission 
may terminate the funding for the project. If the Sponsor fails to perform its obligations in 
substantial accordance with the Agreement (except if the project has been terminated for 
the convenience of the parties) and the FAA requires the Commission to repay grant 
funds that have already been expended by the Sponsor, then the Sponsor shall repay the 
Commission such federal funds. 
 
 (15) VENUE: It is agreed by the parties that any action at law, suit in equity, or 
other judicial proceeding to enforce or construe this Agreement, or regarding its alleged 
breach, shall be instituted only in the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri. 
 
 (16) LAW OF MISSOURI TO GOVERN: This Agreement shall be construed 
according to the laws of the State of Missouri. The Sponsor shall comply with all local, 
state and federal laws and regulations relating to the performance of this Agreement. 
 
 (17) CONFIDENTIALITY: The Sponsor shall not disclose to third parties 
confidential factual matter provided by the Commission except as may be required by 
statute, ordinance, or order of court, or as authorized by the Commission. The Sponsor 
shall notify the Commission immediately of any request for such information. 
 
 (18) NONSOLICITATION: The Sponsor warrants that it has not employed or 
retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working for the 
Sponsor, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any 
company or person, other than a bona fide employee, any fee, commission, percentage, 
brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the 
award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the 
Commission shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability, or in its 
discretion, to deduct from this Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, 
the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent 
fee. 
 
 (19) DISPUTES: Any disputes that arise under this Agreement shall be decided 
by the Commission or its representative.   
 
 (20) INDEMNIFICATION:   
 

(A) To the extent allowed or imposed by law, the Sponsor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the Commission, including its members and department 
employees, from any claim or liability whether based on a claim for damages to real or 
personal property or to a person for any matter relating to or arising out of the Sponsor's 
wrongful or negligent performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
(B) The Sponsor will require any contractor procured by the Sponsor to 

work under this Agreement: 
 

41

#4.



 1. To obtain a no cost permit from the Commission’s district 
engineer prior to working on the Commission’s right-of-way, which shall be signed by an 
authorized contractor representative (a permit from the Commission’s district engineer 
will not be required for work outside of the Commission’s right-of-way); and 

 
2. To carry commercial general liability insurance and 

commercial automobile liability insurance from a company authorized to issue insurance 
in Missouri, and to name the Commission, and the Missouri Department of Transportation 
and its employees, as additional named insureds in amounts sufficient to cover the 
sovereign immunity limits for Missouri public entities ($500,000 per claimant and 
$4,000,000 per occurrence) as calculated by the Missouri Department of Insurance, 
Financial Institutions and Professional Registration, and published annually in the 
Missouri Register pursuant to Section 537.610, RSMo. 

 
  (C) In no event shall the language of this Agreement constitute or be 
construed as a waiver or limitation for either party’s rights or defenses with regard to each 
party’s applicable sovereign, governmental, or official immunities and protections as 
provided by federal and state constitution or law. 
 
 (21) NOTIFICATION OF CHANGE: The Sponsor shall immediately notify the 
Commission of any changes in conditions or law which may significantly affect its ability 
to perform the project in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.  Any notice or 
other communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed given three (3) days after delivery by United States mail, regular mail 
postage prepaid, or upon receipt by personal, facsimile or electronic mail (email) delivery, 
addressed as follows:   
 
  Commission:  Kyle LePage, Administrator of Aviation 
     Missouri Department of Transportation 
     P.O. Box 270 
     Jefferson City, MO  65102 
     (573) 526-5571 
     (573) 526-4709 FAX 
     email:  kyle.lepage@modot.mo.gov 
 
   Sponsor: Tom Sanders  

Airport Manager  
101 W. Reed St.                         
Moberly, MO 65270  
(660)-269-8705 ext. 2044  
Email: tsanders@cityofmoberly.com 
 

or to such other place as the parties may designate in accordance with this Agreement.  
To be valid, facsimile or email delivery shall be followed by delivery of the original 
document, or a clear and legible copy thereof, within three (3) business days of the date 
of the facsimile or email transmission of the document. 

42

#4.

mailto:kyle.lepage@modot.mo.gov
mailto:tsanders@cityofmoberly.com


  
 (22) AMENDMENTS: Any change in this Agreement, whether by modification or 
supplementation, must be accomplished by a formal contract amendment signed and 
approved by the duly authorized representative of the Sponsor and the Commission. 
  
 (23) ASSIGNMENT: The Sponsor shall not assign, transfer or delegate any 
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Commission. 
 
 (24) BANKRUPTCY: Upon filing for any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding by 
or against the Sponsor, whether voluntarily, or upon the appointment of a receiver, 
trustee, or assignee, for the benefit of creditors, the Commission reserves the right and 
sole discretion to either cancel this Agreement or affirm this Agreement and hold the 
Sponsor responsible for damages. 
 
 (25) COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE: The Commission's assistant chief 
engineer is designated as the Commission's representative for the purpose of 
administering the provisions of this Agreement. The Commission’s representative may 
designate by written notice other persons having the authority to act on behalf of the 
Commission in furtherance of the performance of this Agreement. 
 
 (26) UNITED STATES NOT LIABLE FOR DAMAGE OR INJURY: The United 
States is not responsible or liable for damage to property or injury to persons which may 
arise from, or relate to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, any action taken by a 
Sponsor related to or arising from, directly or indirectly, this Agreement.  
 
 (27) FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT OF 
2006: The Sponsor shall comply with all reporting requirements of the Federal Funding 
Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) of 2006, as amended. This Agreement is 
subject to the award terms within 2 CFR Part 170. 
 
 (28) BAN ON TEXTING WHILE DRIVING:   
 
  (A) In accordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership on 
Reducing Text Messaging While Driving, October 1, 2009, and DOT Order 3902.10, Text 
Messaging While Driving, December 30, 2009, the Sponsor is encouraged to: 
 
   1. Adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease 
crashes caused by distracted drivers including policies to ban text messaging while 
driving when performing any work for, or on behalf of, the Federal government, including 
work relating to this Agreement or subgrant funded by this Agreement. 
 
   2. Conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner 
commensurate with the size of the business, such as: 
  
    a. Establishment of new rules and programs or re-
evaluation of existing programs to prohibit text messaging while driving; and 

43

#4.



 
    b. Education, awareness, and other outreach to 
employees about the safety risks associated with texting while driving. 
 
  (B) The Sponsor must insert the substance of this clause on banning 
texting while driving in all subgrants, contracts, and subcontracts funded by this 
Agreement.  
  
 (29) SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT REGISTRATION AND UNIQUE 
ENTITY IDENTIFIER:  
 
  (A) Requirement for System for Award Management (hereinafter, 
"SAM"): Unless the Sponsor is exempted from this requirement under 2 CFR § 25.110, 
the Sponsor must maintain the currency of its information in the SAM until the 
Commission submits the final financial report required under this grant, or receives the 
final payment, whichever is later. This requires that the Sponsor review and update the 
information at least annually after the initial registration and more frequently if required by 
changes in information or another award term. Additional information about registration 
procedures may be found at the SAM website (currently at http://www.sam.gov).  
 
  (B) Unique entity identifier (hereinafter, "UEI") means a twelve (12) 
character alpha-numeric value used to identify a specific commercial, nonprofit or 
governmental entity. A UEI may be obtained from SAM.gov at 
https://sam.gov/SAM/pages/public/index.jsf. 
 

(30) SUSPENSION OR DEBARMENT: When entering into a "covered 
transaction" as defined by 2 CFR § 180.200, the Sponsor must:  

 
 (A) Verify the non-federal entity is eligible to participate in this Federal 

program by: 
 
  1. Checking the excluded parties list system (EPLS) as 

maintained within SAM to determine if the non-federal entity is excluded or disqualified; 
or 

 
  2. Collecting a certification statement from the non-federal entity 

attesting the entity is not excluded or disqualified from participating; or 
 
  3.  Adding a clause or condition to covered transactions attesting 

the individual or firm is not excluded or disqualified from participating. 
 
 (B) Require prime contractors to comply with 2 CFR § 180.330 when 

entering into lower-tier transactions (e.g., sub-contracts). 
 
 (C) Immediately disclose to the Commission whenever the Sponsor (1) 

learns the Sponsor has entered into a covered transaction with an ineligible entity, or (2) 

44

#4.

http://www.sam.gov/


suspends or debars a contractor, person, or entity.  
 
 (D) Insert this clause on suspension or debarment in all contracts and 

subcontracts that result from this Agreement.  
 
 (31) TRAFFICKING IN PERSONS: 
 
  (A) The Sponsor as the recipient, the Sponsor’s employees, 
subrecipients under this Agreement, and subrecipients’ employees may not: 
 
   1. Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the 
period of time that the Agreement is in effect; 
 
   2. Procure a commercial sex act that the period of time that the 
Agreement is in effect; or 
 
   3. Use forced labor in the performance of this Agreement or 
subawards under this Agreement.  
 
  (B) The Commission may unilaterally terminate this award on behalf of 
the FAA as the Federal awarding agency, without penalty, if the Sponsor or a subrecipient 
that is a private entity: 
 
   1. Is determined to have violated a prohibition in Paragraph 
(31)(A) of this Agreement; or  
 
   2. Has an employee who is determined by the Commission 
and/or FAA official authorized to terminate the Agreement to have violated a prohibition 
in Paragraph (31)(A)1. of this Agreement through conduct that is either: 
 
    a. Associated with performance under this Agreement; or  
 
    b. Imputed to the subrecipient using the standards and 
due process for imputing the conduct of an individual to an organization that are provided 
in 2 CFR Part 180, "OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Government-wide Debarment and 
Suspension (Nonprocurement)", as implemented by the FAA at 2 CFR Part 1200.  
 
  (C) The Sponsor must inform the Commission immediately of any 
information the Sponsor receives from any source alleging a violation of a prohibition in 
Paragraph (31)(A) during the time period of this Agreement. 
 
  (D) The Commission’s right to terminate unilaterally that is described in 
Paragraph (31)(A) above: 
 

1. Implements section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims 
Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA), as amended (22 U.S.C. § 7104(g)); and  

45

#4.



 
2. Is in addition to all other remedies for noncompliance that are 

available to the Commission and/or the FAA under this Agreement.  
 

(32) REQUIRED FEDERAL PROVISIONS: The Sponsor shall incorporate all 
required federal contract provisions that apply to this Project in its contract documents. 
 

(33) EMPLOYEE PROTECTION FROM REPRISAL:  
 
  (A) Prohibition of Reprisals:  
 
   1. In accordance with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, an employee of the 
Sponsor or a subgrantee may not be discharged, demoted, or otherwise discriminated 
against as a reprisal for disclosing to a person or body described in subparagraph (A)2, 
information that the employee reasonably believes is evidence of: 
 
    a. Gross mismanagement of a Federal grant; 
 
    b. Gross waste of Federal funds; 
 
    c. An abuse of authority relating to implementation or use 
of Federal funds; 
 
    d. A substantial and specific danger to public health or 
safety; or 
  
    e. A violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a 
Federal grant. 
 
   2. The persons and bodies to which a disclosure by an employee 
is covered are as follows: 
 
    a. A member of Congress or a representative of a 
committee of Congress; 
 
    b. An Inspector General; 
 
    c. The Government Accountability Office; 
 
    d. A Federal office or employee responsible for oversight 
of a grant program; 
 
    e. A court or grand jury; 
 
    f. A management office of the Sponsor or subgrantee; or 
 

46

#4.



    g. A Federal or State regulatory enforcement agency. 
 
  (B) Submission of Complaint: A person who believes that they have 
been subjected to a reprisal prohibited by Paragraph (33)(A) of this Agreement may 
submit a complaint regarding the reprisal to the Office of Inspector General for the 
USDOT. 
  (C) Time Limitation for Submittal of a Complaint: A complaint may not be 
brought under this subsection more than three (3) years after the date on which the 
alleged reprisal took place. 
  
  (D) Required Actions of the Inspector General: Actions, limitations, and 
exceptions of the Inspector General’s office are established under 41 U.S.C. § 4712(b). 
 
  (E) Assumption of Rights to Civil Remedy: Upon receipt of an 
explanation of a decision not to conduct or continue an investigation by the Office of 
Inspector General, the person submitting a complaint assumes the right to a civil remedy 
under 41 U.S.C. § 4712(c).  
 
 (34) BUY AMERICAN: Unless otherwise approved in advance by the FAA, in 
accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 50101, the Sponsor will not acquire or permit any contractor 
or subcontractor to acquire any steel or manufactured goods produced outside the United 
States to be used for any permitted use for which funds are provided under this 
Agreement. The Sponsor will include a provision implementing Buy American in every 
contract and subcontract issued under this Agreement. 
 
 (35) LIMITATIONS: Nothing provided herein shall be constructed to limit, cancel, 
annul, or modify the terms of any Federal grant agreement(s), including all terms and 
assurances related thereto, that have been entered into by the Sponsor and the 
Commission prior to the date of this Agreement.  
 
 (36) AIR AND WATER QUALITY: The Sponsor is required to comply with all 
applicable air and water quality standards for all projects funded pursuant to this 
Agreement. If the Sponsor fails to comply with this requirement, the Commission may 
suspend, cancel, or terminate this Agreement.  
 
 (37) FACE COVERINGS POLICY: The Sponsor agrees to implement a face-
covering (mask) policy to combat the spread of pathogens. This policy must include a 
requirement that all persons wear a mask, in accordance with Centers for Disease Control 
(CDC) and Transportation Security Administration (TSA) requirements, as applicable, at 
all times while in all public areas of the airport property, except to the extent exempted 
under those requirements. This special condition requires the Sponsor continue to require 
masks until Executive Order 13998, Promoting COVID-19 Safety in Domestic and 
International Travel, is no longer effective.   
 
 (38) FINANCIAL REPORTING AND PAYMENT REQUIREMENTS: The 
Commission and Sponsor will comply with all Federal financial reporting requirements 

47

#4.



and payment requirements, including submittal of timely and accurate reports.  
 
 (39) AIRPORT RESCUE GRANT ASSURANCES: The Airport Rescue Grant  
Assurances are required under the ARP Act and are attached to this Agreement. The 
Sponsor shall comply with these assurances to accomplish the requirements of this 
Agreement. The Airport Rescue Grant Assurances are hereby provided to the Sponsor 
as Exhibit A and incorporated into and made part of this Agreement. 
 

(40) EQUIPMENT OR VEHICLE REPLACEMENT: The Sponsor agrees to treat 
the proceeds from the trade-in or sale of equipment being replaced with these funds as 
airport revenue. 

 
 (41) EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION: The Sponsor agrees that for any equipment 
acquired with funds provided by this Agreement, such equipment shall be used solely for 
purposes directly related to the Airport. 
 
 
 (42) LOW EMISSION SYSTEMS: The Sponsor agrees that vehicles and 
equipment acquired with funds provided in this grant: 
 
  (A) Will be maintained and used at the Airport for which they were 
purchased; and 
 
  (B) Will not be transferred, relocated, or used at another Airport without 
the advance consent of the Commission on behalf of the FAA.  
 
The Sponsor further agrees that it will maintain annual records on individual vehicles and 
equipment, project expenses, cost effectiveness, and emission reductions.  
 
 (43) UTILITIES PRORATION: For purposes of computing the United States’ 
share of the allowable airport operations and maintenance costs, the allowable costs of 
utilities incurred by the Sponsor to operate and maintain the Airport included in this 
Agreement must not exceed the percent attributable to the capital or operating costs of 
the Airport.  
 
 (44) UTILITY RELOCATION IN GRANT: The Sponsor understands and agrees 
that: 
 
  (A) The Commission will not participate in the cost of any utility relocation 
unless and until the Sponsor has submitted evidence satisfactory to the Commission that 
the Sponsor is legally responsible for payment of such costs;  
 
  (B) ARP Act funding participation is limited to those utilities located on-
airport or off-airport only where the Sponsor has an easement for the utility; and 
 
  (C) The utilities must serve a purpose directly related to the Airport.  

48

#4.



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into and accepted this 
Agreement on the last date written below.  
 
 
 Executed by the Sponsor this _____ day of __________________, 20___. 
 
 Executed by the Commission this ____ day of ________________, 20____. 
 
 
 
MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND  
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION   CITY OF MOBERLY 
 
 
By _________________________  By ________________________ 
 
Title _______________________   Title ______________________ 
 
 
 
Attest:       Attest: 
 
____________________________  By _____________________________ 
Secretary to the Commission 
       Title ____________________________ 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
___________________________   
Commission Counsel    
 
 
 
 
 

49

#4.



CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR'S ATTORNEY 
 
 I, _______________________________, acting as attorney for the Sponsor, do 
hereby certify that in my opinion, the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing 
grant Agreement under the laws of the State of Missouri.  Further, I have examined the 
foregoing grant Agreement, and the actions taken by said Sponsor and Sponsor's official 
representative have been duly authorized and the execution thereof is in all respects due 
and proper and in accordance with the laws of the said state and the ARP Act.  The 
Sponsor understands funding made available under this grant Agreement may only be 
used to reimburse for airport operational and maintenance expenses, and debt service 
payments. The Sponsor further understands it may submit a separate request to use 
funds for new airport/project development purposes, subject to additional terms, 
conditions, and assurances. Further, it is my opinion that the said grant Agreement 
constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the Sponsor in accordance with the terms 
thereof.  
 
       SPONSOR:  CITY OF MOBERLY 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Name of Sponsor's Attorney (typed) 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Signature of Sponsor's Attorney 
 
       Date __________________________ 
 
 
  

50

#4.



 
 

EXHIBIT A  
AIRPORT RESCUE GRANT ASSURANCES 

AIRPORT SPONSORS 

A. General. 

1. These Airport Rescue Grant Assurances are required to be submitted as part of 
the application by sponsors requesting funds under the provisions of the 
Coronavirus Relief and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act of 2020 (ARP Act 
or “the Act”), Public Law Number, Public Law 116-260. As used herein, the term 
"public agency sponsor" means a public agency with control of a public-use 
airport; the term "private sponsor" means a private owner of a public-use airport; 
and the term "sponsor" includes both public agency sponsors and private 
sponsors. 

2. Upon acceptance of this ACRGP State Block Grant subaward offer by the 
sponsor, these assurances are incorporated into and become part of this Grant 
Agreement. 

B. Sponsor Certification. 

The Sponsor hereby assures and certifies, with respect to this ACRGP Grant that: 

It will comply with all applicable Federal laws, regulations, executive orders, 
policies, guidelines, and requirements as they relate to the application, 
acceptance, and use of Federal funds for this ACRGP Grant including but not 
limited to the following: 

FEDERAL LEGISLATION 

a. 49 U.S.C. Chapter 471, as applicable  
b. Davis-Bacon Act - 40 U.S.C. 276(a), et. seq. 
c. Federal Fair Labor Standards Act - 29 U.S.C. 201, et seq. 
d. Hatch Act - 5 U.S.C. 1501, et seq.2 
e. Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 

1970 Title 42 U.S.C. 4601, et seq. 
f. National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 - Section 106 - 16 U.S.C. 470(f). 
g. Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 - 16 U.S.C. 469 through 

469c. 
h. Native Americans Grave Repatriation Act - 25 U.S.C. Section 3001, et seq. 
i. Clean Air Act, P.L. 90-148, as amended. 
j. Coastal Zone Management Act, P.L. 93-205, as amended. 
k. Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 - Section 102(a) - 42 U.S.C. 4012a. 
l. Title 49, U.S.C., Section 303, (formerly known as Section 4(f)). 
m. Rehabilitation Act of 1973 - 29 U.S.C. 794. 
n. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252) 

(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin). 

51

#4.



o. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et 
seq.), prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability). 

p. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 - 42 U.S.C. 6101, et seq. 
q. American Indian Religious Freedom Act, P.L. 95-341, as amended. 
r. Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 - 42 U.S.C. 4151, et seq. 
s. Power plant and Industrial Fuel Use Act of 1978 - Section 403- 2 U.S.C. 8373. 
t. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act - 40 U.S.C. 327, et seq. 
u. Copeland Anti-kickback Act - 18 U.S.C. 874.1. 
v. National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 - 42 U.S.C. 4321, et seq. 
w. Wild and Scenic Rivers Act, P.L. 90-542, as amended. 
x. Single Audit Act of 1984 - 31 U.S.C. 7501, et seq. 2 
y. Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 - 41 U.S.C. 702 through 706. 
z. The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006, as amended 

(Pub. L. 109-282, as amended by section 6202 of Pub. L. 110-252). 

EXECUTIVE ORDERS 

a. Executive Order 11246 - Equal Employment Opportunity 

b. Executive Order 11990 - Protection of Wetlands 

c. Executive Order 11998 - Flood Plain Management 

d. Executive Order 12372 - Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs 

e. Executive Order 12699 - Seismic Safety of Federal and Federally Assisted New 
Building Construction 

f. Executive Order 12898 - Environmental Justice 

g.  Executive Order 14005 - Ensuring the Future Is Made in All of America by All of 
America’s Workers. 

FEDERAL REGULATIONS 

a. 2 CFR Part 180 - OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment 
and Suspension (Nonprocurement). 

b. 2 CFR Part 200 - Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. 3, 4  

c. 2 CFR Part 1200 - Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment. 
d. 28 CFR Part 35 - Discrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local 

Government Services. 
e. 28 CFR § 50.3 - U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title 

VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 
f. 29 CFR Part 1 - Procedures for predetermination of wage rates. 1 
g. 29 CFR Part 3 - Contractors and subcontractors on public building or public work 

financed in whole or part by loans or grants from the United States. 1 
h. 29 CFR Part 5 - Labor standards provisions applicable to contracts covering 

Federally financed and assisted construction (also labor standards provisions 
applicable to non-construction contracts subject to the Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act). 1 

52

#4.



i. 41 CFR Part 60 - Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal 
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor (Federal and Federally assisted 
contracting requirements). 1 

j. 49 CFR Part 20 - New restrictions on lobbying. 
k. 49 CFR Part 21 - Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the 

Department of Transportation - effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964. 

l. 49 CFR Part 23 - Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprise in Airport 
Concessions. 

m. 49 CFR Part 26 - Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in 
Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs. 

n. 49 CFR Part 27 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in Programs and 
Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance. 1 

o. 49 CFR Part 28 - Enforcement of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in 
Programs or Activities conducted by the Department of Transportation. 

p. 49 CFR Part 30 - Denial of public works contracts to suppliers of goods and 
services of countries that deny procurement market access to U.S. contractors. 

q. 49 CFR Part 32 - Government-wide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace 
(Financial Assistance). 

r. 49 CFR Part 37 - Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA). 
s. 49 CFR Part 41 - Seismic Safety.  

 

FOOTNOTES TO ASSURANCE ACRGP ASSURANCE B.1. 

1 These laws do not apply to airport planning sponsors. 
2  These laws do not apply to private sponsors. 
3 Cost principles established in 2 CFR Part 200 subpart E must be used as 

guidelines for determining the eligibility of specific types of expenses. 
4 Audit requirements established in 2 CFR Part 200 subpart F are the guidelines 

for audits. 

 

SPECIFIC ASSURANCES 

Specific assurances required to be included in grant agreements by any of the above 
laws, regulations, or circulars are incorporated by reference in this Grant Agreement. 

1. Purpose Directly Related to the Airport. It certifies that the reimbursement sought 
is for a purpose directly related to the Airport.  

2. Responsibility and Authority of the Sponsor. 

a. Public Agency Sponsor: 

It has legal authority to apply for this Grant, and to finance and carry out the 
proposed grant; that an official decision has been made by the applicant’s 
governing body authorizing the filing of the application, including all 
understandings and assurances contained therein, and directing and authorizing 

53

#4.



the person identified as the official representative of the applicant to act in 
connection with the application and to provide such additional information as may 
be required. 

b. Private Sponsor: 

It has legal authority to apply for this Grant and to finance and carry out the 
proposed Grant and comply with all terms, conditions, and assurances of this 
Grant Agreement. It shall designate an official representative and shall in writing 
direct and authorize that person to file this application, including all 
understandings and assurances contained therein; to act in connection with this 
application; and to provide such additional information as may be required. 

3.  Good Title. It, a public agency or the Federal government, holds good title, 
satisfactory to the Secretary, to the landing area of the Airport or site thereof, or will 
give assurance satisfactory to the Secretary that good title will be acquired. 

4. Preserving Rights and Powers. 

a. It will not take or permit any action which would operate to deprive it of any of the 
rights and powers necessary to perform any or all of the terms, conditions, and 
assurances in this Grant Agreement without the written approval of the 
Secretary, and will act promptly to acquire, extinguish, or modify any outstanding 
rights or claims of right of others which would interfere with such performance by 
the sponsor. This shall be done in a manner acceptable to the Secretary. 

b. If the sponsor is a private sponsor, it will take steps satisfactory to the Secretary 
to ensure that the Airport will continue to function as a public-use airport in 
accordance with this Grant Agreement. 

c. If an arrangement is made for management and operation of the Airport by any 
agency or person other than the sponsor or an employee of the sponsor, the 
sponsor will reserve sufficient rights and authority to ensure that the Airport will 
be operated and maintained in accordance Title 49, United States Code, the 
regulations, and the terms and conditions of this Grant Agreement. 

5. Consistency with Local Plans. Any project undertaken by this Grant Agreement is 
reasonably consistent with plans (existing at the time of submission of the ACGRP 
application or State subaward as applicable) of public agencies that are authorized 
by the State in which the project is located to plan for the development of the area 
surrounding the Airport. 

6. Consideration of Local Interest. It has given fair consideration to the interest of 
communities in or near where any project undertaken by this Grant Agreement may 
be located. 

7. Consultation with Users. In making a decision to undertake any airport 
development project undertaken by this Grant Agreement, it has undertaken 
reasonable consultations with affected parties using the Airport at which project(s) 
is/are proposed. 

8. Pavement Preventative Maintenance. With respect to a project undertaken by this 
Grant Agreement for the replacement or reconstruction of pavement at the Airport, it 

54

#4.



assures or certifies that it has implemented an effective Airport pavement 
maintenance-management program and it assures that it will use such program for 
the useful life of any pavement constructed, reconstructed, or repaired with Federal 
financial assistance at the Airport, including ACRGP funds provided under this Grant 
Agreement. It will provide such reports on pavement condition and pavement 
management programs as the Secretary determines may be useful. 

9. Accounting System, Audit, and Record Keeping Requirements. 

a. It shall keep all Grant accounts and records which fully disclose the amount and 
disposition by the recipient of the proceeds of this Grant, the total cost of the 
Grant in connection with which this Grant is given or used, and the amount or 
nature of that portion of the cost of the Grant supplied by other sources, and such 
other financial records pertinent to the Grant. The accounts and records shall be 
kept in accordance with an accounting system that will facilitate an effective audit 
in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984. 

b. It shall make available to the Secretary and the Comptroller General of the 
United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives, for the purpose of 
audit and examination, any books, documents, papers, and records of the 
recipient that are pertinent to this Grant. The Secretary may require that an 
appropriate audit be conducted by a recipient. In any case in which an 
independent audit is made of the accounts of a sponsor relating to the disposition 
of the proceeds of a Grant or relating to the Grant in connection with which this 
Grant was given or used, it shall file a certified copy of such audit with the 
Comptroller General of the United States not later than six (6) months following 
the close of the fiscal year for which the audit was made. 

10. Minimum Wage Rates. It shall include, in all contracts in excess of $2,000 for work 
on any projects funded under this Grant Agreement which involve labor, provisions 
establishing minimum rates of wages, to be predetermined by the Secretary of 
Labor, in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 276a-276a-
5), which contractors shall pay to skilled and unskilled labor, and such minimum 
rates shall be stated in the invitation for bids and shall be included in proposals or 
bids for the work. 

11. Veteran's Preference. It shall include in all contracts for work on any project funded 
under this Grant Agreement which involve labor, such provisions as are necessary to 
insure that, in the employment of labor (except in executive, administrative, and 
supervisory positions), preference shall be given to Vietnam era veterans, Persian 
Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-Iraq war veterans, disabled veterans, and small business 
concerns owned and controlled by disabled veterans as defined in Section 47112 of 
Title 49, United States Code. However, this preference shall apply only where the 
individuals are available and qualified to perform the work to which the employment 
relates. 

12. Operation and Maintenance. 
a. The Airport and all facilities which are necessary to serve the aeronautical users 

of the Airport, other than facilities owned or controlled by the United States, shall 
be operated at all times in a safe and serviceable condition and in accordance 

55

#4.



with the minimum standards as may be required or prescribed by applicable 
Federal, state and local agencies for maintenance and operation. It will not cause 
or permit any activity or action thereon which would interfere with its use for 
airport purposes. It will suitably operate and maintain the Airport and all facilities 
thereon or connected therewith, with due regard to climatic and flood conditions. 
Any proposal to temporarily close the Airport for non-aeronautical purposes must 
first be approved by the Secretary. In furtherance of this assurance, the sponsor 
will have in effect arrangements for- 

1) Operating the Airport's aeronautical facilities whenever required. 
2) Promptly marking and lighting hazards resulting from airport conditions, 

including temporary conditions; and 
3) Promptly notifying airmen of any condition affecting aeronautical use of the 

Airport. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require that the 
Airport be operated for aeronautical use during temporary periods when 
snow, flood or other climatic conditions interfere with such operation and 
maintenance. Further, nothing herein shall be construed as requiring the 
maintenance, repair, restoration, or replacement of any structure or facility 
which is substantially damaged or destroyed due to an act of God or other 
condition or circumstance beyond the control of the sponsor. 

b. It will suitably operate and maintain noise compatibility program items that it owns 
or controls upon which Federal funds have been expended. 

13.  Hazard Removal and Mitigation. It will take appropriate action to assure that such 
terminal airspace as is required to protect instrument and visual operations to the 
Airport (including established minimum flight altitudes) will be adequately cleared and 
protected by removing, lowering, relocating, marking, or lighting or otherwise 
mitigating existing airport hazards and by preventing the establishment or creation of 
future airport hazards. 

14. Compatible Land Use. It will take appropriate action, to the extent reasonable, 
including the adoption of zoning laws, to restrict the use of land adjacent to or in the 
immediate vicinity of the Airport to activities and purposes compatible with normal 
airport operations, including landing and takeoff of aircraft. 

15.  Exclusive Rights. The sponsor shall not grant an exclusive right to use an air 
navigation facility on which this Grant has been expended. However, providing 
services at an airport by only one fixed-based operator is not an exclusive right if— 

a.  it is unreasonably costly, burdensome, or impractical for more than one fixed-
based operator to provide the services; and 

b.  allowing more than one fixed-based operator to provide the services requires a 
reduction in space leased under an agreement existing on September 3, 1982, 
between the operator and the Airport.  

16.  Airport Revenues. 

a. This Grant shall be available for any purpose for which airport revenues may 
lawfully be used to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus. Funds 
provided under this ACRGP State Block Grant Agreement will only be expended 
for the capital or operating costs of the Airport; the local airport system; or other 

56

#4.



local facilities which are owned or operated by the owner or operator of the 
Airport(s) subject to this Agreement and all applicable addendums for costs 
related to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization, janitorial services, 
combating the spread of pathogens at the Airport, and debt service payments as 
prescribed in the Act. 

b. For airport development, 49 U.S.C. § 47133 applies. 

17. Reports and Inspections. 

It will: 

a. submit to the Secretary such annual or special financial and operations reports 
as the Secretary may reasonably request and make such reports available to 
the public; make available to the public at reasonable times and places a 
report of the Airport budget in a format prescribed by the Secretary; 

b. in a format and time prescribed by the Secretary, provide to the Secretary and 
make available to the public following each of its fiscal years, an annual report 
listing in detail: 
1. all amounts paid by the Airport to any other unit of government and the 

purposes for which each such payment was made; and 
2. all services and property provided by the Airport to other units of 

government and the amount of compensation received for provision of 
each such service and property. 

18. Land for Federal Facilities. It will furnish without cost to the Federal Government for 
use in connection with any air traffic control or air navigation activities, or weather-
reporting and communication activities related to air traffic control, any areas of land 
or water, or estate therein, or rights in buildings of the sponsor as the Secretary 
considers necessary or desirable for construction, operation, and maintenance at 
Federal expense of space or facilities for such purposes. Such areas or any portion 
thereof will be made available as provided herein within four months after receipt of a 
written request from the Secretary. 

 
19. Airport Layout Plan. 

a. Subject to the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018, Public Law 115-254, Section 
163, it will keep up to date at all times an airport layout plan of the Airport 
showing: 
1) boundaries of the Airport and all proposed additions thereto, together with the 

boundaries of all offsite areas owned or controlled by the sponsor for airport 
purposes and proposed additions thereto; 

2) the location and nature of all existing and proposed airport facilities and 
structures (such as runways, taxiways, aprons, terminal buildings, hangars 
and roads), including all proposed extensions and reductions of existing airport 
facilities; 

3) the location of all existing and proposed non-aviation areas and of all existing 
improvements thereon; and 

4) all proposed and existing access points used to taxi aircraft across the 
Airport’s property boundary.  Such Airport layout plans and each amendment, 

57

#4.



revision, or modification thereof, shall be subject to the approval of the 
Secretary which approval shall be evidenced by the signature of a duly 
authorized representative of the Secretary on the face of the Airport layout 
plan. The sponsor will not make or permit any changes or alterations in the 
Airport or any of its facilities which are not in conformity with the airport layout 
plan as approved by the Secretary and which might, in the opinion of the 
Secretary, adversely affect the safety, utility or efficiency of the Airport. 

b. Subject to the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018, Public Law 115-254, Section 
163, if a change or alteration in the Airport or the facilities is made which the 
Secretary determines adversely affects the safety, utility, or efficiency of any 
federally owned, leased, or funded property on or off the Airport and which is not 
in conformity with the airport layout plan as approved by the Secretary, the owner 
or operator will, if requested, by the Secretary (1) eliminate such adverse effect in 
a manner approved by the Secretary; or (2) bear all costs of relocating such 
property (or replacement thereof) to a site acceptable to the Secretary and all 
costs of restoring such property (or replacement thereof) to the level of safety, 
utility, efficiency, and cost of operation existing before the unapproved change in 
the Airport or its facilities except in the case of a relocation or replacement of an 
existing airport facility due to a change in the Secretary’s design standards 
beyond the control of the airport sponsor. 

20. Civil Rights. It will promptly take any measures necessary to ensure that no person 
in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, 
age, or disability be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
otherwise subjected to discrimination in any activity conducted with, or benefiting 
from, funds received from this Grant. 

a. Using the definitions of activity, facility, and program as found and defined in §§ 
21.23 (b) and 21.23 (e) of 49 CFR Part 21, the sponsor will facilitate all programs, 
operate all facilities, or conduct all programs in compliance with all non-
discrimination requirements imposed by or pursuant to these assurances. 

b. Applicability 
1. Programs and Activities. If the sponsor has received a grant (or other Federal 

assistance) for any of the sponsor’s program or activities, these requirements 
extend to all of the sponsor’s programs and activities. 

2. Facilities. Where it receives a grant or other Federal financial assistance to 
construct, expand, renovate, remodel, alter, or acquire a facility, or part of a 
facility, the assurance extends to the entire facility and facilities operated in 
connection therewith. 

3. Real Property. Where the sponsor receives a grant or other Federal financial 
assistance in the form of, or for the acquisition of, real property or an interest in 
real property, the assurance will extend to rights to space on, over, or under 
such property. 

c. Duration. 

The sponsor agrees that it is obligated to this assurance for the period during 
which Federal financial assistance is extended to the program, except where the 
Federal financial assistance is to provide, or is in the form of, personal property, or 
real property, or interest therein, or structures or improvements thereon, in which 

58

#4.



case the assurance obligates the sponsor, or any transferee for the longer of the 
following periods: 

1. So long as the Airport is used as an airport, or for another purpose involving 
the provision of similar services or benefits; or 

2. So long as the sponsor retains ownership or possession of the property. 
d. Required Solicitation Language.  

It will include the following notification in all solicitations for bids, Requests for 
Proposals for work, or material under this Grant and in all proposals for 
agreements, including airport concessions, regardless of funding source: 

“The (Name of Sponsor), in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the 
Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that for any 
contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business 
enterprises and airport concession disadvantaged business enterprises will be 
afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and 
will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in 
consideration for an award.” 

e. Required Contract Provisions. 

1. It will insert the non-discrimination contract clauses requiring compliance with 
the acts and regulations relative to non-discrimination in Federally-assisted 
programs of the DOT, and incorporating the acts and regulations into the 
contracts by reference in every contract or agreement subject to the non-
discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the DOT Acts and regulations. 

2. It will include a list of the pertinent non-discrimination authorities in every 
contract that is subject to the non-discrimination acts and regulations. 

3. It will insert non-discrimination contract clauses as a covenant running with the 
land, in any deed from the United States effecting or recording a transfer of 
real property, structures, use, or improvements thereon or interest therein to a 
sponsor. 

4. It will insert non-discrimination contract clauses prohibiting discrimination 
based on race, color, national origin, creed, sex, age, or handicap as a 
covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, license, permits, 
or similar instruments entered into by the sponsor with other parties: 
A. For the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under 

the applicable activity, grant, or program; and 
B. For the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real 

property acquired or improved under the applicable activity, grant, or 
program. 

f. It will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by 
the Secretary to give reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, sub-recipients, 
sub-grantees, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, transferees, successors in 
interest, and other participants of Federal financial assistance under such 

59

#4.



program will comply with all requirements imposed or pursuant to the acts, the 
regulations, and this assurance. 

g. It agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with 
regard to any matter arising under the acts, the regulations, and this assurance. 

21. Foreign Market Restrictions. It will not allow funds provided under this Grant to be 
used to fund any activity that uses any product or service of a foreign country during 
the period in which such foreign country is listed by the United States Trade 
Representative as denying fair and equitable market opportunities for products and 
suppliers of the United States in procurement and construction. 

22. Policies, Standards and Specifications. It will carry out any project funded under 
an Airport Coronavirus Relief Program Grant in accordance with policies, standards, 
and specifications approved by the Secretary including, but not limited to, the 
advisory circulars listed in the Current FAA Advisory Circulars for AIP projects, and 
included in this grant, and in accordance with applicable state policies, standards, 
and specifications approved by the Secretary. 

23. Access By Intercity Buses. The airport owner or operator will permit, to the 
maximum extent practicable, intercity buses or other modes of transportation to have 
access to the Airport; however, it has no obligation to fund special facilities for 
intercity buses or for other modes of transportation. 

24. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises. The sponsor shall not discriminate based on 
race, color, national origin or sex in the award and performance of any DOT-assisted 
contract covered by 49 CFR Part 26, or in the award and performance of any 
concession activity contract covered by 49 CFR Part 23. In addition, the sponsor shall 
not discriminate based on race, color, national origin or sex in the administration of its 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and Airport Concessions Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise (ACDBE) programs or the requirements of 49 CFR Parts 23 and 
26. The sponsor shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Parts 
23 and 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of DOT-
assisted contracts, and/or concession contracts. The sponsor’s DBE and ACDBE 
programs, as required by 49 CFR Parts 26 and 23, and as approved by DOT, are 
incorporated by reference in this Agreement. Implementation of these programs is a 
legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this 
Agreement. Upon notification to the sponsor of its failure to carry out its approved 
program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under Parts 26 and 
23 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 
1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1936 (31 U.S.C. 3801). 

25. Acquisition Thresholds. The FAA deems equipment to mean tangible personal 
property having a useful life greater than one year and a per-unit acquisition cost 
equal to or greater than $5,000. Procurements by micro-purchase means the 
acquisition of goods or services for which the aggregate dollar amount does not 
exceed $10,000, unless authorized in accordance with 2 CFR § 200.320. 
Procurement by small purchase procedures means those relatively simple and 
informal procurement methods for securing goods or services that do not exceed the 
$250,000 threshold for simplified acquisitions. 

60

#4.



 

61

#4.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Comm. Dev. 

Date: December 19, 2022 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Amending Chapter 46 Of The City Code To Include A 

Landscape Plan For Certain Districts By Adding New Sections 46-207, 46-

208, 46-209 And 46-210, And Amending Existing Sections 46-202, 46-203, 

46-203 And 46-205 And Repealing Sections 46-302, 46-303 And 46-304. 

  

Summary: The attached Landscape Plan was drafted and developed after comparison with other 

communities like Troy, MO; St. Anne, MO; Warrensburg, MO; and other 

communities of similar size to Moberly.  The result is a Landscape Plan that will 

apply to both Residential and Commercial sites within Moberly, MO.  This will 

provide a clearer understanding of the acceptable plans that are requested as a 

component of the Site Plan and Development Process.  It also will provide guidance 

with respect to modification in the street frontage of Residential homes in Moberly. 

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval for the request of this 

text amendment. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this ordinance. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report   x    Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

62

#5.



 

 

 BILL NO: __________________ 
   

 

ORDINANCE NO: ______________  

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 46 OF THE CITY CODE TO INCLUDE A 

LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR CERTAIN DISTRICTS BY ADDING NEW SECTIONS 46-

207, 46-208, 46-209 AND 46-210, AND AMENDING EXISTING SECTIONS 46-202, 46-
203, 46-203 AND 46-205 AND REPEALING SECTIONS 46-302, 46-303 AND 46-304. 

 

Whereas, city staff submitted an application on October 1, 2022, to the Planning and 
Zoning Commission proposing amendments to Chapter 46 of the City Code to specify 
landscaping requirements for certain districts; and 
 

Whereas, a public hearing was held on October 31, 2022, before the City of Moberly, 
Missouri, Planning and Zoning Commission to consider the application filed by Moberly City 
Staff at which time the application was approved; and 
 

Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of the proposed text 
amendment; and 
 

Whereas, the Moberly City Council hereby adopts the recommendations of the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and enacts amendments to the city code as follows. 
 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI TO WIT: 

 

  
SECTION ONE: Chapter 46 of the city code is hereby amended to include the 

following new provisions: 
 
Sec. 46-207.- Residential Districts Landscaping.  It shall be at the discretion of the 

individual property owners to landscape their lots; however, at any given time the following 
provisions shall apply: 

 
(1)  No tree or ground cover shall be planted of a type of species apt to destroy, impair, or 

otherwise interfere with any street improvements, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, sewer, or other 
public improvements.  The discarding of landscape related materials in the right of way shall be 
subject to the Nuisance regulations of Chapter 26.  The property owner shall contact the City 
prior to landscaping within any street right of way or utility easement. 

 
(2)  Vines of climbing plants growing over street signs, fire hydrants, or other public 

property shall be removed by the property owner. 
 
(3)  On a corner lot, no planting or other obstruction to vision extending to a height in 

excess of twenty-four (24) inches above the established street grade shall be erected, planted or 
maintained within the sight distance as established per Section 46-3. 

 
(4)  All landscaping shall be properly maintained according to City ordinances presently in 

effect.  A minimum of fifty percent (50%) of all yard areas shall be comprised of natural grass.  
Natural grass refers to all species of grass that are perennial and are typically used for lawns 
such as, but not limited to, Kentucky Bluegrass or perennial ryegrass.  Driveways shall not 

63

#5.



calculate into this requirement.  Front yard landscaping (and side/rear yards abutting a street on 
corner lots) shall require a majority of natural grasses.  Trees shall not be planted within six (6) 
feet of a property line in the side and rear yard.  The individual property owner shall be 
responsible for such maintenance. 

 
(5)  For all multiple-family zoning districts, “R-3”, a landscape plan shall accompany, or be 

a part of, each site plan, and no site plan shall be approved without the Planning and Zoning 
Commission’s review and approval of said landscape plan.  The landscape plan shall contain 
size, type and location of plantings.  All “R-2” Two-Family Residential Zoning Districts shall 
be required to have a landscape plan which may be approved by the Administrative Officer or 
forwarded to the Planning and Zoning Commission for its review and approval at the discretion 
of the Administrative Officer.  Landscaping to be completed prior to the issuance of a final 
occupancy permit for the structure(s). 

 
 (a) Exception to the landscape plan requirement for R-2 Two Family Residential 

Districts applies when a single lot is being redeveloped as a single in-fill type lot. 
 
(6)  In all residential zoning districts, above-ground fuel storage tanks shall be thoroughly 

screened (70% blocked visibility or more) with appropriate materials or landscaping to conceal 
their visibility from the right-or-way and neighboring properties. 

 
(7)  All trees shall be planted so as to maintain a minimum fifteen (15) foot setback from 

all levees. 
 
Sec. 46-208.- Non-Residential Districts (Commercial/Industrial).  In “B” (Commercial) 

and “M” Districts, the landscaping/screening requirements are as follows: 
 
(1)  Screening Requirements. 
 
 (a)  All screening and buffering requirements previously set forth in the individual 

districts, conditional use permit, or Planned Development (PD) agreement shall be the 
responsibility of the lot owner or developer to install and maintain. 

 
 (b)  When off-street parking areas for six (6) or more vehicles are located within or 

are adjoining a residential district, and where such parking areas are not entirely screened 
visually from such lot by an intervening building or structure, a continuous, visual screen with 
minimum height of six (6) feet shall be provided between the parking area and the said lot or 
residential district.  Such screen shall consist of a solid fence or masonry wall, a compact 
evergreen hedge or foliage screening may be approved as an alternative by the Administrative 
Officer.  Screening shall meet the requirements for buffering between districts per Sections 46-
199 through 46-206. 

 
 (c)  Protective Screening.  When off-street loading areas are located within or 

adjacent to a residential district, and where such loading areas are not entirely screened visually 
by an intervening building or structure, a continuous visual screen with a minimum height of 
eight (8) feet shall be provided between the loading area and the said lot or residential district.  
Such screen shall consist of a solid fence or a masonry wall, a compact evergreen hedge or 
foliage screening may be approved as an alternative by the Administrative Officer.  Screening 
shall meet the requirements for buffering between districts per Sections 46-199 through 46-206. 

 
(2)  Landscaping Requirements. 
 
 (a)  A landscape plan shall accompany, or be a part of, each site plan, and no site 

plan shall be approved without the Planning and Zoning Commission’s approval of said 
landscape plan.  This landscape plan shall include size, type and location of plantings and shall 
include parking lot planting islands, perimeter plantings, and similar landscape features. 

64

#5.



 
 
 
 
 (b) Where off-street parking spaces are provided, a minimum of ten (10) square feet 

of landscaping shall be provided or as approved by the Commission.  While no specific tree 
species or plantings are given in this Chapter, the developer or owner shall be expected to 
provide sufficient landscaping details on the plans at the time of submittal.  The use of earth 
berms or sculpting shall be encouraged provided these are designed in an area of enough size so 
as to cause no erosion, drainage or maintenance problems. 

 
Sec. 46-209.- Screening and Landscaping.   All off-street parking facilities, with the 

exception of a single-family dwelling or a two-family dwelling, shall be screened and 
landscaped in accordance with the following design standards and Section 46-203. 

 
(1)  Planting Strip Along Property Lines. 
 
 (a)  Along each property line of the zoning lot, a planting strip of four (4) feet 

minimum width shall be provided between said property line and the off-street parking 
facilities.  Where parking facilities for non-residential uses abut a residential district, a sight-
proof fence or hedge of not less than six (6) feet in height shall be provided along the perimeter 
of the off-street parking facility within the planting strip herein described and in agreement 
with Section 46-203. 

 
 (b)  In the case of a common/shared driveway entrance/exit the requirement for a 

four (4) feet minimum width planting strip will be waived.  However, the remainder of the site 
shall contain sufficient additional landscaped areas to compensate for the loss of the planting 
strip or a portion thereof. 

 
(2)  All off-street parking facilities shall be appropriately broken by linear planting strips or 

variable shaped islands in the interior of the facility.  Such planting strips or islands shall be 
satisfactorily landscaped with trees or other suitable vegetation and shall constitute no less than 
five percent (5%) of the total area of the off-street parking facility excluding the four (4) foot 
planting strip previously mentioned. 

 
(3)  The selection of trees, hedges and other planting materials shall be approved by the 

Commission on recommendation by the Administrative Officer. 
 
(4)  All screening and landscaping shall be installed in conformance with the “Corner 

Visibility” restrictions in this Chapter. 
 
(5)  The selection of trees, hedges, and other planting materials shall be as approved on the 

landscape plan.  Minor modifications to the landscape plan may be approved by the 
Administrative Officer.  Substantial modifications shall be reviewed and approved by the 
Planning Commission. 

 
Sec. 46-210.- Occupancy Permit.  Prior to issuance of a final occupancy permit, all 

landscaping indicated on the approved site development plan shall be installed.  If installation 
of landscape materials cannot be accomplished due to weather conditions or other factors, an 
escrow shall be established to guarantee purchase and installation of all landscape materials.  
The escrow shall be submitted for approval by the Administrative Officer.  Upon installation of 
the landscape materials, the escrow shall be released by the City. 

 
 
 
 

65

#5.



 
 
 
 
SECTION TWO:  Sections 46-202, 46-203, 46-204 and 46-205 are hereby amended to 

provide as follows: 
 
 Sec. 46-202. – Transition buffer general provisions. 
   

  (a) Location of buffers.  Transition buffers shall be located along those     
portions of a site that are along those portions of adjoining lots with a different 
zoning classification that require a buffer. 

  (b) Responsibility for installing buffers.  The developing property shall 
always be responsible for providing required buffers. 

 
 Sec. 46-203. – Transition buffer specifications. 

 
 When a transition buffer is required by this Code, such transition buffer shall 

consist of a planting screen, landscaped berm or a fence screen meeting the 
specifications herein. 

 
  (1) Planting screens.  Planting screens shall consist of trees, bushes or 

shrubs of a variety and so planted and kept as to be achieved within 36 months after 
occupancy of the premises to be screened. 

  a.  Such screen shall have a minimum height of six feet above grade at any 
particular point along its length. 

  b.  Any two-foot square segment of a planting screen shall contain no more 
than 30 percent open space affording a direct horizontal view through such screen if 
such segment is over two feet above grade. 

 
  (2)  Landscaped berm.  Adequate evidence shall be furnished demonstrating 

that the construction of such berm, along with any necessary culverts and ditching, 
will not create adverse drainage and flooding conditions on adjacent property. 

  a.  Such berm shall be at least 30 feet in width at the base and at least four 
feet in height, as measured perpendicular to grade level at any point along its 
length.  Side slopes shall have a gradient no steeper than three to one. 

  b.  Side slopes of such berm shall be sodded or sealed so as to prevent 
erosion.  The top of the berm shall contain a planting screen above except that the 
minimum height of such planting screen need be no more than three feet above the 
top of the berm at any particular point along its length.  Construction and material 
of such berm shall be as approved by the zoning board of adjustment. 

 
  (3)  Fence screen.  A fence screen shall not be less than six feet, nor more 

than eight feet, in height above grade level, at any particular point along its length.  
Any two-foot square segment of such screen shall contain no more than 30 percent 
open space affording a direct horizontal view through such screen.  Construction 
and material of such fence screen shall be as approved by the planning and zoning 
commission. 

 
 Sec. 46-204.- Transition buffer requirements. 
 

 Landscape buffers shall be provided and maintained when certain land uses are 
adjoining one another.  This requirement is intended to help ease the land use 
transition between areas of varying development intensity and to ensure land use 
compatibility. 

 
66

#5.



  
  (1)  Determination transition buffer requirements.  The following procedure 

shall be followed in determining if a transition buffer is required.  Using the matrix 
in subsection (2) of this section, transition buffer requirements, of this article: 

  a.  Identify the minimum zoning classification required to accommodate the 
proposed use.  These classifications are listed under proposed zoning in the first 
column. 

  b.  For transition buffer requirements, identify the actual zoning 
classification of the abutting sites.  These classifications are listed under the 
heading, adjoining zoning. 

  c.   Determine if a transition buffer is required by crossing the previously 
identified proposed zoning with the adjoining zoning.  The letter “R” indicates that 
a transition buffer is required, otherwise, no transition buffer is required. 

 
  (2)  Transition buffer requirements. 
   
   TRANSITION BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 
 
The heading in the second column of the matrix in subsection (2) is changed from 

“Adjacent zoning” to “Adjoining zoning”. 
 
 Sec. 46-205. – Dumpster screening. 

 
 Dumpsters for solid waste located in B-1, B-2, B-3 and M-1 districts shall be 

completely screened from view of roadways and adjoining sites by fences, walls or 
vegetative screens.  The screen shall be designed to accommodate refuse hauling 
equipment and provide complete visual screening of the dumpster and be 
compatible in material and color with the principal structure on the lot. 

 
SECTION THREE:  Sec. 46-302, Sec 46-303 and Sec. 46-304 are hereby repealed. 
 
 
 
SECTION FOUR: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon passage by the 

Moberly City Council. 
                     

 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 19th day 

of December, 2022. 

        

____________________________ 
Presiding Officer at Meeting  

ATTEST:  

_______________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk  
 

67

#5.



68

#5.



69

#5.



70

#5.



71

#5.



72

#5.



73

#5.



74

#5.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: Public Works 

Date: December 19, 2022 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Approving A Cooperative Agreement With Moberly 

Community Foundation. 

  

Summary: We have an area of trail/Street on the South end of town, W. Urbandale Dr. 

that between the RR Tracks and S. Williams has no secondary power on poles 

and no residences fronting this area.  It is very dark, and we have significant 

trail use in the mornings and evening with people concerned about the dark 

conditions.  We have put up lighting for street and trail coverage all along here 

where we could, but without secondary power available on these poles, this 

area remains very dark.   

 

I have attached a quote from Brian Blackburn (Ameren) to install secondary 

along here and while it’s not overly expensive, however we don’t have a 

funding source that I can cover it from.  I have requested financial assistance 

from Ameren and the Brian (City of Moberly).  Ameren thinks they could 

come up with at least $500 in the upcoming budget year and Brian felt like the 

City could contribute $1,000, so the third-party group would need to come up 

with the remaining total to cover the installation of secondary power 

($3,827.66 + MCF fee), and I am proposing that the City would support the 

ongoing monthly operational costs under our street light program, if outside 

donations can raise enough funds to cover the remainder of secondary power 

cost.  

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this ordinance. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

  

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 

 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report   x    Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

75

#6.



 

 

BILL NO.        ORDINANCE NO.     

 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT WITH MOBERLY 

COMMUNITY FOUNDATION. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI, TO-WIT: 

 

 SECTION ONE:   Attached hereto is a Cooperative Agreement with the Moberly 

Community Foundation to assist with fundraising for the installation of light poles on Urbandale 

Avenue.  

SECTION TWO:  The City Council hereby approves the Cooperative Agreement and 

hereby authorizes the Mayor of Moberly to execute said Agreement on behalf of the City. 

 SECTION THREE:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and adoption by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, and its signature by the 

officer presiding at the meeting at which it was passed and adopted and further the Council 

authorizes the City Manager to take such other and further action as may be required to accomplish 

the purposes of this Ordinance. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 19th day 

of December, 2022.   

       _____________________________ 

ATTEST:      Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

   ____________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk  

76

#6.



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR FUNDING LIGHT POLES 

 

 THIS COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR FUNDING LIGHT POLES (this “Agreement”) is made and 
entered into as of the ____ day of ________________2022 by and between the CITY OF MOBERLY, 
MISSOURI a third-class city and a Missouri municipal corporation having a principal office at 101 West 
Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270 (the “City”), and the MOBERLY COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
(“MCF”), a Missouri nonprofit corporation,  (“MCF”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

 A. Sections 70.210 through 70.320 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, 
authorize Missouri municipalities to contract with any private person, firm, association or corporation 
for the planning, development, construction, acquisition, or operation of any public improvement or 
facility, or for a common service, provided, that the subject and purposes of any such contract or 
cooperative action are within the scope of the powers of such municipality. 
 
 B. MCF desires to participate in providing safe, lighted sidewalks and trails for Moberly 
residents in the Urbandale neighborhood in Moberly, Missouri by serving as a conduit to pass donated 
funds to the City to offset installation costs for three light poles on Urbandale Street. 
 
 C. The City is a willing to coordinate and pay for costs associated with the installation of 
three light poles provided a certain threshold of donations are received prior to the start of the project.  
MCF will accept donations to pass along to the City to offset installation costs. 
 
 D. The Parties have received a quote from Ameren in the amount of $3,827.66 for the 
installation of three light poles with secondary power on Urbandale Street.  

 

AGREEMENT 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants and agreements 

contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto do hereby covenant and agree as follows: 

 

 1. The Project. The City agrees to undertake the installation of three light poles by 

contracting with Ameren for the project.  The City agrees to make payment to Ameren for the estimated 

cost of the project.  The City will be responsible for the coordination and administration of the project.  

The City’s obligation to start the project is conditioned upon MCF receiving at least $2,827.66 in 

donations for the project. 

  

2. Reimbursement and Contributions. The City agrees to contribute $1,000.00 to the costs 

of the light poles and the monthly costs of electrical service.  Costs in excess of these contributions may 

be paid by the City prior to the City having received any contributions from MCF.  In this instance MCF 

agrees to reimburse the City for those monies in an amount not to exceed $2,827.66 

77

#6.



 3. Donations. 

MCF agrees to begin actively accepting contributions for the Project from all interested parties upon the 

execution of this Agreement.  MCF is hereby obligated to pass those donations along to the City. If, 

within one year’s time from the execution of the Agreement, MCF does not receive the minimum 

$2,827.66 in donations then their obligation to accept and pass along donations for the project shall 

end.  Any donations received may then be refunded by MCF. 

 4. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity; Limited Public Liability; No Personal Liability.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or deemed to constitute a waiver of the City’s sovereign 

immunity.  The parties hereto agree that in no event shall the City or any of its officials, agents, 

attorneys, employees, or representatives have any liability in damages or any other monetary liability to  

MCF and Ameren or any successor, assign, heir or personal representative of MCF and Ameren in 

respect of any suit, claim, or cause of action arising out of this Agreement and MCF hereby waives any 

such claim.  No official, officer, agent, attorney, employee, or representative of the City shall be 

personally liable to MCF or Ameren or the successors, assigns, heirs or personal representatives of MCF 

or Ameren in the event of any default or breach by any party under this Agreement. 

5. Notices.  Any Notice required by this Agreement shall be deemed given if deposited in 

the United States Mail, first class, postage prepaid and addressed as hereinafter specified. 

If to the City:  City of Moberly 
   101 West Reed Street – City Hall 
   Moberly, Missouri 65270 
   Attn: City Manager 
 
If to MCF:  Moberly Community Foundation 
   P.O. Box 32 
   Moberly, MO  65270 
   Attn: Chairman 
 

Each party shall have the right to specify that notice is to be addressed to another address by giving to 

the other party Ten (10) days written notice thereof. 

 6. Entire Agreement; Amendment. The parties agree that this Agreement 

constitutes the entire agreement between them and that no other agreements or representations other 

than those contained in this Agreement have been made by the parties.  This Agreement shall be 

amended only in writing and effective when signed by the authorized agents of the parties and when 

authorized and approved by the Moberly City Council. 

 7. Relationship of the Parties; No Third Party Right. Nothing contained in this 

Agreement nor any act of MCF, Ameren or the City shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership 

or agency relationship between the parties, or their agents or representatives and this Agreement is and 

shall be limited to the specific purposes set out in this Agreement.  Other than as expressly provided in 

this Agreement, no party shall be the agent of, or have any rights to create any obligations or liabilities 

binding on, the other party.  The parties do not intend to confer any benefit under this Agreement on 

any person or entity other than the named parties hereto. 

78

#6.



 8. Severability. In the event any term or provision of this Agreement is held to be 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder shall continue in full force and effect, 

to the extent the remainder can be given effect without the invalid provision. 

 9. Binding Effect. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the 

covenants, conditions and agreements contained in this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of 

MCF, the City, and Ameren and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

 10. Choice of Law; Venue. This Agreement and its performance shall be governed by and 

construed by the laws of the State of Missouri applicable to contracts made and to be performed wholly 

within such state, without regard to choice or conflict of laws provisions.  The parties hereto agree that 

any action at law, suite in equity, or other judicial proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be 

instituted only in the Circuit Court of Randolph County, Missouri or in the Federal District Court for the 

Eastern District of Missouri and waive any objections based upon venue or forum non conveniens or 

otherwise. 

 11. Execution; Counterparts. Each person executing this Agreement in a 

representative capacity warrants and represents that he or she has authority to do so, and upon request 

by the other party, proof of such authority will be furnished to the requesting party.  This Agreement 

may be executed at different times and in two or more counterparts, and all counterparts so executed 

shall for all purposes constitute one and the same instrument, binding on the parties hereto, 

notwithstanding that both parties may not have executed the same counterpart.  In proving this 

Agreement, it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart 

executed by the party against whom enforcement is sought.   

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City, MCF and Ameren have each caused this Agreement to be 

executed in multiple original counterparts in their respective names and attested to as of the date first 

above written. 

       
 
 
 
 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
      (the “City”) 
 
      By: ____________________________________ 
            Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
By: ____________________________ 
Shannon Hance, City Clerk 
 
      Moberly Community Foundation 
 
 
 

79

#6.



      By:______________________________________ 
      Bob Riley, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:____________________________ 
Greg Hodge, Secretary 
 
 
       
 
 
 
       
 
       

 

 

 

80

#6.



 
 
CHRGPRNT                        AMEREN MISSOURI
08/27/22               PRICE QUOTATION AND AUTHORIZATION
COMPANY: UEC    REGION: 019    DISTRICT: 2DLD    W/R# 104771     CREW HQ: 06NXXX
STATUS: 20 ON 01/13/22 DESIGN               SCHEME NUMBER:              WPA: 270
PROJECT NAME: QUOTE JOB - SIMP - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION           TAX AREA: 065270
JOB ADDRESS: 0,URBANDALE,MOBERLY                             PREMISE:
JOB DESCRIPTION: SYSTEM WORK
================================================================================
NON-STANDARD CHARGES:                                              $4,165.66
CUSTOMER ENTITLEMENT:                                (LESS)            $0.00
REVENUE OFFSET:                                      (LESS)          $338.00
                                                    SUBTOTAL       $3,827.66
 
STANDARD CHARGES:
    QTY         UNIT PRICE   DESCRIPTION
 
 
 
 
 
 
TAX:                                                                  $0.00
================================================================================
NET ONE-TIME CHARGE                                                $3,827.66
COMMENT: PRICE QUOTE
 
================================================================================
********************************************************************************
*      THIS QUOTATION IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY.  NO ACTION IS REQUIRED.         *
*                                                                              *
*                                                                              *
*                                                                              *
*                                                                              *
*                                                                              *
********************************************************************************
ADDRESS ALL INQUIRIES AND CORRESPONDENCE TO: AMEREN MISSOURI
                                             MOBERLY OPERATING CENTER
                                             501 FRANKLIN
                                             MOBERLY, MO  65270
 
BILLING INFO:  CITY OF MOBERLY
               0,URBANDALE
 
               MOBERLY                   MO 65270
 
AUTHORIZED BY: ___________________________________________________NAME
               ___________________________________________________POSITION
               __________________PHONE
               __________________PURCHASE ORDER NO. IF APPLICABLE
 
THIS QUOTATION IS FIRM ONLY IF ACCEPTED BY 11/25/22 AND IF CUSTOMER FULFILLED
NECESSARY REQUIREMENTS FOR AMEREN MISSOURI TO COMMENCE WORK BY 02/23/23

81

#6.

E169902
Typewritten Text
Brian Blackburn



82

#6.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Administration 

Date: December 19, 2022 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Approving Extending The Lease Agreement With Marine Toys 

For Tots Foundation For Property Located At 218 W Reed Street And 

Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Lease. 

  

Summary: Toys for Tots had requested the use of 218 W. Reed for their 2022 collection, 

and distribution, campaign.  This agreement with the city began October 1, 

2022 through December 31, 2022.  Toys for Tots has requested the use of this 

facility for another 2 months until they are able to find a building to place their 

items in as the current property they was asked to vacate.  The lease agreement 

presented sets forth the rights and liabilities of the participating parties.  Toys 

for Tots is agreeable to paying $1 for each month the unit is rented.  

  

Recommended Action   Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number:  

  

Available Budget $:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
   x    Correspondence     x  Proposed Resolution   
         Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

83

#7.



BILL NO._________      RESOLUTION NO.________ 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING EXTENDING THE LEASE AGREEMENT WITH 

MARINE TOYS FOR TOTS FOUNDATION FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 218 W 

REED STREET AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 

LEASE. 

 

WHEREAS, Marine Toys for Tots Foundation (“Marine”) rented retail office space from 

the City at 218 W Reed Street for a charitable holiday fund raising venture which lease was 

approved on August 15, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the current lease terminates on December 31, 2022 and Marine has 

requested that the lease be extended until March 1, 2023, upon the same terms and conditions; 

and  

WHEREAS, staff recommends that the lease be extended upon the same terms and 

conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the lease agreement with Marine Toys for Tots Foundation is 

hereby extended and the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an Agreement on behalf 

of the City of Moberly, Missouri for this purpose. 

RESOLVED this 19th day of December, 2022, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

84

#7.



LEASE EXTENSION 

 

Attached hereto is a certain lease agreement between the City of Moberly, Missouri and Marine 

Toys for Tots for property located at 218 W. Reed Street which lease terminates on December 

31, 2022.  The parties hereby agree to extend the lease on the existing terms and conditions until 

March 1, 2023. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties enter into this Lease Extension this 19th day of December, 

2022. 

 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI    MARINE TOYS FOR TOTS 

 

____________________________   ________________________________ 

By: Brian Crane, City Manager    By: 

85

#7.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Parks  

Date: December 19, 2022 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of And Authorizing Contracting With 

Professional Metal Fabricators, LLC For Roof Repairs To Rothwell Park 

Shelter #5. 

  

Summary: Shelter 5 roof is decades old and has holes scattered throughout.  It needs 

replaced and was budgeted for in the current budget year.  The trusses are also 

estimated at 50-60 years old – nearly as old as the old ag.  barns – and have 

signs of deterioration and carpenter bee damage.  Truss replacement, metal 

gables (as opposed to the current deteriorated wood), and a new metal roof is 

the scope of what we bid out.  

 

In-house, we will replace the final 4 posts prior to work starting on the roof.  

We will remove the existing electrical.  And we will then work with the Lion’s 

Club for updated electrical that is up to code and LED lighting.  

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve the Resolution. 

  

Fund Name: Parks – Capital Improvement 

  

Account Number: 115.041.5502  

  

Available Budget $: $26,750.83 
 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
    _    Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    

    Staff Report   __  Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
    _  Correspondence   X_  Proposed Resolution   
   X   Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
   _   Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report    _   Other: _____________      Passed Failed 

86

#8.



BILL NO.__________     RESOLUTION NO.________ 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF AND AUTHORIZING CONTRACTING 

WITH PROFESSIONAL METAL FABRICATORS, LLC FOR ROOF REPAIRS TO 

ROTHWELL PARK SHELTER #5. 

 

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Department solicited bids by way of a Request for 

Qualifications (“RFQ”) from qualified contractors to make roof repairs to Shelter #5 at Rothwell 

Park; and 

WHEREAS, three responses were received with the bid of Professional Metal 

Fabricators, LLC in the amount of $26,506.00 being the lowest responsible bid for material, 

equipment and labor to reconstruct the roof on shelter #5; and 

WHEREAS, City staff recommends acceptance of the bid and Proposal (attached) which 

incorporates the terms of the RFQ. 

THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council accepts the bid of Professional 

Metal Fabricators, LLC and authorizes the City Manager to contract for reconstruction of the 

roof of shelter #5 at Rothwell Park and to take such other and further actions necessary to carry 

out the intent of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 19th day of December, 2022, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

87

#8.



88

#8.



89

#8.



90

#8.



91

#8.



92

#8.



93

#8.



94

#8.



95

#8.



96

#8.



97

#8.



98

#8.



99

#8.



100

#8.



101

#8.



102

#8.



103

#8.



104

#8.



105

#8.



106

#8.



107

#8.



108

#8.



109

#8.



110

#8.



111

#8.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: Public Works 

Date: December 19, 2022 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Approving A Written Consent To Assignment. 

  

Summary: The agreement is with County Bank to allow the privately owned hangar on a 

land lease with the City to use the structure as collateral for an aircraft 

purchase.  

 

In the past, private hangars automatically reverted to the City after a period of 

years.  Under the current lease format, the owner of the hangar may continue 

to renew the lease as many times as they want or sell and the new owner can 

continue to lease.  Due to the prior format, owners were not allowed to 

encumber the buildings, however given the costs for these now and the fact 

that they do not revert to the City, we have allowed owner to put liens on the 

structure only.  There is no lien on the land, and if the bank were to reposes, 

they would have to update the land lease with the City and pay the lease.  The 

City has nothing to lose in this situation. Staff recommends approval of the 

agreement with County Bank. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence   x     Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other       Passed Failed 

 

112

#9.



BILL NO: _______________    RESOLUTION NO.____________ 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A WRITTEN CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT. 

 

WHEREAS, County Bank and Edge Aviation, LLC have entered into an Assignment of 

Leases and Rents agreement whereby Edge Aviation assigns its interest in a certain lease (the 

“Lease”) between the City of Moberly and Edge dated October 1, 2021, for hangar space at 

Omar N. Bradley Regional Airport; and 

WHEREAS, the Lease provides that it is not assignable without the written permission 

of the City; and  

WHEREAS, the Written Consent to Assignment, attached hereto, will satisfy the consent 

requirement in the lease upon execution by all the parties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Written Consent to Assignment is hereby approved and the 

City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

RESOLVED this 19th day of December 2022, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri.            

 

 

      _______________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

113

#9.



114

#9.



115

#9.



116

#9.



117

#9.



118

#9.



119

#9.



120

#9.



121

#9.



122

#9.



123

#9.



124

#9.



125

#9.



126

#9.



127

#9.



128

#9.



129

#9.



130

#9.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Clerk 

Date: December 19, 2022 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of 

Moberly, Missouri. 

  

Summary: Through the course of regular City operations, debts to various vendors and 

agencies are incurred. The majority are charged to the City through invoices, 

other debts are incurred through contractual arrangements for services, 

financing of purchases, and long-term debt. This resolution approves payment 

of two types of items; (1) those with due dates within the next two weeks, and 

(2) for payments that have been made for items with due dates that occurred 

since the previous appropriation.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget : N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
    _     Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    

    _     Staff Report    _   Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     

       Correspondence    X   Proposed Resolution   
    Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes    _    Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

131

#10.



132

#10.



133

#10.



134

#10.



135

#10.



136

#10.



137

#10.



138

#10.



139

#10.



140

#10.



141

#10.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:    

Department: City Manager 

Date: December 19, 2022 
 

  

Agenda Item: Department Head Monthly Reports 

  

Summary: Attached is Community Development Monthly Report/Public Works Monthly, 

Finance Department Monthly Report, Parks and Rec. Monthly Report, Police 

Department Monthly Report, Fire Department Monthly Report, Public Utility 

Monthly Report, Moberly Area Economic Development, Moberly Chamber of 

Commerce. 

  

These are for you to review on the activity that each Department has 

accomplished for the Month November. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Just for your review 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

142

#11.



 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT/PUBLIC WORKS 

MONTHLY REPORT 

Novemberber 2022 

A. PROJECTS  

 

Community Development 

 

Eagle Tree Ridge duplex subdivision – In talking with the contractor/developer, it seems like they are 

on hold with roads until Spring rather than try and fight the compaction concerns this winter. 

 

Grants/Funding - There are more grants floating around currently than I can ever remember. It takes a 

significant amount of time to review, determine what, if anything can they apply to our community, 

where they will fit, can we meet the criteria and where does this issue fall in our priorities, and do we 

have the match funding to cover the grant in comparison to other needed projects.  The chart below is a 

breakdown of funding we have been working on in Community Development over the last year.  While 

there are numerous other grants/funds being applied for/received by other departments. 

 

 
 

I would point out that the $6M shown under City match for the ARPA Tourism match, most of that 

funding is from outside investments, other ARPA funds, CID, etc. 

 

Beyond these government grants, we are also waiting to hear back on the TC Energy grant application 

for Fennel Community Center. If awarded, it could be for up to $100,000 for renovations of the facility.   

 

Urbandale Pillars Project – agreement is complete, we will be waiting on donations to accumulate 

before any work proceeds. 

 

Wayfinding signage – We had a follow up meeting with Arcturis, they have identified many locations 

and facilities that they suggest and ran those by us for feedback preparing for a formal Stakeholders 

meeting. At that point, community stakeholders will be presented with the goals of the project and be 

able to make recommendations and provide input on what they feel needs to be addressed and where 

things should be located as well as view some examples of signage designs. 

 

Cannabis Regulation – With the new laws being passed, the City will have many impacts that will 

need to be considered and discussed as to how we want to proceed.  Items that are now a nuisance, such 

as the smell/smoke, will no longer be valid, how will be regulate smoking in public/public facilities, 

how could we regulate that without addressing smoking/vaping. Many things that we will be working on 

to identify potential concerns, how we could possibly address them and recommendations for the 

council to review, consider. 

143

#11.



Tourism application/scoring sheet - Following up with the Tourism Commission, they have revised 

the request to modify the application scoring rubric.  They are recommending retaining the 1-5 scoring 

for the seven (7) categories for a max score of 35 points, but would like to be able to award up to the 

maximum $1,000 for any application that scores a 28 or higher, and up to 50% for any application that 

scores a 20 or higher and no funding would be considered if the application scored less than a 20.   

 

The tourism specialist would meet with the applicant, score the application and present the facts, 

recommendations, scoring for the Tourism commission to complete score sheets and develop a 

recommendation to send to council for review.   

 

This format retains the weighted scoring but provides some minimal flexibility to the committee to 

adjust the funding levels based on the specific situation, withing the approved ranges. 

 

Caselle Software - like other departments that are working with the new software, there is a learning 

curve and bugs to work out.  It’s slow going on permits, etc. as staff learns the program. Additionally, 

we are not able to add new addresses to the system, for example when the Alt School applied for a 

building permit, we couldn’t add the new address for the school to the permit, we had to use an existing 

address on the complex to make it work at this time.  As they get that resolved, staff will go back and 

correct the permit addresses.   

 

Demolition - The code office is pressing to get the last few properties demolished by Holman under the 

10-structure agreement connected with the Woodland project.  Additionally, they have 10+ properties 

that have went through the public hearing process and are awaiting the results of that.  The hearing 

officer judgements have been submitted to City Attorney to be completed and sent out.  Assuming that 

most or all of the properties will recommend for demolition, staff will get started with bidding of 

demolition, asbestos abatement and utility disconnection following the window of appeal for property 

owners. 

 

Public Works  

 

TEAP project – We have selected B&W to complete this work under the approved vendors category.  

They are moving forward on this, and we anticipate it being a less than 60 day turn around. 

 

Urbandale Pillar project - We are working on the agreement that would layout the costs, and how 

funding/donations would work to set the new foundation pads and relocate the pillars to their new 

locations.  With initial City funding, we should be able to get the foundations in yet this year.  We will 

have to wait for outside funding for the relocation to happen, hopefully mid-year 23’. 

 

          Airport 

 

Airport – Most of the renovations have been completed on the exterior of the City Offices/Hangar and 

three municipal hangars West of the main hangar.  New roofs primed & painted, some support work in 

two smaller ones remain and we are getting some concrete footers in one soon.  Concrete 

footer/sidewalk was completed around the main City hangar.  Waiting on contractor to finish trim on 

exterior and we are waiting on a decision from FAA as to what all we can do with interior space that is 

currently gutted on the South end of offices.  As we have discussed, we received CARES, CRSSA & 

ARPA funding specifically for the airport that will offset funding to allow for these improvements. 

 

We have the fuel truck in place and in operation at this time.  We have already seen some additional jet 

traffic as a result. We plan to advertise more in the coming months to attract more pass-through fuel 

sales and hopefully more based aircraft.  We have a new 80x100 hangar under construction now, and we 

have request for a 60x80 ground lease and another 80x100 ground lease all for private hangars.  We are 

expecting to see an increase of 10+ based aircraft with two or more being turbine engine aircraft in the 144

#11.



next 6 months.  While the lease revenue is of some benefit, the resulting fuel sales could be significant, 

and we are hoping to develop more aviation related business operations.  

 

We have a fair amount of runway lights that are out, however they are concentrated primarily on one 

end.  We anticipate either a lightning strike to a specific circuit or a short in that circuit.  We are 

following up with the consultant/contractor at this time to try and identify issue and complete repairs 

ASAP. 

 

 Cemetery Department 

 

Staff continues to have some struggles with ownership conflicts. Families purchase grave sites, and 

when they as legal owners pass away, there is no clear guardian assigned. We have had situations where 

multiple family members want different things/burials/monuments, etc. It makes it difficult for staff to 

know what to allow/not allow. We have been discussing possible options for that recently but are trying 

to point out to lot purchasers to plan for these situations. 

 

There was four (4) grave lot sold; eight (8) graves opened; and three (3) monument permits sold during 

the month of November. 

 

 

B. Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of Moberly held a meeting on November 28, 

2022.  

 

1. Notice of a Public Hearing for a site plan review submitted by Steve Nuhn on behalf 

of CTS Motorsports LLC for a site plan review on the property located at 224 

Sparks Ave. This location is currently zoned B-3 (General Commercial District). 

 

 
C. Code Enforcement 

 

            Month of November: Mark 

 

       •    84 Inspection and reinspection’s 

       •    Drove checking on violations 

       •    Sent out letters on violations 

 

 

           Month of November: David 

      

• Planning & Zoning 15%.  

• Commercial Inspections   5% 

• Residential New Construction Inspections 20% 

• Residential Remodel Inspections 20% 

• Office File System Organized   5% 

• Letters of City Violations 15% 

• Calling and answering residents on complaints    5% 

• Discussing Codes with Contractors & Residents that come in  15% 
 

             Month of November: Aaron 
 

• Planning & Zoning 10%.  
145

#11.



• Building Inspections & Review of Plans 35% 

• Historic Preservation Reviews & information   5% 

• New Code Review information 10% 

• Nuisance complaints 40% 

 

 

 

City of Moberly - Street Department 

Nov-22 

MAINTENANCE FACILITY 
 

Hours O/T Loads Tons Cost 

Compost Mixing 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Load Compost, Millings, & Mulch 26 0 51 0 $0.00  

Sand, Salt, & Geomelt Mixing 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Tub Grinder Operation 31 0 0 0 $0.00  

Winter Weather Equipment 

Preparations 

109 0 0 0 $0.00  

ROADS & ALLEYWAYS 
 

Hours O/T Loads Tons Cost 

Alleys, Grade & Rock 72 0 0 44 $0.00  

Catch Basin Maintenance 64 0 6 0 $0.00  

Crack Sealing 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Culvert Flushing 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Culvert Installation 21 0 0 5 $0.00  

Curb  Repair 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Ditch Maintenance 46 0 0 0 $0.00  

Ice & Snow Removal 38 0 6 3 $0.00  

Milling 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Mowing, Right-Of-Ways 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Rock Loaded/Hauled 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Street Repair & Maintenance 182 0 0 8 $0.00  

Street Sign Maintenance 50 0 0 0 $0.00  

Street Sweeper Operation 142.5 0 68.5 0 $0.00  

Street Sweepings Hauled To 

Disposal 

32 0 6 0 $0.00  

Weedeating & Brush Removal, 

Alleys 

96 0 45 0 $0.00  

Weedeating & Brush Removal, 

Streets 

72 0 27 0 $0.00  

Weedkiller Application, Alleys 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Weedkiller Application, Streets 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Hours O/T Loads Tons Cost 146

#11.



Inmate Labor 665 0 0 0 $0.00  

Mowing, City Lots 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Outer Road Fill Dump Site Grading 22 0 0 0 $0.00  

Sidewalk Maintenance 32 0 7 0 $0.00  

Trash Removal & Clean-Up, 

Downtown 

18 0 58 0 $0.00  

Trash Removal & Clean-Up, All 

Wards 

16 0 0 0 $0.00  

FACILITIES & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 
 

Hours O/T Loads Tons Cost 

Airport Maintenance 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Building Maintenance 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Cemetery Maintenance 133 0 0 0 $0.00  

Grounds Maintenance 38 0 4 20 $0.00  

Landfill Maintenance 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Maintenance Facility Maintenance 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Wash Trucks & Equipment 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

MATERIALS PURCHASED 
 

Loads Tons Cubic 

Yards 

Gallons Cost 

Asphalt 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Road Marking Paint, White 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Road Marking Paint, Yellow 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Salt 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

Sand 0 0 0 0 $0.00  

MECHANIC WORK PERFORMED 
   

 
Units Hours 

   

Routine Service  0 0 
   

Maintenance And Repair 0 0 
   

 

147

#11.



148

#11.



149

#11.



Fund # Fund Name

Beginning Cash 

Balance Revenues Transfers In Expenditures Transfers Out Ending Cash Balance

100 General 1,378,472.34        573,473.64          -                    601,705.95         20,833.33         1,329,406.70               

102 Non-Resident Lodging Tax 199,183.86           4,586.87              -                    8,100.00             -                    195,670.73                  

105 Payroll 556,326.78           1,105.79              -                    (2,860.73)            -                    560,293.30                  

110 Solid Waste 673,437.82           117,386.41          -                    129,664.97         -                    661,159.26                  

114 Heritage Hills Golf Course -                        25,000.00            -                    23,514.75           1,485.25           -                               

115 Parks and Recreation (21,563.62)            26,128.06            100,970.24       130,419.68         -                    (24,885.00)                   

116 Park Sales Tax 717,768.97           125,330.07          1,485.25           -                      100,970.24       743,614.05                  

120 Airport (191,654.56)          22,415.95            -                    27,880.49           -                    (197,119.10)                 

125 Perpetual Care Cemetery Sales 1,784.23               3,783.00              -                    -                      -                    5,567.23                      

126 Perpetual Care Cemetery Investment 532,357.11           1,061.69              -                    -                      -                    533,418.80                  

135 ARPA Grant Fund 2,577,862.87        55,123.91            -                    -                      -                    2,632,986.78               

137 Use Tax Trust 250,771.83           498.45                 -                    -                      -                    251,270.28                  

140 Veterans Memorial Flag Project 39,401.05             78.32                   -                    263.58                -                    39,215.79                    

300 Utilities Collection -                        438,414.12          120,868.45       34,940.50           524,342.07       -                               

301 Utilities Operation and Maintenance (49,730.50)            -                      391,257.88       354,444.72         -                    (12,917.34)                   

302 Utilities Replacement 708,728.58           -                      4,125.00           11,500.00           -                    701,353.58                  

303 Utilities Operating Reserve 1,394,180.23        4,179.86              -                    6,333.49             120,868.45       1,271,158.15               

306 Utilities Consumer Security 208,264.03           1,650.00              -                    -                      -                    209,914.03                  

307 Sugar Creek Lake Fund 61,820.91             372.88                 -                    -                      -                    62,193.79                    

314 Route JJ Sewer Extension Fund (346,989.54)          -                      -                    2,392.50             -                    (349,382.04)                 

350 EDA Grant Projects Fund (455,044.50)          -                      -                    6,794.90             -                    (461,839.40)                 

377 2004B SRF Bonds Debt Service 1,205,305.91        2,395.73              42,772.34         38,403.29           -                    1,212,070.69               

378 2006A SRF Bonds Debt Service 1,775,609.95        3,529.30              35,728.54         27,980.22           -                    1,786,887.57               

379 2004C Bond Debt Service 159,359.83           316.75                 29,859.58         26,458.37           -                    163,077.79                  

380 2008A Bonds Debt Service 113,465.70           225.53                 15,051.85         38,579.22           -                    90,163.86                    

381 ESP Projects Debt Service 91,642.02             182.15                 50,458.31         -                      -                    142,282.48                  

1,026,212.66        -                      -                    -                      -                    1,026,212.66               

5,892,825.28        451,266.32          690,121.95       547,827.21         645,210.52       5,841,175.82               

304 Capital Improvement Trust 597,679.57           111,387.38          -                    33,859.61           54,994.76         620,212.58                  

400 911 Emergency Telephone 39,390.84             19,247.38            20,833.33         67,505.46           -                    11,966.09                    

406 Inmate Security Fund 15,202.06             30.22                   -                    -                      -                    15,232.28                    

408 Police Forfeiture Fund -                        -                      -                    -                      -                    -                               

600 Transportation Trust 2,465,743.72        115,100.47          -                    457,866.91         -                    2,122,977.28               

601 Street Improvement 520,329.24           43,209.56            -                    4,225.05             -                    559,313.75                  

900 MODAG Grant/Loan 21,969.63             43.67                   -                    -                      -                    22,013.30                    

901 Misc. Project Residuals 151,285.26           300.70                 -                    -                      -                    151,585.96                  

903 Ameren MO Solar Rebates 357,302.60           -                      -                    1,719.49             -                    355,583.11                  

   Escrow

   Total CWWSS (funds 300-381 + escrow)

City of Moberly Cash Balance Report -  November 2022

Page 1 of 2
150

#11.



Fund # Fund Name

Beginning Cash 

Balance Revenues Transfers In Expenditures Transfers Out Ending Cash Balance

City of Moberly Cash Balance Report -  November 2022

904 Hometown Strong Fund 100,000.00           -                      -                    -                      -                    100,000.00                  

905 Retail Consulting Fund 16,731.65             33.26                   -                    -                      -                    16,764.91                    

906 Solar Systems Settlement Fund 785,896.70           -                      -                    3,910.33             -                    781,986.37                  

908 Railcar Preservation Fund 647.91                  1.29                     -                    -                      -                    649.20                         

909 Lucille Manor CDBG Reimbursement 268,447.51           533.58                 -                    -                      -                    268,981.09                  

911 Downtown CID Sales Tax 151,234.12           8,904.62              -                    756.90                -                    159,381.84                  

912 Downtown CID Property Tax 218,089.46           14,160.87            -                    13,461.37           1,733.84           217,055.12                  

914 Downtown NID Cost of Issuance -                        -                      -                    -                      -                    -                               

915 Downtown NID Street Projects 137,005.59           -                      -                    -                      -                    137,005.59                  

916 Downtown NID Sewer Projects 1,516,994.41        -                      -                    -                      -                    1,516,994.41               

918 Downtown NID Debt Service 60,739.97             120.73                 11,817.17         -                      -                    72,677.87                    

995 Health Trust 419,513.76           141,142.63          -                    202,234.90         -                    358,421.49                  

995 Investments -                        -                      -                    -                      -                    -                               

419,513.76           141,142.63          -                    202,234.90         -                    358,421.49                  

20,451,177.96     1,861,454.84      825,227.94      2,252,055.92     825,227.94      20,060,576.88             Total Cash

   Total Health Trust

Page 2 of 2
151

#11.



41.67%

% of % of

Fund # Fund Name Month Year to Date Total Budget Budget Month Year to Date Total Budget Budget

100 General 573,473.64 3,260,941.63 9,431,789.14 34.57% 662,545.26 3,722,683.02 9,431,789.14 39.47%

102 Non-Resident Lodging Tax 4,586.87 53,962.02 100,900.00 53.48% 8,100.00 39,000.00 100,000.00 39.00%

105 Payroll 1,105.79 4,629.74 0.00 0.00% -2,526.37 -3,826.20 0.00 0.00%

110 Solid Waste 117,386.41 486,759.20 1,093,900.00 44.50% 153,268.51 588,644.44 1,073,840.75 54.82%

114 Heritage Hills Golf Course 25,000.00 111,022.39 246,134.01 45.11% 25,000.00 111,022.39 246,134.01 45.11%

115 Parks and Recreation 127,098.30 1,691,875.55 3,344,585.83 50.59% 138,828.24 1,703,605.49 3,344,585.83 50.94%

116 Park Sales Tax 126,815.32 1,152,961.54 1,628,000.00 70.82% 100,970.24 1,555,222.51 2,415,969.84 64.37%

120 Airport 22,415.95 202,753.67 635,557.18 31.90% 28,778.93 342,347.41 635,557.18 53.87%

125 Perpetual Care Cemetery Sales 3,783.00 4,858.00 25,000.00 19.43% 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00%

126 Perpetual Care Cemetery Investment 1,061.69 4,418.80 28,000.00 15.78% 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00%

135 ARPA Grant Fund 55,123.91 1,454,418.64 1,374,405.28 105.82% 0.00 0.00 300,000.00 0.00%

140 Veterans Memorial Flag Project 78.32 675.12 3,300.00 20.46% 263.58 321.64 3,000.00 10.72%

300 Utilities Collection 559,282.57 3,024,535.55 7,814,333.91 38.70% 558,053.55 3,049,184.00 7,814,333.91 39.02%

301 Utilities Operation and Maintenance 391,257.88 2,064,062.55 5,661,664.64 36.46% 391,257.88 2,064,315.22 5,661,664.64 36.46%

302 Utilities Replacement 4,125.00 20,625.00 49,500.00 41.67% 11,500.00 30,310.00 0.00 0.00%

303 Utilities Operating Reserve 4,179.86 169,681.97 175,568.75 96.65% 127,201.94 295,883.03 437,535.82 67.62%

304 Capital Improvement Trust 111,387.38 626,655.33 1,422,000.00 44.07% 88,854.37 375,848.66 814,206.41 46.16%

307 Sugar Creek Lake Fund 372.88 1,252.09 2,300.00 54.44% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

314 Route JJ Sewer Extension Fund 0.00 0.00 1,464,148.00 0.00% 2,392.50 124,154.91 1,464,148.00 8.48%

350 EDA Grant Projects Fund 0.00 0.00 6,128,287.00 0.00% 6,794.90 39,709.73 6,128,287.00 0.65%

377 2004B SRF Bonds Debt Service 45,168.07 223,780.25 519,868.13 43.05% 38,403.29 192,016.45 907,243.75 21.16%

378 2006A SRF Bonds Debt Service 39,257.84 193,244.26 438,342.50 44.09% 27,980.22 148,051.10 836,175.00 17.71%

379 2004C Bond Debt Service 30,176.33 150,568.68 358,795.00 41.97% 26,458.37 132,291.85 326,650.00 40.50%

380 2008A Bonds Debt Service 15,277.38 76,088.59 180,922.16 42.06% 38,579.22 77,158.44 164,911.05 46.79%

381 ESP Projects Debt Service 50,640.46 253,322.96 606,199.74 41.79% 0.00 270,681.70 551,363.40 49.09%

400 911 Emergency Telephone 40,080.71 221,951.89 532,480.00 41.68% 69,833.09 279,816.75 646,139.37 43.31%

406 Inmate Security Fund 30.22 361.01 810.00 44.57% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

600 Transportation Trust 115,100.47 657,558.60 1,436,700.00 45.77% 457,866.91 759,593.94 1,279,059.00 59.39%

601 Street Improvement 43,209.56 570,217.79 500,000.00 114.04% 4,225.05 88,494.50 675,275.00 13.10%

903 Ameren MO Solar Rebates 0.00 11,827.50 0.00 0.00% 1,719.49 8,597.45 0.00 0.00%

904 Hometown Strong Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

City of Moberly Budget Comparison Report - November 2022

Percentage of Year Completed

Revenues Expenditures

Page 1 of 2
152

#11.



41.67%

% of % of

Fund # Fund Name Month Year to Date Total Budget Budget Month Year to Date Total Budget Budget

City of Moberly Budget Comparison Report - November 2022

Percentage of Year Completed

Revenues Expenditures

905 Retail Consulting Fund 33.26 5,117.27 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

906 Solar Systems Settlement Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 3,910.33 19,551.65 0.00 0.00%

908 Railcar Preservation Fund 1.29 5.40 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

909 Lucille Manor CDBG Reimbursement 533.58 15,454.01 24,325.00 63.53% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

911 Downtown CID Sales Tax 8,904.62 44,522.34 101,680.00 43.79% 756.90 11,619.85 101,300.00 11.47%

912 Downtown CID Property Tax 14,160.87 23,904.27 215,000.00 11.12% 15,195.21 116,320.34 202,616.08 57.41%

914 Downtown NID Cost of Issuance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

915 Downtown NID Street Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

916 Downtown NID Sewer Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

918 Downtown NID Debt Service 11,937.90 59,693.18 143,006.04 41.74% 0.00 64,457.30 128,914.60 50.00%

995 Health Trust 141,142.63 716,002.44 0.00 0.00% 205,542.87 722,462.59 0.00 0.00%

2,684,189.96 17,559,709.23 45,687,502.31 38.43% 3,191,754.48 16,929,540.16 45,718,699.78 37.03%TOTALS

Page 2 of 2
153

#11.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 7.97% $199,862 -17.31% -17.31% 9.09% $250,141 25.16% 25.16% 8.44% $247,325 -1.13% -1.13% 16.07% $245,365 -0.79% -0.79%

August 8.43% $211,324 12.94% -4.11% 7.66% $210,787 -0.25% 12.10% 7.49% $219,697 4.23% 1.32% 16.96% $258,863 17.83% 7.97%

September 9.47% $237,294 -3.45% -3.87% 9.64% $265,191 11.76% 11.97% 9.54% $279,648 5.45% 2.83% 17.88% $272,892 -2.42% 4.08%

October 7.95% $199,259 7.64% -1.39% 8.03% $221,103 10.96% 11.73% 8.17% $239,568 8.35% 4.12% 16.42% $250,666 4.63% 4.21%

November 6.90% $172,873 6.55% -0.13% 6.63% $182,491 5.56% 10.69% 7.77% $227,855 24.86% 7.47% 15.16% $231,444 1.58% 3.72%

December 8.55% $214,218 -3.25% -0.68% 8.59% $236,514 10.41% 10.64% 8.90% $260,966 10.34% 7.97% 17.52% $267,405 2.47% 3.50%

January 8.46% $212,117 2.23% -0.27% 7.68% $211,290 -0.39% 9.02% 7.14% $209,234 -0.97% 6.77% 0.00%

February 8.70% $217,948 2.24% 0.05% 7.90% $217,419 -0.24% 7.81% 9.30% $272,759 25.45% 9.03% 0.00%

March 8.29% $207,716 2.51% 0.32% 8.57% $235,865 13.55% 8.45% 8.51% $249,432 5.75% 8.65% 0.00%

April 7.98% $200,097 -4.84% -0.20% 7.09% $195,208 -2.44% 7.40% 7.90% $231,630 18.66% 9.53% 0.00%

May 7.73% $193,621 1.22% -0.08% 8.00% $220,208 13.73% 7.94% 7.08% $207,603 -5.72% 8.16% 0.00%

June 9.57% $239,953 10.55% 0.85% 11.12% $305,934 27.50% 9.81% 9.75% $285,942 -6.53% 6.52% 0.00%

Total 100.00% $2,506,282 100.00% $2,752,151 100.00% $2,931,659 100.00% $1,526,635

Prior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

One Percent (1%) General Fund Sales Tax Analysis

2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

$
1

9
9

,8
6

2

$
2

1
1

,3
2

4

$
2

3
7

,2
9

4

$
1

5
9

,9
6

0

$
1

7
2

,8
7

3

$
2

1
4

,2
1

8

$
2

1
2

,1
1

7

$
2

1
7

,9
4

8

$
2

0
7

,7
1

6

$
2

0
0

,0
9

7

$
1

9
3

,6
2

1

$
2

3
9

,9
5

3

$
2

5
0

,1
4

1

$
2

1
0

,7
8

7

$
2

6
5

,1
9

1

$
2

2
1

,1
0

3

$
1

8
2

,4
9

1

$
2

3
6

,5
1

4

$
2

1
1

,2
9

0

$
2

1
7

,4
1

9

$
2

3
5

,8
6

5

$
1

9
5

,2
0

8

$
2

2
0

,2
0

8

$
3

0
5

,9
3

4

$
2

4
7

,3
2

5

$
2

1
9

,6
9

7 $
2

7
9

,6
4

8

$
2

3
9

,5
6

8

$
2

2
7

,8
5

5

$
2

6
0

,9
6

6

$
2

0
9

,2
3

4 $
2

7
2

,7
5

9

$
2

4
9

,4
3

2

$
2

3
1

,6
3

0

$
2

0
7

,6
0

3

$
2

8
5

,9
4

2

$
2

4
5

,3
6

5

$
2

5
8

,8
6

3

$
2

7
2

,8
9

2

$
2

5
0

,6
6

6

$
2

3
1

,4
4

4

$
2

6
7

,4
0

5

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

180,000

200,000

220,000

240,000

260,000

280,000

300,000

320,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a

rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2021-
2022

2022-
2023

154

#11.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 8.11% $96,995 -16.54% -16.54% 9.23% $121,689 25.46% 25.46% 8.54% $119,791 -1.56% -1.56% 16.11% $118,528 -1.05% -1.05%

August 8.47% $101,403 14.20% -3.23% 7.73% $102,013 0.60% 12.75% 7.63% $107,096 4.98% 1.42% 17.10% $125,805 17.47% 7.69%

September 9.53% $113,985 -2.73% -3.04% 9.67% $127,495 11.85% 12.42% 9.60% $134,704 5.65% 2.96% 18.14% $133,437 -0.94% 4.47%

October 7.96% $95,207 8.15% -0.64% 7.99% $105,403 10.71% 12.02% 8.12% $113,921 8.08% 4.14% 16.23% $119,394 4.80% 4.55%

November 6.85% $81,925 7.43% 0.62% 6.61% $87,256 6.51% 11.10% 7.75% $108,728 24.61% 7.43% 14.98% $110,199 1.35% 3.96%

December 8.65% $103,534 17.42% 3.20% 8.70% $114,709 10.79% 11.05% 8.91% $125,041 9.01% 7.70% 17.45% $128,399 2.69% 3.73%

January 8.53% $102,043 -15.02% 0.05% 7.66% $101,008 -1.01% 9.28% 7.40% $103,883 2.85% 7.06% 0.00%

February 8.64% $103,390 3.00% 0.42% 7.87% $103,792 0.39% 8.13% 9.15% $128,441 23.75% 9.06% 0.00%

March 8.21% $98,246 3.21% 0.72% 8.44% $111,392 13.38% 8.70% 8.33% $116,931 4.97% 8.59% 0.00%

April 7.83% $93,739 -4.21% 0.23% 6.90% $91,057 -2.86% 7.61% 7.73% $108,526 19.18% 9.50% 0.00%

May 7.59% $90,851 1.52% 0.34% 8.21% $108,243 19.14% 8.58% 6.95% $97,513 -9.91% 7.71% 0.00%

June 9.63% $115,289 9.85% 1.18% 11.00% $145,068 25.83% 10.24% 9.88% $138,569 -4.48% 6.37% 0.00%

Total 100.00% $1,196,607 100.00% $1,319,125 100.00% $1,403,145 100.00% $735,762

Prior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparison

City of Moberly

One-Half Percent (1/2%) Parks Fund Sales Tax Analysis

2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

$
9

6
,9

9
5

$
1

0
1

,4
0

3

$
1

1
3

,9
8

5

$
9

5
,2

0
7

$
8

1
,9

2
5

$
1

0
3

,5
3

4

$
1

0
2

,0
4

3

$
1

0
3

,3
9

0

$
9

8
,2

4
6

$
9

3
,7

3
9

$
9

0
,8

5
1 $
1

1
5

,2
8

9

$
1

2
1

,6
8

9

$
1

0
2

,0
1

3

$
1

2
7

,4
9

5

$
1

0
5

,4
0

3

$
8

7
,2

5
6 $
1

1
4

,7
0

9

$
1

0
1

,0
0

8

$
1

0
3

,7
9

2

$
1

1
1

,3
9

2

$
9

1
,0

5
7

$
1

0
8

,2
4

3

$
1

4
5

,0
6

8

$
1

1
9

,7
9

1

$
1

0
7

,0
9

6 $
1

3
4

,7
0

4

$
1

1
3

,9
2

1

$
1

0
8

,7
2

8

$
1

2
5

,0
4

1

$
1

0
3

,8
8

3

$
1

2
8

,4
4

1

$
1

1
6

,9
3

1

$
1

0
8

,5
2

6

$
9

7
,5

1
3

$
1

3
8

,5
6

9

$
1

1
8

,5
2

8

$
1

2
5

,8
0

5

$
1

3
3

,4
3

7

$
1

1
9

,3
9

4

$
1

1
0

,1
9

9

$
1

2
8

,3
9

9

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

150,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a

rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2021-
2022

2022-
2023

155

#11.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 8.11% $96,995 -16.54% -16.54% 9.23% $121,689 25.46% 25.46% 8.54% $119,791 -1.56% -1.56% 16.11% $118,528 -1.05% -1.05%

August 8.47% $101,403 14.20% -3.23% 7.73% $102,013 0.60% 12.75% 7.63% $107,096 4.98% 1.42% 17.10% $125,805 17.47% 7.69%

September 9.53% $113,985 -2.73% -3.04% 9.67% $127,495 11.85% 12.42% 9.60% $134,704 5.65% 2.96% 18.14% $133,437 -0.94% 4.47%

October 7.96% $95,207 8.15% -0.64% 7.99% $105,403 10.71% 12.02% 8.12% $113,921 8.08% 4.14% 16.23% $119,394 4.80% 4.55%

November 6.85% $81,925 7.43% 0.62% 6.61% $87,256 6.51% 11.10% 7.73% $108,460 24.30% 7.38% 14.98% $110,199 1.60% 4.01%

December 8.65% $103,535 -4.43% -0.30% 8.70% $114,709 10.79% 11.05% 8.91% $125,040 9.01% 7.66% 17.45% $128,399 2.69% 3.77%

January 8.53% $102,043 1.96% 0.03% 7.66% $101,008 -1.01% 9.28% 7.41% $103,883 2.85% 7.02% 0.00%

February 8.64% $103,390 3.04% 0.41% 7.87% $103,792 0.39% 8.13% 9.16% $128,441 23.75% 9.03% 0.00%

March 8.21% $98,246 3.21% 0.71% 8.44% $111,392 13.38% 8.70% 8.34% $116,931 4.97% 8.57% 0.00%

April 7.83% $93,739 -4.17% 0.23% 6.90% $91,057 -2.86% 7.61% 7.74% $108,526 19.18% 9.47% 0.00%

May 7.59% $90,851 1.52% 0.33% 8.21% $108,243 19.14% 8.58% 6.95% $97,513 -9.91% 7.69% 0.00%

June 9.63% $115,289 9.85% 1.18% 11.00% $145,068 25.83% 10.24% 9.88% $138,569 -4.48% 6.35% 0.00%

Total 100.00% $1,196,609 100.00% $1,319,126 100.00% $1,402,876 100.00% $735,762

Prior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

One-Half Percent (1/2%) Capital Improvement Fund Sales Tax Analysis

2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

$
9

6
,9

9
5

$
1

0
1

,4
0

3

$
1

1
3

,9
8

5

$
9

5
,2

0
7

$
8

1
,9

2
5

$
1

0
3

,5
3

5

$
1

0
2

,0
4

3

$
1

0
3

,3
9

0

$
9

8
,2

4
6

$
9

3
,7

3
9

$
9

0
,8

5
1

$
1

1
5

,2
8

9

$
1

2
1

,6
8

9

$
1

0
2

,0
1

3

$
1

2
7

,4
9

5

$
1

0
5

,4
0

3

$
8

7
,2

5
6

$
1

1
4

,7
0

9

$
1

0
1

,0
0

8

$
1

0
3

,7
9

2

$
1

1
1

,3
9

2

$
9

1
,0

5
7

$
1

0
8

,2
4

3 $
1

4
5

,0
6

8

$
1

1
9

,7
9

1

$
1

0
7

,0
9

6

$
1

3
4

,7
0

4

$
1

1
3

,9
2

1

$
1

0
8

,4
6

0

$
1

2
5

,0
4

0

$
1

0
3

,8
8

3

$
1

2
8

,4
4

1

$
1

1
6

,9
3

1

$
1

0
8

,5
2

6

$
9

7
,5

1
3

$
1

3
8

,5
6

9

$
1

1
8

,5
2

8

$
1

2
5

,8
0

5

$
1

3
3

,4
3

7

$
1

1
9

,3
9

4

$
1

1
0

,1
9

9

$
1

2
8

,3
9

9

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

150,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a
rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

2022-2023

156

#11.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 8.10% $96,995 -16.56% -16.56% 9.22% $121,689 25.46% 25.46% 8.54% $119,797 -1.55% -1.55% 16.10% $118,528 -1.06% -1.06%

August 8.48% $101,512 14.32% -3.19% 7.73% $102,013 0.49% 12.69% 7.63% $107,096 4.98% 1.43% 17.09% $125,805 17.47% 7.69%

September 9.52% $113,985 -2.80% -3.05% 9.66% $127,495 11.85% 12.39% 9.60% $134,741 5.68% 2.97% 18.15% $133,616 -0.83% 4.51%

October 7.95% $95,208 8.16% -0.64% 7.99% $105,470 10.78% 12.01% 8.12% $113,924 8.02% 4.14% 16.22% $119,394 4.80% 4.58%

November 6.84% $81,932 7.44% 0.62% 6.61% $87,256 6.50% 11.09% 7.73% $108,460 24.30% 7.37% 14.97% $110,199 1.60% 4.03%

December 8.65% $103,535 -4.43% -0.30% 8.70% $114,833 10.91% 11.06% 8.92% $125,157 8.99% 7.65% 17.49% $128,770 2.89% 3.83%

January 8.52% $102,043 1.82% 0.01% 7.66% $101,008 -1.01% 9.29% 7.40% $103,883 2.85% 7.01% 0.00%

February 8.64% $103,390 3.04% 0.39% 7.87% $103,792 0.39% 8.13% 9.15% $128,441 23.75% 9.03% 0.00%

March 8.23% $98,515 3.37% 0.71% 8.45% $111,437 13.12% 8.68% 8.34% $117,026 5.02% 8.57% 0.00%

April 7.83% $93,736 -4.18% 0.23% 6.90% $91,057 -2.86% 7.59% 7.73% $108,526 19.18% 9.47% 0.00%

May 7.59% $90,851 1.52% 0.33% 8.20% $108,243 19.14% 8.56% 6.96% $97,642 -9.79% 7.70% 0.00%

June 9.64% $115,360 9.87% 1.18% 11.00% $145,123 25.80% 10.22% 9.87% $138,569 -4.52% 6.35% 0.00%

Total 100.00% $1,197,062 100.00% $1,319,415 100.00% $1,403,262 100.00% $736,313

Prior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

One-Half Percent (1/2%) Transportation Trust Fund Sales Tax Analysis

2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

$
9

6
,9

9
5

$
1

0
1

,5
1

2

$
1

1
3

,9
8

5

$
9

5
,2

0
8

$
8

1
,9

3
2

$
1

0
3

,5
3

5

$
1

0
2

,0
4

3

$
1

0
3

,3
9

0

$
9

8
,5

1
5

$
9

3
,7

3
6

$
9

0
,8

5
1

$
1

1
5

,3
6

0

$
1

2
1

,6
8

9

$
1

0
2

,0
1

3

$
1

2
7

,4
9

5

$
1

0
5

,4
7

0

$
8

7
,2

5
6

$
1

1
4

,8
3

3

$
1

0
1

,0
0

8

$
1

0
3

,7
9

2

$
1

1
1

,4
3

7

$
9

1
,0

5
7

$
1

0
8

,2
4

3 $
1

4
5

,1
2

3

$
1

1
9

,7
9

7

$
1

0
7

,0
9

6

$
1

3
4

,7
4

1

$
1

1
3

,9
2

4

$
1

0
8

,4
6

0

$
1

2
5

,1
5

7

$
1

0
3

,8
8

3

$
1

2
8

,4
4

1

$
1

1
7

,0
2

6

$
1

0
8

,5
2

6

$
9

7
,6

4
2

$
1

3
8

,5
6

9

$
1

1
8

,5
2

8

$
1

2
5

,8
0

5

$
1

3
3

,6
1

6

$
1

1
9

,3
9

4

$
1

1
0

,1
9

9

$
1

2
8

,7
7

0

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

150,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a
rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

2022-2023

157

#11.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 8.54% $50,367 8.33% 8.33% 7.04% $46,392 -7.89% -7.89% 4.84% $37,521 -19.12% -19.12% 13.20% $56,825 51.45% 51.45%

August 7.45% $43,915 -15.49% -4.24% 9.29% $61,192 39.34% 14.11% 9.16% $70,945 15.94% 0.82% 21.02% $90,493 27.55% 35.82%

September 8.95% $52,752 90.99% 16.62% 7.23% $47,622 -9.73% 5.56% 6.61% $51,208 7.53% 2.88% 17.74% $76,377 49.15% 40.10%

October 4.02% $23,669 -14.91% 10.92% 7.96% $52,453 121.61% 21.65% 6.20% $48,029 -8.44% 0.02% 13.28% $57,175 19.04% 35.23%

November 6.93% $40,852 -25.03% 1.52% 8.86% $58,373 42.89% 25.75% 8.79% $68,063 16.60% 3.66% 15.91% $68,520 0.67% 26.70%

December 8.52% $50,213 26.92% 5.57% 7.26% $47,833 -4.74% 19.90% 9.04% $69,977 46.30% 10.16% 18.85% $81,180 16.01% 24.54%

January 4.56% $26,900 -41.60% -1.82% 6.31% $41,573 54.55% 23.13% 7.31% $56,625 36.21% 13.20% 0.00%

February 8.59% $50,625 -5.09% -2.32% 12.03% $79,275 56.59% 28.12% 13.47% $104,356 31.64% 16.56% 0.00%

March 8.04% $47,395 -19.65% -4.84% 9.99% $65,840 38.92% 29.45% 8.18% $63,354 -3.78% 13.89% 0.00%

April 9.09% $53,605 47.24% -0.55% 8.34% $54,952 2.51% 26.17% 8.25% $63,896 16.28% 14.13% 0.00%

May 12.93% $76,249 139.75% 8.85% 7.24% $47,731 -37.40% 16.78% 9.73% $75,387 57.94% 17.59% 0.00%

June 12.37% $72,946 46.93% 12.46% 8.44% $55,587 -23.80% 11.76% 8.41% $65,115 17.14% 17.55% 0.00%

Total 100.00% $589,488 100.00% $658,823 100.00% $774,475 100.00% $430,570

Prior year comparison Prior year comparison Prior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

Two & One-Half Percent (2-1/2%) Use Tax Analysis

2019 - 2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

$
5

0
,3

6
7

$
4

3
,9

1
5

$
5

2
,7

5
2

$
2

3
,6

6
9

$
4

0
,8

5
2

$
5

0
,2

1
3

$
2

6
,9

0
0 $

5
0

,6
2

5

$
4

7
,3

9
5

$
5

3
,6

0
5 $
7

6
,2

4
9

$
7

2
,9

4
6

$
4

6
,3

9
2

$
6

1
,1

9
2

$
4

7
,6

2
2

$
5

2
,4

5
3

$
5

8
,3

7
3

$
4

7
,8

3
3

$
4

1
,5

7
3

$
7

9
,2

7
5

$
6

5
,8

4
0

$
5

4
,9

5
2

$
4

7
,7

3
1

$
5

5
,5

8
7

$
3

7
,5

2
1

$
7

0
,9

4
5

$
5

1
,2

0
8

$
4

8
,0

2
9 $
6

8
,0

6
3

$
6

9
,9

7
7

$
5

6
,6

2
5

$
1

0
4

,3
5

6

$
6

3
,3

5
4

$
6

3
,8

9
6

$
7

5
,3

8
7

$
6

5
,1

1
5

$
5

6
,8

2
5

$
9

0
,4

9
3

$
7

6
,3

7
7

$
5

7
,1

7
5

$
6

8
,5

2
0

$
8

1
,1

8
0

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a
rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2019 -
2020

2020-
2021

2021-
2022

2022-
2023

158

#11.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 7.16% $3,885 -22.25% -22.25% 5.96% $3,526 -9.24% -9.24% 6.64% $6,772 92.03% 92.03% 18.75% $9,917 46.46% 46.46%

August 11.67% $6,335 110.82% 27.72% 9.16% $5,425 -14.37% -12.42% 6.83% $6,967 28.42% 53.48% 16.47% $8,715 25.09% 35.62%

September 10.70% $5,807 59.53% 37.67% 10.13% $5,999 3.32% -6.72% 7.42% $7,565 26.09% 42.49% 17.15% $9,071 19.91% 30.04%

October 6.39% $3,466 -4.97% 27.50% 6.35% $3,757 8.39% -4.03% 8.05% $8,211 118.56% 57.76% 13.31% $7,043 -14.22% 17.73%

November 5.75% $3,118 -4.21% 21.93% 5.38% $3,184 2.09% -3.19% 9.76% $9,956 212.74% 80.30% 16.26% $8,604 -13.58% 9.83%

December 11.83% $6,421 65.55% 29.48% 10.07% $5,963 -7.14% -4.06% 8.57% $8,738 46.55% 73.08% 18.06% $9,552 9.32% 9.74%

January 7.10% $3,854 0.40% 25.23% 7.25% $4,292 11.36% -2.25% 9.98% $10,185 137.32% 81.65% 0.00%

February 7.26% $3,938 -34.19% 14.20% 8.06% $4,771 21.14% 0.25% 7.99% $8,146 70.75% 80.24% 0.00%

March 9.75% $5,293 30.90% 16.06% 7.74% $4,583 -13.42% -1.47% 9.47% $9,655 110.68% 83.61% 0.00%

April 6.98% $3,787 20.74% 16.44% 11.44% $6,772 78.83% 5.15% 7.65% $7,802 15.21% 74.01% 0.00%

May 8.50% $4,615 43.88% 18.50% 6.51% $3,853 -16.50% 3.18% 5.51% $5,625 45.98% 71.94% 0.00%

June 6.93% $3,761 -9.77% 15.98% 11.95% $7,075 88.10% 9.06% 12.14% $12,385 75.04% 72.31% 0.00%

Total 100.00% $54,280 100.00% $59,199 100.00% $102,005 100.00% $52,902

Prior year comparison Prior year comparison Prior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

One Percent (1%) Downtown Community Improvement District Sales & Use Tax Analysis

2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

$
3

,8
8

5

$
6

,3
3

5

$
5

,8
0

7

$
3

,4
6

6

$
3

,1
1

8

$
6

,4
2

1

$
3

,8
5

4

$
3

,9
3

8

$
5

,2
9

3

$
3

,7
8

7

$
4

,6
1

5

$
3

,7
6

1

$
3

,5
2

6
 

$
5

,4
2

5
 

$
5

,9
9

9
 

$
3

,7
5

7
 

$
3

,1
8

4
 

$
5

,9
6

3
 

$
4

,2
9

2
 

$
4

,7
7

1
 

$
4

,5
8

3
 $
6

,7
7

2
 

$
3

,8
5

3
 

$
7

,0
7

5
 

$
6

,7
7

2
 

$
6

,9
6

7
 

$
7

,5
6

5
 

$
8

,2
1

1
 

$
9

,9
5

6
 

$
8

,7
3

8
 

$
1

0
,1

8
5

 

$
8

,1
4

6
 

$
9

,6
5

5
 

$
7

,8
0

2
 

$
5

,6
2

5
 

$
1

2
,3

8
5

 

$
9

,9
1

7
 

$
8

,7
1

5
 

$
9

,0
7

1
 

$
7

,0
4

3
 

$
8

,6
0

4
 

$
9

,5
5

2
 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a

rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2021-
2022

2022-
2023

159

#11.



Income July-November 2022 July-November 2021 $ Change % Change

4900 Miscellaneous 32,192.14 15,500.86 16,691.28 107.68%

4901 Interest Income 1,972.01 73.19 1,898.82 2594.37%

4950 Employer Contributions 537,045.20 559,217.30 (22,172.10) -3.96%

4951 Employee Contributions 104,852.56 124,751.63 (19,899.07) -15.95%

4952 Employee Cobra Payments 281.52 6,910.32 (6,628.80) -95.93%

4953 Reinsurance Refunds 37,759.01 22,992.94 14,766.07 64.22%

4954 Employee Buy-up Premiums 1,900.00 2,475.00 (575.00) -23.23%

716,002.44 731,921.24 (15,918.80) -2.17%

5406 Contracted Services 558.00 0.00 558.00 100.00%

5806 Miscellaneous 54.00 3,162.00 (3,108.00) -98.29%

5817 Bank Fees 732.62 402.68 329.94 81.94%

5850 Health Claims Paid 465,399.60 481,165.31 (15,765.71) -3.28%

5851 Pharmaceuticals 75,592.82 107,426.68 (31,833.86) -29.63%

5852 Reinsurance Premiums 113,642.60 155,153.54 (41,510.94) -26.75%

5853 Life Insurance Premiums 10,894.13 10,150.99 743.14 7.32%

5854 Medical Claims Admin Fees 25,322.91 32,008.50 (6,685.59) -20.89%

5855 Dental Claims Admin Fees 1,313.20 2,216.50 (903.30) -40.75%

5856 Air Ambulance Memberships 5,546.00 6,900.00 (1,354.00) -19.62%

5857 Dental Claims Paid 22,979.21 29,908.08 (6,928.87) -23.17%

5858 HSA Account Fees 427.50 370.00 57.50 15.54%

722,462.59 828,864.28 (106,401.69) -12.84%

Net Income (Loss) (6,460.15) (96,943.04) 90,482.89 -93.34%

Total Expenditures

Total Income

City of Moberly Health Plan Trust

Comparative Profit & Loss Statement - November 2022

Expenditures

160

#11.



November 30, 2022 November 30, 2021 $ Change % Change

1000 Cash 355,851.03 422,918.21 (67,067.18) -15.86%

355,851.03 422,918.21 (67,067.18) -15.86%

1300 Investments 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00%

355,851.03 422,918.21 (67,067.18) -15.86%

3000 Unreserved Fund Balance 362,311.18 519,861.25 (157,550.07) -30.31%

(6,460.15) (96,943.04) 90,482.89 -93.34%

355,851.03 422,918.21 (67,067.18) -15.86%

355,851.03 422,918.21 (67,067.18) -15.86%

    Net Income (Loss)

  Equity

  Total Equity

  TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

City of Moberly Health Plan Trust

Comparative Balance Sheet - November 30, 2022

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

  Current Assets

  Total Current Assets

  Other Assets

  Total Other Assets

ASSETS

161

#11.



162

#11.



                     City of 
                                                

                                                                                                                               

                                   

 
Police Department                                                                                                300 N Clark Street                 
Troy Link                                                                                                                 Moberly, MO  65270 
Chief of Police                                                                                                         Phone:      660-263-0346 
264th  Session FBI Academy                                                                                   Fax:          660-263-8540 

 
 

 

Division of Criminal Investigation 

Monthly Report 

November 2022 

 

 

 

 

1. Child Molestation: Suspect: DD, W/M, 29yoa; Victim: ID, W/F, 8yoa. Reports 

sent to RCPA. 

2. Child Molestation: Suspect: DE, W/M, 16yoa; Victim: HE, W/F, 7yoa. Reports to 

RCJO 

3. Knowingly Burning: Suspect: SB, W/M, 43yoa; Victim: COM. Reports sent to 

RCPA 

4. Knowingly Burning: Suspect: SB, W/M, 43yoa; Victim: AD. Reports sent to 

RCPA 

5. Rape: Suspect: UNK; Victim: DW, B/F, 80yoa (Unfounded) 

6.  Endangering Welfare of Child: Suspect: SW, W/M, 32 yoa; Victim: EW, W/M, 2 

yoa. Reports sent to RCPA 

7. Driving While Intoxicated: Suspect: JC, W/M, 43 yoa; Victim: State of MO. 

Reports sent to RCPA. 

8. Resisting Arrest: Suspect: JC, W/M, 43 yoa; Victim: State of MO. Reports sent to 

RCPA. 

9. Child Molestation 2nd Degree: Suspect: CM, W/M, 16 yoa; Victim: AM, W/F, 5 

yoa. Reports sent to RCJO. 

10. Child Molestation 4th Degree: Suspect: RW, W/M, 31 yoa; Victim: CS, W/F, 14 

yoa. Unfounded: Victim provided inconsistent/false details. 

11. Child Molestation 4th Degree: Suspect: RD, B/M, 38 yoa; Victim: RD, B/M, 17 

yoa. Unfounded 

 

 

 

 

Cases Cleared………………………………………..11 

163

#11.



Interviews……………………………………….……68 

Interrogations………………………………………...3 

Reports Written………………………………………66 

 

 

Special Assignments 

 

Monthly Report  

Tagged several body camera videos. 

Assisted children’s division on a hotline investigation.  

Followed up on a child molestation investigation. 

Completed Fall low light condition firearms training re-shoot.  

Conducted an interview in a child molestation investigation. 

Assisted patrol division in a shooting investigation. 

Responded to a call for a verbal peace disturbance. 

Responded to a call for an animal complaint. 

Responded to a call for peace disturbance for loud music. 

Provided information on the ex-parte process to an individual. 

Conducted a traffic stop in a careless driving investigation.  

Responded to a call for a suspicious person.  

Submitted a preservation request for ROBLOX account. 

Submitted a preservation request for a ROBLOX account. 

Assisted BCSO Cyber Crimes in a follow up. 

Responded to Rainbow House for a forensic interview. 

Followed up on a child molestation investigation.  

Responded to Rainbow House for a forensic interview.  

Followed up on a child molestation investigation.  

Responded to a call for a sexual assault complaint.  

Assisted patrol division on a burning investigation.  

Attended municipal court on a motor vehicle accident investigation. 

Conducted a follow up on a rape investigation. 

Conducted a follow up on a child abuse case.  

Submitted a CAC referral to Child Safe. 

Completed Paycom for detective unit. 

Approved numerous reports for Detective Unit. 

Tagged numerous body camera videos. 

Conducted follow up on DWI investigation. 

Attended forensic interview in Columbia for Child Molestation investigation. 

Conducted interview in reference to Child Molestation investigation. 

Follow up on Death Investigation. 

Completed MSHP Lab Analysis Request form. 

Contact Sedalia PD in reference to recovered stolen gun. 

Contacted by subject in reference to Harassment investigation. 

Received information on drug activity and forwarded it to NOMO Drug Task Force. 

Attended Juvenile Court in Huntsville. 

Attended forensic interview in Columbia reference Child Molestation investigation. 

164

#11.



                     City of 
                                                

                                                                                                                               

                                   

 
Police Department                                                                                                300 N Clark Street                 
Troy Link                                                                                                                 Moberly, MO  65270 
Chief of Police                                                                                                         Phone:      660-263-0346 
264th  Session FBI Academy                                                                                   Fax:          660-263-8540 

 
 

 

Assisted Patrol Division with warrant arrest. 

Consulted with MSHP Crime Laboratory in reference to testing of evidence. 

Contacted by Wentzville PD in reference to Sexual Assault investigation. 

Provided evidence to Columbia PD for Murder investigation. 

Conducted interviews in reference to a Sexual Assault investigation. 

Submitted referral to Rainbow House to schedule a forensic interview. 

Called out to assist with several illegal burnings. 

Attended forensic interview in Columbia reference Sexual Assault investigation. 

Assisted with arrest of subject for several counts of Knowingly Burning. 

Contacted by MSHP in reference to fraud investigation. 

Interviewed subjects in reference to Child Molestation investigation. 

Attended Supervisors Meeting. 

Attended forensic interview in Columbia reference Sexual Assault investigation. 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

Tracey Hayes 

Commander  

 

 

165

#11.



1 
 

 
Moberly Fire Department 

November Monthly Report 
2022 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

166

#11.



2 
 

 
City of Moberly Fire Department 

Emergency Dial 911         310 N. Clark 
Station #1  660-269-8705 EXT 2035       Moberly, MO 65270-1520 
Fax#          660-263-0596        Fire Chief 
E-mail     ryand@moberlyfd.com               Don Ryan 
Station #2  660-263-4121  
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Don Ryan, Fire Chief 
Date: December 1, 2022 
Re: November Monthly Council Report: 
 
 
 

• Last month the fire department responded to 153 incidents (36 different types) this included: 30 fire related calls; 
78 EMS Calls; 20 service calls; 8 good intent call; 12 false alarms & false calls; 1 Hazardous Condition (No 
Fire); 1 Overpressure, Rupture, Explosion, Overheat (No Fire); 3 Special Incident Types, and 19 fire 
inspections. 
 

• The Department’s three shifts combined for 396.0 training hours. The following topics were covered: Driver 
Operator Training; Fire Evacuation Drills; Ice Rescue Training; Trench Rescue Training; Grass and Wildfire 
Training; Water Distribution Training; Aerial Operations; Incident Management Training; Ladder Training: 
SCBA training; PPE Training; Search and Rescue Training; and Health and Wellness. 

 
• Building inspections (CFOs) and annual business inspections continue to be done by all three shifts. 

 
• Hydrant testing is completed for the year. 

 
• The Chief submitted a State of Missouri ARPA Grant in November.  This grant was the SFY2023 ARPA – State 

and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF) – Fire Protection Grant (FPG).  The department submitted a grant for 
the acquisition of five new thermal imaging cameras. 
 

• The department sent two personnel to the Missouri Emergency Services Instructor’s Conference in the Lake of 
the Ozarks.  The conference runs November 3rd through the 5th.   
 

• The department sent three personnel to the Hutchinson Fire Academy for the hands-on portion of the training.  
They left on November 4th and returned on November 18th.  Great work gentlemen! 
 

• The Department personnel provided the aerial for a fallen former public safety officer from Mexico, MO at the 
Pathway Funeral Home on the 4th. 
 

• The department participated in the Veteran’s Day Parade on the 12th. 
 

• Personnel from the department were provided a tour of the Mack Hils facility on the 14th. 
 

• The Chief attended the 24/63 Fire Chief’s Association Meeting on the 16th. 
 

• The department participated at the annual Turkey Trot 5K on the 24th. 
 

167

#11.



3 
 

• Department personnel on duty helped during a full evacuation drill at Valley View on the 28th. 
 

 
 

Notice for December 2022 
 

• The department will continue to provide business inspections to the community. 
 

• The Chief will continue to participate in the COVID-19 conference call (COAD) when they occur. 
 

• The department will participate in the annual Christmas Parade on December 3rd. 
 

• The department will be holding a recruit test on December 7th. 
 

• On-duty personnel will do a couple of shifts of bell ringing at Bratcher’s for this years City’s participation to help 
the Salvation Army on the December 8th. 
 

• Chief will be attending the Region B 4th Quarter Coordinator Meeting on December 8th in Kirksville, MO. 
 

• The department is hosting an electric vehicle fire training class on December 9th.  The class will be held at the 
Lodge in Rothwell Park. 
 

• The Chief will cover a shift for the city for the bell ringing at Bratcher’s for the Salvation Army on December 
16th. 
 

• The department would like to thank, in advance, all the hard work and efforts for those to help put on wonderful 
City of Moberly Safety Christmas Dinner!  Your efforts are appreciated, and we wanted to make sure they were 
recognized.  
 

• The department would like to wish everyone a Safe and Happy Holidays!  

168

#11.



Incident Reports By Incident Type, Summary

1 - Fire: 19.61 %

2 - Overpressure Rupture, Explosion, Overheat(no fire): 0.65 %

3 - Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident: 50.98 %

4 - Hazardous Condition (No Fire): 0.65 %

5 - Service Call: 13.07 %

6 - Good Intent Call: 5.23 %

7 - False Alarm & False Call: 7.84 %

9 - Special Incident Type: 1.96 %

Incident Type Total Incidents Percent

111 - Building fire 1 0.65%

131 - Passenger vehicle fire 1 0.65%

132 - Road freight or transport vehicle fire 1 0.65%

140 - Natural vegetation fire, other 3 1.96%

141 - Forest, woods or wildland fire 4 2.61%

142 - Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire 3 1.96%

150 - Outside rubbish fire, other 1 0.65%

151 - Outside rubbish, trash or waste fire 1 0.65%

1512 - Building Materials/ Demo Mat. Fire 2 1.31%

1513 - Yard Waste/ Refuse Fire 2 1.31%

154 - Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire 10 6.54%

161 - Outside storage fire 1 0.65%

December 01, 2022 08:03 Page 1 of 3

169

#11.



Incident Type Total Incidents Percent

223 - Air or gas rupture of pressure or process vessel 1 0.65%

311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 2 1.31%

3112 - Lift Assistance 12 7.84%

3113 - Standby, No care provided 4 2.61%

320 - Emergency medical service incident, other 1 0.65%

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 48 31.37%

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 8 5.23%

324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 2 1.31%

331 - Lock-in (if lock out , use 511 ) 1 0.65%

421 - Chemical hazard (no spill or leak) 1 0.65%

5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection 18 11.76%

5005 - CFO Inspection 1 0.65%

551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 1 0.65%

611 - Dispatched & canceled en route 3 1.96%

651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke 5 3.27%

700 - False alarm or false call, other 1 0.65%

714 - Central station, malicious false alarm 1 0.65%

733 - Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 4 2.61%

735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 2 1.31%

736 - CO detector activation due to malfunction 1 0.65%

7401 - Unintentional alarm transmission medical 1 0.65%

743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional 1 0.65%

746 - Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO 1 0.65%

911 - Citizen complaint 3 1.96%

Total Number of Incidents: 153

Total Number of Incident Types: 36

December 01, 2022 08:03 Page 2 of 3

170

#11.



Incident Type Total Incidents Percent

Report Filter Settings

Report File Name: Incidents by Incident Type, Summary with Major Type Graph

Filter Name: Last Calendar Month

Filter Expression: [AlarmDateTime] is between '11/1/2022 12:00:00 AM' and '11/30/2022 11:59:59 PM'

December 01, 2022 08:03 Page 3 of 3

171

#11.



Incident Reports by Incident Type Series, Detailed

3 - Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident

1 - Fire

5 - Service Call

7 - False Alarm & False Call

6 - Good Intent Call

9 - Special Incident Type

2 - Overpressure Rupture, Explosion, Overheat(no fire)

4 - Hazardous Condition (No Fire)

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

78

30

20

12
8

3
1 1

 December 01, 2022 09:41 Page 1 of 10

172

#11.



Incident Type: 1 - Fire

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date/Time Address

2201243 0 11/2/2022 2:54:51
PM

1100 BLK Taylor ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201245 0 11/2/2022 8:31:52
PM

1500 ROLLINS, Moberly, MO 65270

2201280 0 11/10/2022
12:11:22 PM

508 Austin ST E, Moberly, MO 65270

2201299 0 11/15/2022 6:46:41
AM

1301 N Morley ST N, Moberly, MO 65270

2201300 0 11/15/2022
10:39:28 AM

1720 Crete DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2201307 0 11/17/2022 4:04:50
PM

525 S 5TH, Moberly, MO 65270

2201313 0 11/19/2022 7:37:33
AM

1200 HIGHWAY 24, Moberly, MO 65270

2201314 0 11/19/2022 8:26:50
AM

1100 N MORLEY ST N, Moberly, MO 65270

2201318 0 11/19/2022 5:41:19
PM

620 N Morley ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201323 0 11/21/2022 2:09:06
PM

1019 RUSSHAVEN DR, MOBERLY, MO 65270

2201324 0 11/21/2022 2:43:07
PM

1408 N MORLEY ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201329 0 11/21/2022
10:02:00 PM

116 N FIFTH ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201330 0 11/21/2022
10:08:00 PM

116 N FIFTH ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201331 0 11/21/2022
10:09:00 PM

102 Johnson ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201332 0 11/21/2022
10:11:00 PM

700 W Coates ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201333 0 11/21/2022
10:12:00 PM

110 Hagood ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201334 0 11/21/2022
10:13:00 PM

705 W Coates ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201336 0 11/21/2022
10:14:00 PM

310 West End AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2201335 0 11/21/2022
10:16:00 PM

800 W Coates ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201337 0 11/21/2022
10:18:00 PM

700 W Reed ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201338 0 11/21/2022
10:22:00 PM

Rothwell Park near Holman Road , Moberly, MO 65270

 December 01, 2022 09:41 Page 2 of 10

173

#11.



2201339 0 11/21/2022
10:22:00 PM

30 Holman RD, Moberly, MO 65270

2201340 0 11/21/2022
10:36:00 PM

W Reed ST & Emerson ST, Moberly, MO

2201341 0 11/21/2022
10:45:00 PM

Holman RD & Franklin ST, Moberly, MO

2201342 0 11/21/2022
10:45:00 PM

W Reed ST & College AVE, Moberly, MO

2201343 0 11/21/2022
10:46:00 PM

515 S FOURTH ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201345 0 11/22/2022
11:56:00 AM

421 Terra PARK, Moberly, MO 65270

2201346 0 11/22/2022
11:59:06 AM

713 S WILLIAMS ST S, Moberly, MO 65270

2201349 0 11/22/2022 5:46:26
PM

1001 Holman RD, Moberly, MO 65270

2201359 0 11/25/2022 5:28:10
PM

101 MADISON AVE E, Moberly, MO 65270

Total Incidents: 30

Incident Type: 2 - Overpressure Rupture, Explosion, Overheat(no fire)

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date/Time Address

2201261 0 11/6/2022 10:42:20
AM

544 North AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

Total Incidents: 1

Incident Type: 3 - Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date/Time Address

2201233 0 11/1/2022 7:32:15
AM

Sturgeon & W Carpenter ST, Moberly, MO

2201234 0 11/1/2022 7:59:01
AM

E COATES & N Ault ST, Moberly, MO

2201238 0 11/2/2022 8:05:36
AM

602 Gratz Brown ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201239 0 11/2/2022 10:11:24
AM

1204 Shepherd's DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2201242 0 11/2/2022 1:25:40
PM

511 Fisk AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2201244 0 11/2/2022 6:24:50
PM

917 ST CHARLES, Moberly, MO 65270

2201246 0 11/2/2022 11:23:50
PM

317 MOREHEAD, Moberly, MO 65270

 December 01, 2022 09:41 Page 3 of 10

174

#11.



2201251 0 11/4/2022 2:17:19
AM

340 E McKinsey ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201252 0 11/4/2022 9:08:44
AM

107 N WILLIAMS ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201253 0 11/5/2022 2:34:25
AM

317 Morehead ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201254 0 11/5/2022 11:49:36
AM

444 ROLLINS, Moberly, MO 65270

2201255 0 11/5/2022 1:34:22
PM

604 CLEVELAND, Moberly, MO 65270

2201257 0 11/5/2022 4:23:59
PM

1000 S WILLIAMS #409, Moberly, MO 65270

2201259 0 11/5/2022 8:45:25
PM

1000 S WILLIAMS #209, Moberly, MO 65270

2201260 0 11/5/2022 9:07:43
PM

1325 BUCHANAN, Moberly, MO 65270

2201264 0 11/6/2022 10:24:23
PM

909 Bond ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201266 0 11/8/2022 3:30:45
PM

1204 Shepherd's DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2201269 0 11/8/2022 7:31:23
PM

302 College AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2201270 0 11/9/2022 10:34:03
AM

826 W REED ST W, Moberly, MO 65270

2201271 0 11/9/2022 1:59:34
PM

422 S MORLEY ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201274 0 11/9/2022 9:42:22
PM

E Highway 24 & N Morley ST, Moberly, MO

2201276 0 11/10/2022 9:19:23
AM

1714 N MORLEY ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201279 0 11/10/2022
11:48:10 AM

208 Edgewood TER, Moberly, MO 65270

2201281 0 11/10/2022
12:40:00 PM

W Reed ST & N Tannehill ST, Moberly, MO

2201282 0 11/10/2022 6:08:03
PM

209 N HINKLEY ST N, Moberly, MO 65270

2201283 0 11/11/2022 8:34:19
AM

1217 SHEPHERDS DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2201285 0 11/11/2022 4:48:46
PM

1222 HURLEY, Moberly, MO 65270

2201286 0 11/11/2022 5:25:33
PM

17 KENNEDY, Moberly, MO 65270

2201287 0 11/11/2022 5:44:00
PM

1210 E Highway 24, Moberly, MO 65270

2201288 0 11/12/2022 9:29:41
PM

208 Edgewood TER, Moberly, MO 65270

 December 01, 2022 09:41 Page 4 of 10

175

#11.



2201289 0 11/13/2022 2:21:56
AM

808 Gratz Brown ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201290 0 11/13/2022 3:11:40
AM

112 COLLINS AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2201291 0 11/13/2022
10:34:34 AM

924 FRANKLIN ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201292 0 11/13/2022 1:27:24
PM

317 MOREHEAD ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201293 0 11/13/2022
11:41:07 PM

1217 SHEPHERDS DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2201297 0 11/14/2022 8:18:00
PM

205 Farror ST #1003, Moberly, MO 65270

2201298 0 11/14/2022
10:08:29 PM

1215 Amanda DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2201302 0 11/16/2022 6:38:38
AM

1329 Myra ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201305 0 11/16/2022 7:22:46
PM

220 Taylor ST #208, Moberly, MO 65270

2201306 0 11/16/2022 7:54:07
PM

916 S Williams ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201310 0 11/18/2022 1:07:07
PM

205 FARROR ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201311 0 11/18/2022 6:09:28
PM

E Hwy 24 & E Outer RD, Moberly, MO

2201312 0 11/18/2022
10:14:08 PM

1206 SHEPHERD'S, Moberly, MO 65270

2201315 0 11/19/2022
11:32:22 AM

1210 E 24 HWY, Moberly, MO 65270

2201316 0 11/19/2022
11:56:32 AM

S AULT ST S & S Whiteman ST E, Moberly, MO

2201317 0 11/19/2022 1:59:09
PM

906 SHELBY DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2201320 0 11/19/2022 8:28:15
PM

1831 RAVENWOOD DR #8, Moberly, MO 65270

2201325 0 11/21/2022 3:35:48
PM

1217 SHEPHERDS DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2201347 0 11/22/2022 2:12:38
PM

625 Franklin AVE #15, Moberly, MO 65270

2201350 0 11/22/2022
10:19:22 PM

521 Meadow Ridge LN #208, Moberly, MO 65270

2201351 0 11/23/2022 9:20:08
AM

719 SINNOCK, Moberly, MO 65270

2201352 0 11/23/2022 5:10:00
PM

302 N College AVE #6, Moberly, MO 65270

2201353 0 11/24/2022 8:18:49
AM

Taylor ST & N Ault ST, Moberly, MO

 December 01, 2022 09:41 Page 5 of 10

176

#11.



2201354 0 11/24/2022 9:48:31
AM

646 PARK AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2201355 0 11/24/2022
11:24:01 AM

316 UNION AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2201356 0 11/24/2022
10:59:45 PM

1206 Shepherd's DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2201358 0 11/25/2022 9:23:28
AM

E HIGHWAY 24 HWY E & E hwy 63 HWY N, Moberly, MO

2201361 0 11/26/2022 8:51:02
AM

615 West End AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2201362 0 11/26/2022 3:42:31
PM

760 MEADOWBROOK, Moberly, MO 65270

2201363 0 11/26/2022 7:58:53
PM

416 WIGHTMAN, Moberly, MO 65270

2201364 0 11/26/2022 9:17:39
PM

301 S MORLEY, Moberly, MO 65270

2201365 0 11/27/2022 1:02:15
PM

1301 E HIGHWAY 24 HWY, Moberly, MO 65270

2201366 0 11/27/2022 3:48:55
PM

302 N COLLEGE AVE #2, Moberly, MO 65270

2201367 0 11/27/2022 6:11:46
PM

618 WILMAN ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201368 0 11/27/2022 9:13:51
PM

901 UNION AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2201369 0 11/27/2022 9:49:52
PM

809 BOND ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201370 0 11/27/2022 9:59:34
PM

2251 SILVA LN #28, Moberly, MO 65270

2201371 0 11/27/2022
10:33:04 PM

809 BOND ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201373 0 11/28/2022 8:56:47
AM

1831 Ravenwood TER #2, Moberly, MO 65270

2201374 0 11/28/2022 9:11:23
AM

809 BOND ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201375 0 11/28/2022 5:44:08
PM

416 HALLECK ST E, Moberly, MO 65270

2201377 0 11/29/2022 4:50:22
AM

909 BOND ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201378 0 11/30/2022
12:10:44 AM

314 E Rollins ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201379 0 11/30/2022 9:03:03
AM

1206 Shepherd's DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2201380 0 11/30/2022 9:58:30
AM

811 Urbandale DR E, MOBERLY, MO 65270

2201382 0 11/30/2022
10:43:39 AM

411 FULTON AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

 December 01, 2022 09:41 Page 6 of 10

177

#11.



2201383 0 11/30/2022
12:06:22 PM

111 N Fourth ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201385 0 11/30/2022 9:51:46
PM

600 E McKinsey ST, Moberly, MO 65270

Total Incidents: 78

Incident Type: 4 - Hazardous Condition (No Fire)

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date/Time Address

2201240 0 11/2/2022 10:40:49
AM

E US 24 & Robertson RD, Moberly, MO

Total Incidents: 1

Incident Type: 5 - Service Call

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date/Time Address

2201235 0 11/1/2022 3:30:00
PM

1342 Lanten PT, Moberly, MO 65270

2201236 0 11/1/2022 7:55:25
PM

1033 BUCHANAN, Moberly, MO 65270

2201241 0 11/2/2022 11:55:00
AM

1301 E 24 HWY, Moberly, MO 65270

2201248 0 11/3/2022 1:00:00
PM

518 S Clark ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201265 0 11/8/2022 10:00:00
AM

492 Woodland AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2201267 0 11/8/2022 3:50:00
PM

718 Franklin ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201268 0 11/8/2022 4:07:00
PM

505 Greenbrier RD, Moberly, MO 65270

2201272 0 11/9/2022 9:57:00
AM

103 Fulton AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2201273 0 11/9/2022 3:40:00
PM

616 W Carpenter ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201275 0 11/10/2022 8:30:00
AM

111 N 4th ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201277 0 11/10/2022
10:30:00 AM

519 Garfield AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2201278 0 11/10/2022
11:30:00 AM

200 Bedford ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201284 0 11/11/2022 9:58:00
AM

201 W Reed ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201295 0 11/14/2022 8:27:00
AM

1517 Union AVE #A,B,C, Moberly, MO 65270

 December 01, 2022 09:41 Page 7 of 10

178

#11.



2201301 0 11/15/2022
11:00:00 AM

527 W Logan ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201303 0 11/16/2022 3:00:00
PM

215 College AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2201304 0 11/16/2022 4:00:00
PM

413 Greenbrier RD, Moberly, MO 65270

2201309 0 11/18/2022
10:00:00 AM

468 E Burkhart ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201344 0 11/22/2022
10:00:00 AM

703 McKinsey PL, Moberly, MO 65270

2201348 0 11/22/2022 3:00:00
PM

500 Oak TER, Moberly, MO 65270

Total Incidents: 20

Incident Type: 6 - Good Intent Call

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date/Time Address

2201249 0 11/3/2022 4:25:48
PM

435 E Burkhart ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201262 0 11/6/2022 5:34:23
PM

N Molton ST & Jefferson AVE, Moberly, MO

2201263 0 11/6/2022 10:03:32
PM

538 West End PL, Moberly, MO 65270

2201308 0 11/17/2022
11:09:24 PM

526 W MCKINSEY, Moberly, MO 65270

2201326 0 11/21/2022 6:13:13
PM

410 S MORLEY ST #3, Moberly, MO 65270

2201327 0 11/21/2022 8:38:17
PM

1208 WOODY AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2201328 0 11/21/2022 9:46:30
PM

40 KENNEDY DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2201360 0 11/25/2022 5:35:37
PM

MADISON, Moberly, MO 65270

Total Incidents: 8

Incident Type: 7 - False Alarm & False Call

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date/Time Address

2201237 0 11/2/2022 4:01:29
AM

601 S CLARK, Moberly, MO 65270

2201247 0 11/3/2022 6:42:40
AM

220 TAYLOR, Moberly, MO 65270

2201250 0 11/3/2022 9:06:01
PM

1625 Gratz Brown ST, Moberly, MO 65270

 December 01, 2022 09:41 Page 8 of 10

179

#11.



2201256 0 11/5/2022 2:25:00
PM

205 Farror ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201258 0 11/5/2022 7:14:02
PM

508 CHANDLAR, Moberly, MO 65270

2201319 0 11/19/2022 8:53:17
PM

904 Vincil ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201321 0 11/20/2022
11:58:55 AM

700 E URBANDALE DR, Moberly, MO 65270

2201322 0 11/20/2022 3:39:00
PM

2251 SILVA, Moberly, MO 65270

2201357 0 11/25/2022 8:42:06
AM

2041 Silva LN, Moberly, MO 65270

2201372 0 11/28/2022 7:03:31
AM

120 WIGHTMAN, Moberly, MO 65270

2201376 0 11/28/2022 6:03:12
PM

1906 Chariton AVE, Moberly, MO 65270

2201381 0 11/30/2022
10:26:54 AM

205 FARROR ST, Moberly, MO 65270

Total Incidents: 12

Incident Type: 9 - Special Incident Type

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date/Time Address

2201294 0 11/14/2022 7:38:35
AM

1015 W Rollins ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201296 0 11/14/2022
10:22:26 AM

706 S Clark ST, Moberly, MO 65270

2201384 0 11/30/2022 6:02:43
PM

818 W Coates ST, Moberly, MO 65270

Total Incidents: 3

Total Number of Distict Incidents: 153

Total Number of Distict Incident Types: 36

 December 01, 2022 09:41 Page 9 of 10

180

#11.



Report Filter Settings

Report File Name: Incident Reports by Incident Major Type, Detailed

Filter Name: Last Month

Filter Expression: [AlarmDateTime] is between '11/1/2022 12:00:00 AM' and '11/30/2022 11:59:59 PM'

 December 01, 2022 09:41 Page 10 of 10

181

#11.



Incident Reports by Time of Day, Detailed

12:00 am

3:00 am

6:00 am

8:00 am

10:00 am

12:00 pm

2:00 pm

4:00 pm

6:00 pm

8:00 pm

10:00 pm

0

3

6

9

12

15

18

21

24

1
3

1

2 3
5

9 10
13

11

3

8
5

10

6
9

7 6 6

10

22

3

12:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201378 0 11/30/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 1

2:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201251 0 11/4/2022 3113 - Standby, No care provided

2201253 0 11/5/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201289 0 11/13/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 3

3:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201290 0 11/13/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

 December 01, 2022 09:37 Page 1 of 10

182

#11.



Total Number of Incidents: 1

4:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201237 0 11/2/2022 743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional

2201377 0 11/29/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 2

6:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201247 0 11/3/2022 7401 - Unintentional alarm transmission medical

2201299 0 11/15/2022 131 - Passenger vehicle fire

2201302 0 11/16/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 3

7:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201233 0 11/1/2022 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries

2201234 0 11/1/2022 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries

2201294 0 11/14/2022 911 - Citizen complaint

2201313 0 11/19/2022 1512 - Building Materials/ Demo Mat. Fire

2201372 0 11/28/2022 736 - CO detector activation due to malfunction

Total Number of Incidents: 5

8:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201238 0 11/2/2022 3112 - Lift Assistance

2201275 0 11/10/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201283 0 11/11/2022 3112 - Lift Assistance

2201295 0 11/14/2022 5005 - CFO Inspection

2201314 0 11/19/2022 154 - Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire

2201353 0 11/24/2022 3112 - Lift Assistance

 December 01, 2022 09:37 Page 2 of 10

183

#11.



2201357 0 11/25/2022 746 - Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO

2201361 0 11/26/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201373 0 11/28/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 9

9:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201252 0 11/4/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201272 0 11/9/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201276 0 11/10/2022 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries

2201284 0 11/11/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201351 0 11/23/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201354 0 11/24/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201358 0 11/25/2022 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries

2201374 0 11/28/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201379 0 11/30/2022 3112 - Lift Assistance

2201380 0 11/30/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 10

10:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201239 0 11/2/2022 3112 - Lift Assistance

2201240 0 11/2/2022 421 - Chemical hazard (no spill or leak)

2201261 0 11/6/2022 223 - Air or gas rupture of pressure or process vessel

2201265 0 11/8/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201270 0 11/9/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201277 0 11/10/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201291 0 11/13/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201296 0 11/14/2022 911 - Citizen complaint

2201300 0 11/15/2022 132 - Road freight or transport vehicle fire

2201309 0 11/18/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201344 0 11/22/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

 December 01, 2022 09:37 Page 3 of 10

184

#11.



2201381 0 11/30/2022 700 - False alarm or false call, other

2201382 0 11/30/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 13

11:00 am

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201241 0 11/2/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201254 0 11/5/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201278 0 11/10/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201279 0 11/10/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201301 0 11/15/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201315 0 11/19/2022 331 - Lock-in (if lock out , use 511 )

2201316 0 11/19/2022 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries

2201321 0 11/20/2022 735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction

2201345 0 11/22/2022 1513 - Yard Waste/ Refuse Fire

2201346 0 11/22/2022 150 - Outside rubbish fire, other

2201355 0 11/24/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 11

12:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201280 0 11/10/2022 142 - Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire

2201281 0 11/10/2022 324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries.

2201383 0 11/30/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 3

1:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201242 0 11/2/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201248 0 11/3/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201255 0 11/5/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

 December 01, 2022 09:37 Page 4 of 10

185

#11.



2201271 0 11/9/2022 3113 - Standby, No care provided

2201292 0 11/13/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201310 0 11/18/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201317 0 11/19/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201365 0 11/27/2022 311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew

Total Number of Incidents: 8

2:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201243 0 11/2/2022 142 - Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire

2201256 0 11/5/2022 714 - Central station, malicious false alarm

2201323 0 11/21/2022 151 - Outside rubbish, trash or waste fire

2201324 0 11/21/2022 140 - Natural vegetation fire, other

2201347 0 11/22/2022 3112 - Lift Assistance

Total Number of Incidents: 5

3:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201235 0 11/1/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201266 0 11/8/2022 3112 - Lift Assistance

2201267 0 11/8/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201273 0 11/9/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201303 0 11/16/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201322 0 11/20/2022 733 - Smoke detector activation due to malfunction

2201325 0 11/21/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201348 0 11/22/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201362 0 11/26/2022 3112 - Lift Assistance

2201366 0 11/27/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 10

4:00 pm

 December 01, 2022 09:37 Page 5 of 10

186

#11.



Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201249 0 11/3/2022 611 - Dispatched & canceled en route

2201257 0 11/5/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201268 0 11/8/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201285 0 11/11/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201304 0 11/16/2022 5001 - Gas Appliance Inspection

2201307 0 11/17/2022 111 - Building fire

Total Number of Incidents: 6

5:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201262 0 11/6/2022 651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke

2201286 0 11/11/2022 311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew

2201287 0 11/11/2022 324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries.

2201318 0 11/19/2022 154 - Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire

2201349 0 11/22/2022 1512 - Building Materials/ Demo Mat. Fire

2201352 0 11/23/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201359 0 11/25/2022 1513 - Yard Waste/ Refuse Fire

2201360 0 11/25/2022 611 - Dispatched & canceled en route

2201375 0 11/28/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 9

6:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201244 0 11/2/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201282 0 11/10/2022 3113 - Standby, No care provided

2201311 0 11/18/2022 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries

2201326 0 11/21/2022 651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke

2201367 0 11/27/2022 320 - Emergency medical service incident, other

2201376 0 11/28/2022 733 - Smoke detector activation due to malfunction

2201384 0 11/30/2022 911 - Citizen complaint

 December 01, 2022 09:37 Page 6 of 10

187

#11.



Total Number of Incidents: 7

7:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201236 0 11/1/2022 551 - Assist police or other governmental agency

2201258 0 11/5/2022 733 - Smoke detector activation due to malfunction

2201269 0 11/8/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201305 0 11/16/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201306 0 11/16/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201363 0 11/26/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

Total Number of Incidents: 6

8:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201245 0 11/2/2022 142 - Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire

2201259 0 11/5/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201297 0 11/14/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201320 0 11/19/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201319 0 11/19/2022 733 - Smoke detector activation due to malfunction

2201327 0 11/21/2022 651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke

Total Number of Incidents: 6

9:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201250 0 11/3/2022 735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction

2201260 0 11/5/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201274 0 11/9/2022 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries

2201288 0 11/12/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201328 0 11/21/2022 651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke

2201364 0 11/26/2022 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries

2201368 0 11/27/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201369 0 11/27/2022 3112 - Lift Assistance

 December 01, 2022 09:37 Page 7 of 10

188

#11.



2201370 0 11/27/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201385 0 11/30/2022 3113 - Standby, No care provided

Total Number of Incidents: 10

10:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

2201263 0 11/6/2022 651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke

2201264 0 11/6/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201298 0 11/14/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201312 0 11/18/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201329 0 11/21/2022 154 - Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire

2201330 0 11/21/2022 154 - Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire

2201331 0 11/21/2022 154 - Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire

2201332 0 11/21/2022 154 - Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire

2201333 0 11/21/2022 161 - Outside storage fire

2201334 0 11/21/2022 154 - Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire

2201336 0 11/21/2022 154 - Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire

2201335 0 11/21/2022 154 - Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire

2201337 0 11/21/2022 154 - Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire

2201338 0 11/21/2022 141 - Forest, woods or wildland fire

2201339 0 11/21/2022 140 - Natural vegetation fire, other

2201340 0 11/21/2022 141 - Forest, woods or wildland fire

2201341 0 11/21/2022 141 - Forest, woods or wildland fire

2201342 0 11/21/2022 141 - Forest, woods or wildland fire

2201343 0 11/21/2022 140 - Natural vegetation fire, other

2201350 0 11/22/2022 3112 - Lift Assistance

2201356 0 11/24/2022 3112 - Lift Assistance

2201371 0 11/27/2022 3112 - Lift Assistance

Total Number of Incidents: 22

11:00 pm

Incident # Exp # Alarm Date Incident Type

 December 01, 2022 09:37 Page 8 of 10

189

#11.



2201246 0 11/2/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201293 0 11/13/2022 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

2201308 0 11/17/2022 611 - Dispatched & canceled en route

Total Number of Incidents: 3

 December 01, 2022 09:37 Page 9 of 10

190

#11.



Report Filter Settings

Report Name: Incident Reports by Time of Day, Detailed

Filter Name: last month

Filter Expression: [AlarmDateTime] is between '11/1/2022 12:00:00 AM' and '11/30/2022 11:59:59 PM'

 December 01, 2022 09:37 Page 10 of 10

191

#11.



Incident Reports by Apparatus, Summary

Apparatus: Total Number of Incidents Responded to:

302 - 2014
Saber

81

303 - 2011
Ford 350

3

304 - 2002
Contender

2

305 - 2007
Contender

60

310 - 2013
Dodge Dakota

P/U

4

313 - 2008
Command

Vehicle

96

Total Number of Incidents: 153

 December 02, 2022 08:03 Page 1 of 2

192

#11.



Report Filter Settings

Report Name: Incident Reports by Apparatus, Summary

Filter Name: Last Month

Filter Expression: [AlarmDateTime] is between '11/1/2022 12:00:00 AM' and '11/30/2022 11:59:59 PM'

 December 02, 2022 08:03 Page 2 of 2

193

#11.



Department Log Hours and Points, Detailed

Allen, Keagan

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/29/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Fire Evacutaion drills for
nursing homes
Accountability

Start Time: 11/29/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Start Time: 11/17/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Ice RescueTrench Rescue

Start Time: 11/2/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Grass and wildlnad fires

Start Time: 11/2/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Total Hours and Points: 15:00 0 14

Ballow, Bobby, W

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/17/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Ice RescueTrench Rescue

Start Time: 11/16/2022 10:00:00
AM

Activity: 02:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Nwe Hire Training

 December 01, 2022 07:01 Page 1 of 14

194

#11.



Start Time: 11/2/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Grass and wildlnad fires

Start Time: 11/2/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Total Hours and Points: 11:30 0 13

Boeding, Matthew

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/29/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Fire Evacutaion drills for
nursing homes
Accountability

Start Time: 11/29/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Start Time: 11/17/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Ice RescueTrench Rescue

Start Time: 11/8/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Finacial retirment training
Edward Jones speaker

Start Time: 11/8/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Start Time: 11/2/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Grass and wildlnad fires

Start Time: 11/2/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Total Hours and Points: 20:30 0 19

Brockman, Stacy, D

Time at Hours

 December 01, 2022 07:01 Page 2 of 14

195

#11.



Activity Paid Points

Start Time: 11/29/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Fire Evacutaion drills for
nursing homes
Accountability

Start Time: 11/29/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Start Time: 11/8/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Finacial retirment training
Edward Jones speaker

Start Time: 11/8/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Start Time: 11/2/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Grass and wildlnad fires

Start Time: 11/2/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Total Hours and Points: 16:30 0 15

Cody, Mark A

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/28/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. physical training.
(YMCA)

Start Time: 11/25/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training New Hire
TrainingConnecting to
water source

Start Time: 11/22/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: On Duty 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training

 December 01, 2022 07:01 Page 3 of 14

196

#11.



Start Time: 11/22/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. physical training.
(YMCA)

Start Time: 11/16/2022 10:00:00
AM

Activity: 02:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Nwe Hire Training

Start Time: 11/7/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1  hr. physical training.
(YMCA)

Start Time: 11/4/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. Physical training.

Start Time: 11/1/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: On Duty 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 4 Hours in house training.

Start Time: 11/1/2022 9:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 hr. physical training.

Total Hours and Points: 19:00 0 20

Davidson, Wade

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/22/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: On Duty 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training

Start Time: 11/1/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: On Duty 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 4 Hours in house training.

Total Hours and Points: 08:00 0 8

Dutton II, Kenneth Ross

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/29/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Fire Evacutaion drills for
nursing homes

 December 01, 2022 07:01 Page 4 of 14

197

#11.



nursing homes
Accountability

Start Time: 11/29/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Start Time: 11/8/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Finacial retirment training
Edward Jones speaker

Start Time: 11/8/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Start Time: 11/2/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Grass and wildlnad fires

Total Hours and Points: 15:00 0 14

Fulks, Scott

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/29/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Fire Evacutaion drills for
nursing homes
Accountability

Start Time: 11/29/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Start Time: 11/8/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Total Hours and Points: 07:00 0 6

McCawley, Justus

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/28/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. physical training.
(YMCA)

 December 01, 2022 07:01 Page 5 of 14

198

#11.



Start Time: 11/25/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training New Hire
TrainingConnecting to
water source

Start Time: 11/22/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: On Duty 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training

Start Time: 11/22/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. physical training.
(YMCA)

Start Time: 11/16/2022 10:00:00
AM

Activity: 02:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Nwe Hire Training

Total Hours and Points: 12:00 0 14

McGee, Dusty

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/28/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. physical training.
(YMCA)

Start Time: 11/25/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training New Hire
TrainingConnecting to
water source

Start Time: 11/22/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: On Duty 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training

Start Time: 11/22/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. physical training.
(YMCA)

Start Time: 11/16/2022 10:00:00
AM

Activity: 02:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Nwe Hire Training

 December 01, 2022 07:01 Page 6 of 14

199

#11.



Start Time: 11/7/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1  hr. physical training.
(YMCA)

Start Time: 11/4/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. Physical training.

Start Time: 11/1/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: On Duty 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 4 Hours in house training.

Start Time: 11/1/2022 9:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 hr. physical training.

Total Hours and Points: 19:00 0 20

Price, Darren

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/4/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. Physical training.

Total Hours and Points: 01:00 0 0

Putnam, Cory

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/21/2022 7:30:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Station 1 & 2: All
personnel conducted
physical fitness training
that included
weightlifting, conditioning,
and agility exercises.

Total Hours and Points: 01:00 0 1

Reinhart, Joey

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

 December 01, 2022 07:01 Page 7 of 14

200

#11.



Start Time: 11/21/2022 7:30:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Station 1 & 2: All
personnel conducted
physical fitness training
that included
weightlifting, conditioning,
and agility exercises.

Total Hours and Points: 01:00 0 1

Rhoads, Lawrence

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/25/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training New Hire
TrainingConnecting to
water source

Start Time: 11/22/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: On Duty 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training

Start Time: 11/22/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. physical training.
(YMCA)

Start Time: 11/17/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Ice RescueTrench Rescue

Start Time: 11/16/2022 10:00:00
AM

Activity: 02:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Nwe Hire Training

Start Time: 11/8/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Finacial retirment training
Edward Jones speaker

Start Time: 11/8/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Start Time: 11/7/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1  hr. physical training.

 December 01, 2022 07:01 Page 8 of 14

201

#11.



(YMCA)

Start Time: 11/4/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. Physical training.

Start Time: 11/1/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: On Duty 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 4 Hours in house training.

Start Time: 11/1/2022 9:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 hr. physical training.

Total Hours and Points: 27:30 0 28

Steeves, Zachariah

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/21/2022 7:30:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Station 1 & 2: All
personnel conducted
physical fitness training
that included
weightlifting, conditioning,
and agility exercises.

Total Hours and Points: 01:00 0 1

Stone, Slater

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/29/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Fire Evacutaion drills for
nursing homes
Accountability

Start Time: 11/29/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Start Time: 11/21/2022 7:30:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Station 1 & 2: All
personnel conducted

 December 01, 2022 07:01 Page 9 of 14

202

#11.



physical fitness training
that included
weightlifting, conditioning,
and agility exercises.

Start Time: 11/8/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Finacial retirment training
Edward Jones speaker

Start Time: 11/8/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Start Time: 11/2/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Grass and wildlnad fires

Start Time: 11/2/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Total Hours and Points: 17:30 0 16

Sunderland, Daniel J

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/28/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. physical training.
(YMCA)

Start Time: 11/25/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training New Hire
TrainingConnecting to
water source

Start Time: 11/22/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: On Duty 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training

Start Time: 11/22/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. physical training.
(YMCA)

Start Time: 11/16/2022 10:00:00
AM

Activity: 02:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Nwe Hire Training

 December 01, 2022 07:01 Page 10 of 14

203

#11.



Start Time: 11/7/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1  hr. physical training.
(YMCA)

Start Time: 11/4/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. Physical training.

Start Time: 11/1/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: On Duty 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 4 Hours in house training.

Start Time: 11/1/2022 9:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 hr. physical training.

Total Hours and Points: 19:00 0 20

Westhues, Cody

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/21/2022 7:30:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Station 1 & 2: All
personnel conducted
physical fitness training
that included
weightlifting, conditioning,
and agility exercises.

Total Hours and Points: 01:00 0 1

Wilborn, Patrick

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/21/2022 7:30:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Station 1 & 2: All
personnel conducted
physical fitness training
that included
weightlifting, conditioning,
and agility exercises.

 December 01, 2022 07:01 Page 11 of 14

204

#11.



Total Hours and Points: 01:00 0 1

Wisdom, Zachary

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/28/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 Hr. physical training.
(YMCA)

Start Time: 11/25/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training New Hire
TrainingConnecting to
water source

Start Time: 11/1/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: On Duty 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 4 Hours in house training.

Start Time: 11/1/2022 9:00:00
AM

Activity: On Duty 01:00 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training 1 hr. physical training.

Total Hours and Points: 10:00 0 10

Wolverton, Charles B

Time at
Activity

Hours
Paid Points

Start Time: 11/29/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Fire Evacutaion drills for
nursing homes
Accountability

Start Time: 11/29/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Start Time: 11/17/2022 1:00:00
PM

Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Ice RescueTrench Rescue

Start Time: 11/8/2022 1:00:00 PM Activity: 04:00 4

Log Type: Entry Text:Training Finacial retirment training
Edward Jones speaker

 December 01, 2022 07:01 Page 12 of 14

205

#11.



Start Time: 11/8/2022 8:00:00
AM

Activity: 01:30 1

Log Type: Entry Text:Training YMCA

Total Hours and Points: 15:00 0 14

Grand Total Hours and Points: 9 Days, 22: 0 236

 December 01, 2022 07:01 Page 13 of 14

206

#11.



Report Filter Settings

Report Name: Department Log Hours and Points, Detailed

Filter Name: Last Month's Training

Filter Expression: ([StartTime] is between '11/1/2022 12:00:00 AM' and '11/30/2022 11:59:59 PM') And
([LogTypeID] equals 'Training')

 December 01, 2022 07:01 Page 14 of 14

207

#11.



2022 2021
Thompson Campground 73 Daily(64) Monthly(9) 56

Misc. Thompson Campground - - -

Miscellaneous Park Fees $112.40 Heat tape, candy, etc. $560

Overnight Fishing Passes - - -

Paddleboat Rental - - -

Canoe Storage - - -

Archery Range - - -

Overlook & Plaza 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Midway 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Agricultural Barns 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Equestrian Area/

Rodeo Ground
1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

James Youth Center 10

Family Reunion(3) Family 

Thanksgiving(1) High School 

Adventure Club(1) Birthday Party(1) 

4H Meetings(2) Quinceara(1)  

Internal: City Holiday(1 res 4 days)

8

Lodge 7

Cowboy's for Chrismtas(1 res. 3 

days) Wedding(1) Family Reunion(1) 

Birthday Party(2) Altrusa Christmas 

Tree Lighting Ceremony(1) Internal: 

Holiday Closure(1 res. 4 days)

6

Lion's Beuth Park 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Tannehill Park & Gazebo 2

Internal: Moberly Community 

Betterment Light Up Moberly(1 res. 

29 days) Holiday Closure(1)

1

Depot Park (Entire Park) 2

Internal: Moberly Community 

Betterment Light Up Moberly(1 res. 

29 days) Holiday Closure(1)

2

Rothwell Park 5K / Complex 5K 2
Internal: Holiday Closure(2-each 5K 

route closed)
2

2022 2021
Red 1 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Red 2 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Blue 1 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Blue 2 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Blue 3 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Green 1 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Green 2 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Green 3 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Green 4 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Green 5 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Green 6 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Groeber 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Monthly Report

November 2022

P
ar

ks
Fi

e
ld

s

208

#11.



Meinert 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Patrick 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Fox Field 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Fox Park Pickleball / Tennis Courts 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Batting Cages 2
Internal: Holiday Closure(2-each 

batting cage closed)
2

Shelter 1 Tennis Courts 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Wilhite Tennis Courts 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

2022 2021

Shelter 1 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Shelter 3 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Shelter 5 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Fox Park Shelter 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Klein Shelter 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Lake Pavilion 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Riley Pavilion 3

Altrusa Christmas Tree Lighting 

Ceremony(1) Internal: Christmas 

Lights in the Park(1 res. 28 days) 

Holiday Closure(1)

2

Meditation Garden and Legacy Overlook 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

Depot Park Shelter 1 Internal: Holiday Closure(1) 1

2022 2021

A
u

d
it

o
ri

u
m

Entire Facility 4

Chamber of Commerce State of our 

Community(1) America's Best 

Pageant(1 res. 2 days) Family Life 

Fellowship Volunteers Dinner(1 res. 

2 days) Internal: Holiday Closure(1 

res. 5 days)

5

2022 2021

Entire Facility - - -

Sunshade Area - - -

2022 2021

R
e

cr
e

at
io

n
A

q
u

at
ic

 C
e

n
te

r
Fi

e
ld

s
Sh

e
lt

e
rs

209

#11.



Director – Troy Bock 

 Bleigh removed the old dugout structures and dug the base for the new dugouts. They 

seem to be moving reasonably quickly and may pour concrete in December. 

 The archaeologist work plan was approved by the National Park Service so sampling will 

now begin at Kiwanis Park and likely be concluded the second week of December. If no 

artifacts are found, the grant process will move to the next stage in the process. We hope 

for grant award late winter or spring next calendar year. 

 Leslie and I helped the City go through document archives to get batches ready for 

destruction or storage and reorganizing what needed to remain in storage. We continue to 

work on old Department files as we can around other projects. This is an annual 

offseason project to prevent the build-up of excess files and reduce the old build-up. 

 Met with Marla Stegall and Dirk to develop a custom railing between Candy Cane City 

and the old small shelter to the west. This is required by insurance. We are having it 

constructed in a way where it does not detract from the amenities and allows parents to 

still see the playground. Full fencing/barriers are a detriment in Parks and Recreation as 

they obscure activity and take away from the amenities, flow, and appearance. The final 

product will be as good as it can possibly be while meeting MIRMA requirements. 

 Bid out Shelter 5 roof/truss replacement as the shelter is in dire need of renovation. Some 

work (posts, removal of electrical) will be done in-house. 

 Attended the monthly Building Communities for Better Health coalition based at the 

Health Department. The coalition develops marketing, education, and projects that 

improve community health. 

 Worked through the policy manual for revisions heading into 2023. 

 Met with Jeff Alton on storage locations for the existing fencing stored in the sale barn. 

The goal is to remove the sale barn in January. While it was the least-dire of all the barns 

during our third-party inspection 4-5 years ago, it is nonetheless needing a lot and in the 

10 year plan, we promised to demolish all the barns and replace them with a multipurpose 

pavilion. The solar pavilion fulfilled this replacement. 

 Heritage Hills: 

o Dustin McCormick has completed the cart paths on hole 1 and 2 and is now 

working on #9. 

o Landscaping around the clubhouse is nearly complete and has been a significant 

change. Double layers of plastic sheeting were put down so the landscaping will 

be lower maintenance. 

o Met with Brian Minnis for a monthly update on Heritage Hills operations. Overall 

things are going well. The needs tend to be focused on capital purchases and 

infrastructure improvements over time as well as continuing to improve the 

grounds. 

o Parks and Recreation staff looked at the pumphouses on #9 and #13 with the 

former being the worst condition. We will be developing a plan for renovating 

those pumphouses. We are hoping to purchase material kits and use in-house 

labor, focusing on #9 first. 

 

Administration – Leslie Keeney  

 Assisted Jenna in reviewing the 2023 Activity Guide.  

 Held another Fees and Policies committee meeting to discuss policy updates/changes for 

2023. 

 Submitted MPRA Region 2 Director’s report for the upcoming MPRA December Board 

meeting. Will be traveling to Jefferson City to attend meeting.  

210

#11.



 Began calculating pool/concession revenue for the 2022 season. Did some research on 

Pepsi invoices and discovered they had overcharged the department per contract pricing; 

department will be receiving a refund for the overage amount paid. 

 Worked with Schindler Elevator to set-up what we hope is the final inspection so we can 

get our elevator up to code for its State License.  

 Oversaw day to day operations of Parks and Recreation Office. 

 

Dirk Miller – Park Superintendent 

 Fixed a weak spot in the floor of a bridge for Heritage Hills Golf Course. Bridge had 

rotten wood and needed extensive repairs. Took down a large dead tree, cut up, and 

cleared the area.  

 Inspected the Pump Houses at Heritage Hills for replacements for entire buildings at two 

different locations. Idea is to find an already built or pre-fab kit, to place over existing 

concrete floor.  

 Continued to fix/repair Christmas lights on displays. Have had some issues where 

someone is unplugging or changing the timers on displays and had 2-3 controllers fail on 

animated displays. 

 Finished spreading chat around south end of Rothwell Park around memorial benches, 

power poles, signs, etc.  

 Had stormwater inspections done at the maintenance buildings, Pool, and Splash Pad.  

 Added several loads of base rock to roads used for Altrusa displays and around Shelter #5 

loop.  

 Removed large dead oak tree across road from JYC and one to the west of Groeber 

baseball field. 

 Trevor Hill completed work on the extension to the seawall at the Rothwell Paddle Boat 

Dock. 

 Analyzed concrete slabs at Complex for replacements and drain tiles against bids from 

FRS, Helitech, and Raising Solutions. 

 Oversaw concrete being laid for new dugouts at Complex.  

 Kusgan sealed concrete at the Solar Shelter.  

 Still looking for a replacement solution for the cab version Kubota side-by-side. 
 

Jacob Bunten – Athletic Complex Supervisor/Sports Manager  

Athletic Complex: 

 The walk-in freeze was powered down for winter. Estimated average savings of 

$300/month on electricity costs. 

 Restrooms were winterized and signage was posted. 

 Water reels and irrigation was winterized. 

 Bleigh continued working on MACC dugouts and batting cages.  

Sports – None 

 

 

  

211

#11.



Jenna Kitchen – Recreation Supervisor 

Events/Marketing 
 Finalizing all last details for the Frosty 5K. 

 Have been working on our 2023 Activity Guide, will be sending to print soon. 

 Began working on details for our Father Daughter Dance scheduled for the beginning of 

February.  

 Announced majority of our 2023 events on social media, Facebook events created, etc. 

Concessions/Aquatics 

 I will be attending an aquatics Instructor Development Course in January along with two 

other seasonal staff members. 

212

#11.



1 
 

 
 
 
 

Director Of Utilities Monthly Report 
November 2022 (Presented At The November 19 City Council Meeting) 

Director’s Summary 

Getting closer to moving dirt on EDA projects. The first of six is scheduled to be awarded in January 

2023. The process seems to move slowly but it is still moving forward. The timeline for the remaining 

projects is pointing towards advertisement for bids after the first of the year with bid awards anticipated 

early in 2023, with construction on each to be underway throughout 2023. One project, Sturgeon & 

Rollins water line replacement, had a bid opening in early November. Department continues to spend 

time on project planning, and activities related to pursuit of easement and property data necessary prior 

to project advertisement for bids, for both EDA and SRF projects. Department staff are preparing for 

implementation in January 2023 of a lower cost and GPS location enabled computerized maintenance 

management system to replace the existing work order system.  

Caselle Software:   Implementation kicked off November 7.  

 

Project Tracking 

WTP Tracer Study:   

 MoDNR approved flow testing. 

 Testing about complete and preparing data model for submittal to DNR. 

Sparks Avenue Sewer:  

 Construction permit requested.  

 Project scheduled for advertisement of bids during 1st quarter of 2023.  

Northwest Regional Lift Station:  

 Design phase underway. 

 Additional SRF documents remaining to be completed. 

 Easements needed for piping routes. 

WWTP Digester Liner Replacement:  

 Design and specifications activities underway.  

Tannehill Apartments Water Line Replacement:  

 Construction underway with completion anticipated in December 2022. 

Route JJ: 

 Moberly working to obtain easements. 4/48 outstanding easements remain. 

 Jacobs to prepare application for construction permit. 
 

 

213

#11.



2 
 

 

 

 

EDA Infrastructure Grant Projects:  Project update meetings are held bi-weekly with Jacobs Engineering 

to track progress and make sure items are addressed in a timely manner. The stormwater project for the 

Industrial Park is a Howe Company project. The six (6) projects included and the status of each: 

Morley Street Pump Station: 

 Finishing 100% plans for the pump station site, including the Pump Mate system and electrical 

drawings. 

 Plans and Specs sent to EDA for review and to MDNR for permit. 
 

N. Morley Water Main: 

 100% plans and specifications are complete and have been sent to EDA for approval.  

 DNR construction permit has been received. 

 One easement is not executed as of now. 
o City working through the condemnation process. 
o Owner has not responded to a monetary offer for the easement. 

 Ready to bid once final easement secured and EDA documents received. 
 

Sturgeon and Rollins Water Main: 

 Willis Bros selected. To be awarded upon EDA approval of process. 

 To coordinate with other EDA projects, bid process is anticipated to be completed in early 2023. 
 

Downtown Sewer Rehab: 

 Project to be restructured as one contract for completion of cleaning, inspection and 

rehabilitation to consolidate the effort with one full service contractor, and to better able to 

control total project costs. Final scope and specifications discussions with EDA underway. 

Downtown CSO Storage Facility: 
 

 100% Plan revision necessary due to construction cost inflation. Revised specifications 
preparation underway. 

 EDA to approve restructuring justification. 

 Bid and/or construction start date to accommodate 2023 September special events.  
 

Industrial Park Stormwater – (Howe Company project.) 

 Advertisement for bids expected following EDA approval of plans & specifications (underway.) 

 

 

 

 

214

#11.



3 
 

 

Utility Dept. Staffing:  The Department was not fully staffed this month.  

Dept. Summary: 

Drinking Water produced:       28.154 MG (0.938 MG/Day) 

Drinking Water billed:         27.304 MG (0.910 MG/Day)  $256,162  ($8,539/Day) 

Wastewater Treated:         44.603 MG (1.487 MG/Day) 

Wastewater Billed:         26.080 MG (0.869 MG/Day) $350,924 ($11,697/Day) 

Total Water Loss from Leaks and Service work:          0 .171 MG 

Wastewater Discharge Combined Sewer Outfalls:      0.0 MG 

Total precipitation for November                 2.46 inches 

Monthly Water Production 33,157,654 

Monthly Used by City Facilities 2,595,685 

Accounted for During Water Leaks 823,038 

System Flushing 688,369 

Metered & Billed 27,817,012 

YTD Avg Water Loss Monthly, % 14.6% 

*All #s are monthly average gallons calendar YTD 

 

Water Office  

 0 Landlord letters 

 0 Deposit letters 

 0 Emails to 0 Landlords 

 Final work orders-still learning how to generate within Caselle 

Distribution and Collection Department and Customer Service  

 Repaired 2 water leaks. 

 Replaced or removed 3 valves. 

 Poured 8 yards of concrete. 

 Completed 173 Missouri One Call tickets for locating water and sewer lines. 

 Staff investigated 6 sewer calls. 

 9 staff OT hours. 

 Inspected 1,595 feet of sewer line. 

 Jetted approximately 9,918 feet of sewer line. (Almost 2 miles.) 
 

Wastewater Treatment Facility 

 Transferred 1,390,518 gallons of sludge for the SBRs to the digesters. 

 There was 30.81 DT of biosolids applied for the month. 

 2.46 inches of precipitation that fell over a 5-day period. 

 Taylor CSO (outfall 002) did not discharge in the month of September.  

 Rollins CSO (outfall 003) did not discharge in the month of September.  

215

#11.



4 
 

 Seven Bridges CSO (outfall 004) did not discharge in the month of September. 

 Holman Rd CSO (outfall 005) did not discharge in the month of August.  

 Grease has been noticed at the wastewater plant more frequently. Pro Pumping has been 

removing grease from the wet well at Morley Pumpstation on weekly basis. Floats in the Morley 

PS have not been working properly due to high grease amounts in the wet well. A total of 14,300 

gallons were removed in November. Grease was noticed at the Rollins PS bar screen. Large 

amounts of grease are present at the WWTP at times. City staff has stayed in contact with Swift 

Foods. A consent order was issued to the Facility to bring them into compliance. A temporary 

DAF unit is onsite at Swift Foods but is not yet in service.  

 The effluent quality is getting back to complying with the permit. BOD and TSS results meet 

permit requirements. Ammonia is very close. We are within our daily range, but still not meeting 

the monthly average.  

 The UV system was shut down for the season. Disinfection season is April 1-October 31. 

 We received the repaired Fairbanks pump for the Darwood PS from Independent Electric. The 

pump was put back into operation.  

 WWTP staff helped the Parks Dept. set up Christmas light displays in the park.  

 WWTP collected data for a SSO at 410 Corinth Dr.  

 The 4th motor for the Aerzen blowers was delivered. The 3rd motor needs warranty work done. 

The motor will be taken to JCI in Jefferson City for the repairs.  

 A water line busted in the Rollins PS basement. Plumbers have been contacted.  

 Kroner PS has an outlet pipe that pulled away from the wall of the wet well. The D&C crew are 

assisting on the repairs. Thank you to the crew for the help! 

 Rags and grease were removed from the impeller of Pump 3 at Morley PS.  

 Emily delivered a presentation at the Madison HS career fair. 

 Northeast PS is having a low-level alarm between the hours of 7 p.m. and 7 a.m. every night. 

WWTP staff are checking the station routinely. From observations, there are no level issues 

occurring. Troubling shooting with the Mission units and floats is underway.  

 
Water Plant 

 WTP staff completed 3,347 lab analyses. 

 Analyzed 2 Colilert tests.  

 Performed corrective maintenance on CL-17 roller pump tubing.  

 Submitted October Disinfection/Turbidity report. 

 Mark from Hawkins visited to discuss plant trial study.  

 Hach technician on site to perform quarterly calibration and maintenance to filter effluent 
turbidimeters.  

 Pulled algae killers out of the lake.  

 NEMO electric wired up booster pump to sludge blowdown timers. This will save labor hours 
each week versus manually switching the system on and off. 

 Flynn Drilling looked at recovery pump #1 and found no issues with it.  

 Discussed tracer study and upflow clarifiers with Jacobs.  

 Sent an email to DNR about needing to change carbon.  

 Cleaned up the sludge treatment system.  

 Collected Bac-T samples.  

216

#11.



5 
 

 Dropped off new Bac-T station for KWIX road at D&C shop for replacement of failed sampling 
unit.  

 Drained & cleaned out north upflow to get ready for winter.  

 Reset north blowdown meter.  

 Opened up Sparks tower so the street dept could install the snowplow on the Lake Rangers 
truck.  

 Pulled the coupons for testing from the corrosion study at the Auditorium and the Water Plant.  

 Collected TOC samples.  

 Adjusted the sludge blowdown pacing to see if we can improve the turbidity coming out of the 
upflow.  

 Performed monthly maintenance on CL-17 FREE chlorine analyzer. 

 Reset froze up SCADA system while the iControl was also not working. Very stressful 15 minutes. 

 Brenntag visited to remove their empty containers and pallets.  

 Collected SOC samples.  

 Received coupon rack corrosion report from the lab. 
 

Water Quality Coordinator 

Household Hazardous Waste 

 Accepted 1764.5 lbs hazardous waste into the Household Hazardous Waste Facility. 

 Stabilized and disposed of 1121.1 lbs non-reusable materials. 

 Distributed 1459.1 lbs of recycled material to Moberly residents for reuse. 

 Managed Open Household Hazardous Waste Day on November 12th. 

 Cleaned and organized Household Hazardous Waste Facility. 

 

Public Education and Involvement    

 Made appointments with Moberly residents at Household Hazardous Waste Facility. 

 Advertised HHW facility on social media. 

 Worked on winter educational articles. 

 Submitted article on tree planting program to Moberly Living for publication. 

 Worked on City Council annual stormwater summary. 

 Met with Adventure Club and Stream Team to plan next year’s tree planting. 

 

Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination 

 Continued Priority Area annual inspections. 

 Investigated complaints. 

 Added sites with floatable litter to cleanup list. 

 

Construction Stormwater Runoff Control 

 Performed regular construction inspections. 

 Performed Land Disturbance Inspections for all Land Disturbance sites (see attached chart.) 

 Attended Planning Committee meeting. 

 Met manager of Mid Am storage site. 

 Authored report on Eagle Tree Ridge detention basin. 

 

 

 

 

217

#11.



6 
 

Post-Construction Stormwater Controls 

 Cleaned trash out of city hall rain gardens. 

 Performed facility inspections at permanent stormwater facilities. 

 Researched maintenance policies for Fox Park. 

 Helped Street Department with stormwater concerns. 

 Scheduled Inspections for Orscheln and Tractor Supply stormwater structures. 

 Identified invasive plant in Cedar Lake and management methods. 

 

Municipal Good Housekeeping 

 Attended department meeting. 

 Perform Parks Department and Golf Course Stormwater Training. 

 Performed annual inspections  for cemetery, golf course, lake ranger station, and Parks facilities. 

 

Finances, Certifications and Education 

 Attended outfall training in Jefferson City. 

 Attended online training in stormwater bioretention methods from Stormwater One. 

 Attended MWEA Fall Conference in Jefferson City. 

 Organized files on T Drive. 

 Researched HAZWOPER training. 

 Finished MIRMA trainings 

 

Land Disturbance Inspections Performed 

Site Permit Holder Status 

Rothwell Park Pavilion Troy Bock Construction not started 

Logan Street Drew Kerns Construction Not Started 

Cobblestone Creek Tony Stuart No issues 

Ellis Place Tony Stuart No issues 

Southridge Lots 34, 35, & 39 Don Mutter 
Erosion control BMPs still removed despite 

disturbed ground 

Other Southridge Lots Tony Stuart Some track out 

Lantern Pointe Larry Schnell Sediment buildup around socks 

Eagle Tree Ridge C. L. Richardson 
Erosion socks damaged, sediment 

downstream of basin 

ECLC PCE No issues 

Airport Hanger Titus Chupp No issues 

Mid-Am Storage Derek James No issues 

 

 

218

#11.



Month Facebook Instagram Twitter

March 6,546 1,085 493
April 6,643 1,088 496
May 6,735 1,096 499

July 6,904 1,137 503
August

December Report
2022

Social Media stats

Top Posts this month

Christmas Festival
Recap photos

38 likes

Christmas Parade People's
choice voting contest
reached 24,954 people

instagram
Facebook

1

Jan. 6,478 1,067 484
Feb. 6,522 1,081 477

June 6,873 1,119 501

6,957 1,144 504
Sept. 7,055 1,159 508

October 7,107 1,167 511
Nov. 7,218 1,170 511

Number of followers per platform

Dec. 7,706 1,176 514

Total reach for the
month on Facebook &

Instagram 87,446

219

#11.



Date Ad Ran

Nov 1 - Nov 15

Reach

$200.00

Amount Spent

Facebook/Instagram

Medium

23,992

Date Ad Ran

Nov 22 - Dec 3

Reach

$600.00

Amount Spent

Facebook/Instagram

Medium

23,657

2

paid Media stats/Missouri Division of Tourism

Amish Ad

Christmas Festival Ad

220

#11.



print

Total: $12,777.05 $23,184.15

Half of this ad spend is reimbursed by the state

Media

Digital

Radio

2019 2020

$10,644.12 $8,530.54

SEM

$800.00 $1,200.00

$4,998.00

Billboard $2,000.000

$1,332.93 $3,465.62

Show me
strong digital $2,989.99

0

0

2021 2022

$2,100.00

$3309.03

$8,449.00

0

TV $7,224.00

$12,958.09

$5,823.69

$3,600.00

$16,437.69

$7,014.00

3

paid Media stats/Missouri Division of Tourism

Owned communication assets

Continued distributing Visitors Guides & dining cards
Added events to the community calendar &
encouraged partners to send upcoming events
Updated tourism website to reflect upcoming
changes/additions
Sent out newsletter
Worked on gathering data for end of the year report
Worked on social media marketing plan for the month

221

#11.



4

Submitted Division of Tourism Final
Report for July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022
Submitted Division of Tourism fiscal year
2023 Quarter 1 Reimbursement
Work on ads for January/February
Attended Tourism Commission, CID
Board meeting & 4th Street Board
Meeting
Met with MO Axe Co on marketing
plan/assistance
Worked with 4th Street Theatre to create
a marketing plan for December shows

Additional items

planned activites

Started working on 2023 events Junk Junktion, Christmas Festival, Gus Macker, Car Cruises & more
Continued gathering 2023 dates from tourism partners

 monthly billing

Item # Description

102.000.521:
Advertising

Total:

102.000.540:
Contract labor

102.000.541:
Administrative

fees

$1517 $1517 $1517

$5,000

$583

$7,100

oct.Jan

$1517

$5,000

$583

$7,100

Feb

$5,000

$583

$7,100

$5,000

$583

$7,100

March

$1517

$5,000

$583

$7,100

April

$1517

$5,000

$583

$7,100

May june

$1517

$5,000

$583

$7,100

july

$1517

$5,000

$583

$7,100

august Sept.

$1517

$5,000

$583

$7,100

$1517

$5,000

$583

$7,100

Nov.

$1517

$5,000

$583

$7,100

$1517

$5,000

$583

$7,100

Dec.

222

#11.



5

Moberly's christmas festival 2022

Held on December 3, 2022 from 10am-7pm in the Moberly Depot District

This event featured:
Christmas Parade
Pop-up shops
Food trucks
Altrusa Cookie Fest
Santa & Mrs. Claus Pictures
Horse Drawn Carriage Rides
Live Reindeer
Living Windows
Mayor's Tree Lighting
Crafts at A Stroke of Magic & 
Little Dixie Regional Library
Carolers

Percentage Increase/Decrease

A Stroke of Magic

Downtown Business

Very, very busy all day. In total, both sides saw an 8% increase

Coates St Corner Grill Decreased by $200 in sales compared to 2021, but still a fantastic day!

Coachlight Decreased by 18% compared to last year

Bean 21% decrease in sales. Total transactions down 15%

MO Ax Co. Estimated around 150 people in their business

Vintage 424 15% increase compared to 2021. Number of sales were down, but average sale was up 31%

Encore Busier than 2021, similar sales to a Girls Night Out Special Event.

Merle Norman 30% down from 2021's event, but still were busy

Overall feedback from the event is that the colder weather impacted sales. The last two years the temperature was
over 40 degrees and sunny so that really played a factor people coming out to shop.
Having vendors in the street was something new that we had never done before this year. We are looking into
alternatives going into 2022.
We had the most Christmas Parade entries this year than we have ever had with over 50 participants! We did an
easy & free People Choice Award online by voting on each float's picture - that was very popular
Very few businesses participated in Living Windows and will not be something we will promote going forward,
unless participation increases
Live reindeer & Mayor's Tree Lighting were a huge success! 

We estimate that this event brought in around 2,000 people total over two days to the 
City of Moberly which would be an estimated direct economic impact of $608,000. 

(This travel expenditure is based on Moberly's 2021 economic indicator.) 

Dot's Bakery 15% down compared to 2021

Charlotte's Web Antiques Had 246 people in their store, exact same number as 2021.

223

#11.



6

Held on December 3, 2022 from 10am-7pm in the Moberly Depot District

Future Plans
Secure alterative space for vendors - indoors is preferred

Add more activities
Add more selfie spots for a "Disney" like experience

Recruit more bands in the parade
Enhance Mayor's Tree Lighting

Discuss different timeframe for event

Moberly
Madison
Mexico
Jefferson City
Columbia
Huntsville
Clark
Cairo
Harrisburg
Macon

Stover
Ashland
Holliday
Paris
Sturgeon
Anabel
Shelbyville
Salisbury
Rochport
Hamilton, IL

Over 200 zip codes were collected from two states, Missouri & Illinois.
The following cities were collected:

Moberly's christmas festival 2022

224

#11.



Board Report: November 11 – December 15, 2022 

Randy Asbury, President, MAEDC 

 

Goals for the Past Month 

 (Ongoing) Continue to assist as applicable the Project Glasgow principals and the City of 
Glasgow on the bridge replacement project and future business options.  

 (Ongoing) Continue discussions with City of Moberly and a hotel services development group 
regarding downtown Moberly hotel opportunities and development services. 

 (Ongoing) Finalize City of Fayette Retail Strategies (RS) contract and deliverables. Ensure Fayette 
funding partners understand the deliverables via a presentation from RS as needed. Per 
recommendations, pursue national flags accordingly. 

 (Ongoing) Continue discussions with a Fayette developer regarding potential commercial use of 
his vacant land along Church Street for a national flag retail store.  

 (Completed) Work with Retail Strategies on potential Howard County sites for a national flag 
retail store. 

 (Completed) Research various strategic planning organizations and provide to the MAEDC 
executive committee several options for consideration and to go before the full board. 

 (Completed) Mail Industrial Club flyers and contribution letter. 
 (Completed) Meet with Michelle Frey, MACC Dean of Health Services. 
 (Ongoing) Facilitate ongoing Project Robot deliverables and project movement. 
 (Completed) Market the newly listed 14 acres on South Morley in Moberly for retail store 

opportunities. 
 (Completed) Distribute the RFP to potential strategic planning consultants. 
 (Ongoing) Review workforce training and development opportunities to determine their benefit 

to our local businesses. 
 (Ongoing) Identify grant programs offered through various state agencies that would benefit 

major employers. 

Goals for the Next Month 

 Continue to assist as applicable the Project Glasgow principals and the City of Glasgow on the 
bridge replacement project and future business options.  

 Continue discussions with City of Moberly and a hotel services development group regarding 
downtown Moberly hotel opportunities and development services. 

 Finalize the City of Fayette Retail Strategies (RS) contract and deliverables in January. Ensure 
Fayette funding partners understand the deliverables via a presentation from Retail Strategies. 
Per recommendations, pursue national flags accordingly. 

 Continue discussions with Fayette developer regarding potential commercial use of his vacant 
land along Church Street for a national flag retail store.  

 Work with Retail Strategies on potential Howard County sites for a national flag retail store. 
 Facilitate ongoing Project Robot deliverables and project movement. 

225

#11.



 Review workforce training and development opportunities to determine their benefit to our 
local businesses. 

 Identify grant programs offered through various state agencies that would benefit major 
employers. 

 Research city code related to water sprinkler requirements for a local manufacturing company. 
 Post business development director position and conduct interviews for applicants. 
 Screen professional consultant responses to the MAEDC strategic planning RFP. 
 Identify grants available to offset MAEDC workforce training initiatives. 
 Provide additional potential site locations to Retail Strategies for national flag retail 

opportunities in Howard County. 
 Work with Fayette Dairy Queen principals to identify potential staff and housing options. 

Project Overviews 

Project Robot – Project Robot attorneys are reviewing the Development and Industrial Development 
Plan agreements. Once negotiations finalize, we will move toward a public hearing. 

Bee’s Knees Brewing Company – Principals have closed on a building location in Fayette and are 
working towards making appropriate hires for a new restaurant and craft beer location near the town 
square. 
 
Fayette Dairy Queen – Principals are wrapping up the building renovations with the intent to reopen in 
late February or early March. Seeking assistance from City of Fayette influencers to identify qualified 
staff and housing options. 
 
National Flag Connections – Sent an email to a national retail flag real estate representative to place 
New Franklin on their radar screen as a potential location for a store. 
 
Real Estate – Made connections with various individuals to identify real estate sites available for 
national flag retail stores in Howard County. 
 

Other Substantive News & Efforts 

Multiple clarification questions were answered for professional consultants interested in responding to 
the MAEDC strategic planning RFP. 

Continue to provide and seek letters of support for various grant applications in process. 

226

#11.


	Top
	#1.	Approval Of Minutes.
	2022-12-05 Council Meeting -DRAFT

	#2.	Moberly Stormwater Annual Report 2022.
	Stormwater Report
	Moberly Stormwater 2022 Annual Report

	#3.	Receipt Of Bids For Shelter 5 Roof.
	Shelter5RoofReg
	Shelter 5 Bid Opening

	#4.	An Ordinance Authorizing Execution Of An Airport State Block Grant Agreement For Operational And Maintenance Expenses Or Debt Service.
	Block Grant Airport Summary Sheet
	Airport Rescue State Block Grant Ordinance
	ARPA Airport

	#5.	An Ordinance Amending Chapter 46 Of The City Code To Include A Landscape Plan For Certain Districts By Adding New Sections 46-207, 46-208, 46-209 And 46-210, And Amending Existing Sections 46-202, 46-203, 46-203 And 46-205 And Repealing Sections 46-302, 46-303 And 46-304.
	Landscaping Ord Summary Sheet
	Chapter 46 Landscaping Amendment Ordinance
	Text Amendmenf Report #3
	Text Amendment Aplication
	Text Amendment Sample

	#6.	An Ordinance Approving A Cooperative Agreement With Moberly Community Foundation.
	Trail Lighting Ordinance Summary Sheet
	Urbandale Lightpole Cooperative Agreement Ordinance
	Urbandale Trail Lighting Cooperative Agreement
	Lighting Price Quote
	Trail Light Request Map

	#7.	A Resolution Approving Extending The Lease Agreement With Marine Toys For Tots Foundation For Property Located At 218 W Reed Street And Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Lease
	Toysfor Tots extension
	Toys for Tots Extension Resolution 2022
	Lease Extension

	#8.	A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of And Authorizing Contracting With Professional Metal Fabricators, LLC For Roof Repairs To Rothwell Park Shelter #5.
	Shelter5RoofReg
	PMF Shelter Resolution
	Shelter 5 Bid Opening

	#9.	A Resolution Approving A Written Consent To Assignment.
	Written Consent Edge Resolution Summary Sheet
	Written Consent Edge Resolution
	Assignment of Leases & Rents
	Written Consent to Assignment
	Private Hangar Lease-1217 Aviator Ln Edge Avaition

	#10.	A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of Moberly, Missouri.
	Appropriation Resolution, December 19, 2022 Agenda Summary
	12-19-2022 Appropriation Resolution

	#11.	Department Head Monthly Reports.
	department head reports
	Comm. Dev.-P. W. Monthly Report-Nov
	Finance Department November report
	PD November Monthly Report 2022
	Police Dept November 2022
	November 2022 - Monthly Fire Report to City Council (Final)
	p&R November Monthly Report 2022
	Parks and Rec November Staff Report 2022
	November-2022 Director Utilities Monthly Report 12-19-22 final
	Chamber of Commerce December Report - 2022
	MAEDC Report_ November 11 - December 15 2022

	#12.	Consideration Of A Motion To Move The January 2, 2023 Meeting to January 3, 2023.
	#13.	Consideration Of A Motion To Move The January 16, 2023 Council Meeting To January 17, 2023.
	#14.	Consideration Of A Motion To Move The February 20, 2023 Council Meeting To February 21, 2023.
	#15.	Consideration Of A Motion To Adjourn To A Work Session Followed By A Closed Session To Discuss The Status of A Negotiated Contract. (Closed Statute 610.021) (12)
	Bottom

